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Financial and Operational Highlights
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Revenue

A

Currency unit: Renminbi in millions
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Profit for the year attributable

to owners of the Company
EAFRREFERNELEF

Currency unit: Renminbi in millions

BB - AR
6000

5000
4760 4 634

4000

3000

2000

1000
581

110

o
[4)]
(3]
'y

2015 2016 2017 2018

Dividend per share

(=11

Currency unit: Renminbi in cents

R : AR%SH

30

23.0
21.0

20

15

10

6.5
4.8

N
g
©

N
o
(]

2015 2016 2017 2018

N
g 5
© F



Currency unit: Renminbi in millions

For the year ended
31 December

Revenue and profit

Revenue

Profit before income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Core profit before income
tax expense ™

Core profit attrioutable to owners
of the Company ™

Adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (EBITDA) ™

Assets and liabilities
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Financial and Operational Highlights

BEHEL - BBEARK

2019 2018 2017 2016 2016 2015
—E-hE  ZE-\& ZEtf CZE-~f CZE-~f CZE-h%
(restated) (Unrestated) (unrestated)

(E31) (RE51) (RE51)

note 10 note 11 note 12

fizE 10 ifaE 11 Mzt 12

113,313 105,470 88,706 70,400 69,616 33,558
13,645 11,985 11,480 6,291 6,067 3,971
9,571 8,213 7,949 3,091 2,923 1,870
5,551 4,634 4,760 666 581 110
14,427 13,279 11,659 10,618 10,3% 5,691
6,252 5,885 4,906 4,279 4,194 1,839
21,491 20,303 18,244 16,660 16,073 10,231

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserve

FRPEE
RYEE
FERBAE
RYEE
EEFE

RARRE

118,247 109,930 107,663 99,711 94,731 75,160
29,650 30,667 32,8% 20,223 28,670 16,477
29,415 31,352 35,482 22,099 22,099 14,691
39,297 39,141 39,451 44,940 42,302 16,972
79,185 70,004 66,625 61,89 58,900 58,974

Share capital

Reserve

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ey
i
NS ELT 5

FHERI

n 65 65 65 65 65
21,433 17,217 14,680 15,951 14,588 19,591
49,988 42,704 40,025 37,852 36,324 41,19
20,197 27,390 25,600 24,043 22,576 17,779

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019
using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
comparative information is not restated. Please see Note 3(z) in

the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Financial and Operational Highlights
B REBZRE

For the year ended

31 December

BE+-A=t—HLEE

—E—

2019
&

2018
—)\F

— =

Increase/
(Decrease)
Financial indicators B EE B, Gh)
Net profit margin }%ﬂ}FEJT " 8.45% 7.79% 0.66
Return on total assets (ROA) @  #2&E LR =K (ROA) @ 6.64% 5.84% 0.80
Return on capital /¥éf$ B3R = 13.22% 12.64% 0.58
employed (ROCE) @ (ROCE) @
Liabilities-to-Adjusted EBITDA ratio @ & & ¥4 785 EBITDA (&1 @ 3.20 3.47 (0.27)
Debts-to-net assets ratio © FEEBEERO 44.35% 55.27% (10.92)
Gearing ratio © BEEBEEO 30.72% 35.60% (4.88)
Debts-to-assets ratio ™ BEBEXO 23.74% 27.56% (3.82)
Average finance cost ® R E KA O 4.14% 3.89% 0.25
Earnings per share (Basic) EREARBF(ARESD) 66.71 57.41
(RMB cent)
Dividend per share RS
— (RMB cent) — (AR#5) 26.3 23.0
Dividend payout ratio K B.L B 39.42% 40.06%

Notes:

1)
@)
©)

(10)

an

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Net profit margin is profit for the year divided by revenue.

Return on total assets is profit for the year divided by average total assets.
Return on capital employed is the ratio of profit before income tax expense
and interest divided by total assets less current liabilities.
Liabilities-to-Adjusted EBITDA ratio is the ratio of total liabilities divided by
adjusted EBITDA.

Debts-to-net assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing
borrowings (including convertible bonds, if any) and lease liabilities divided
by total equity.

Gearing ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings,
(including convertible bonds, if any) and lease liabilities divided by the sum
of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings (including convertible bonds, if
any) and lease liability.

Debts-to-assets ratio is the ratio of the sum of interest-bearing borrowings
(including convertible bonds, if any) and lease liabilities divided by total
assets.

Average finance cost is the ratio of aggregated amount of each category of
borrowing multiply by its interest rate divided by the total borrowing.

Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017,
the financial information of the Group has been restated to include the
financial position and results of operation of PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co.,
Ltd. (“Jingtang Co.”) on a combined basis.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
financial information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group’s business operation.

The financial information of the Group has not been restated for the
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. (“‘Kunlun
Gas”) as the directors consider that the unrestated financial information
is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of the change in the
Group’s business operation.

Core profit before income tax expense is defined as profit before
income tax expense excluding impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other receivables and
exchange loss.

Core profit attributable to owners of the Company is defined as profit
attributable to owners of the Company excluding impairment losses on
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, accounts and other
receivables and exchange loss attributable to owners of the Company and
its related tax effect.

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as profit before income tax expense, excluding
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, impairment loss on
intangible assets, impairment loss on accounts and other receivables,
exchange loss, interest and depreciation, depletion and amortisation.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, comparative
information is not restated. Please see Note 3(z) in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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For the year ended
31 December

BEt-R=t-HLEE

Financial and Operational Highlights
MBREGRE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2016 2015
“B-pE ZT-\F ZEtE ZRE R “T-1F
(restated) (Unrestated) (unrestated)

(E31) (RE51) (R&E30)

note 1 note 2 note 3

Pt 1 MizE2 fizE3

Sales volume of products ERfEE
Sales volume of crude oil EmiEES
(10,000 barrels) (BH) 1,354 1,327 1,306 1,522 1,522 1675
City gas il 200 147 118 92 92 21
CNG CNG 29 26 26 25 25 13
LNG LNG 48 42 38 29 29 23
Others Hit 3 5 6 6 6 8
Sales volume of natural gas RAGHEER
(100 million cubic metres) (BaAk) 280 220 188 152 152 65
Sales volume of crude oil Sales volume of natural gas
FhEESE ARARBESE
Unit: 10,000 barrels Unit: 100 million cubic metres
BT B By B HK
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Financial and Operational Highlights

I REGEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2016 2015

“B-0f ZE-)\§& CE+F 2 CE-F CZ-1f

(restated)  (unrestated)  (unrestated)

(85) (RE7) (RE5)

For the year ended note 1 note 2 note 3

31 December BEt-R=t-HLEE izE MizE2 R
Sales volume of LPG LPGH#EER

(10,000 tonnes) (&) 607 700 658 638 638 13

LNG gasification volume INGRILE 162 189 128 66 49 35

LNG entrucking volume INGEES 24 23 21 9 8 5

LNG processing volume INGIIIE 2 16 11 5 5 7

LNG processing and terminal ~ LNG T2 fEE

(100 millon cubic metres) (BIF*) 206 208 160 80 62 4
Natural gas pipeline transmission X AR EH

(100 million cubic metres) (B AK) 556 529 417 357 357 340

Stations in operation

CNG stations CNGh 562 561 543 540 540 342
LNG stations NG 612 609 603 680 680 849
LNG plants INGIRK 14 15 14 12 12 12
LNG terminals LNGE b 3 3 3 3 2 2
Notes: PEE -
(1) Due to business combinations under common control completed in 2017, (1) ARt FERNERZEH THEBAH  AREN

the operating information of the Group has been restated to include the BEEEMNCEY  CREREATMNEEHE -

operation data of Jingtang Co.

AEERNELERTABBEREQRMES - REZ
BERR ABJMELEANEBEAHARERBEL
B BIRFEITILR

2) The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the 2)
acquisition of Jingtang Co. as the directors consider that the unrestated
operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year comparison of
the change in the Group’s business operation.

AEEMELARY ARBBBERELR RERNRME
7 RRAREFERR  ABIWEBLERETEAHAR
BRI EE N B ERFEITHR

) The operating information of the Group has not been restated for the [©))
acquisition of Jingtang Co. and Kunlun Gas as the directors consider that
the unrestated operating information is more appropriate for year-on-year
comparison of the change in the Group’s business operation.
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MBREGRE

Sales volume of LPG LNG processing and terminal
LPGSEE LNGInITRGEESE
Unit: 10,000 tonnes Unit: 100 million cubic metres
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Locations of Natural Gas Business
KARRBERE D E

Compressed Natural Gas Stations

B4R RR 4

Liguefied Natural Gas Stations and Plants

HRAL R AR R 34 B2 T

Liquefied Natural Gas Terminals

RAL R RR E U vk

CNG station and
LNG station in LNG Terminal in
operation LNG Plant in operation
Province EEZ CNGI K operation 2EZLNG
#1 LNG ¥ BE%LNG IiK Bl s

. Xinjiang #58

2. Hebei Aldb 168 2 1 171
3. Shandong HI R 158 - - 158
4. Henan A 42 - - 42
5. Shanxi 28 58 1 - 59
6. Sichuan Z4I| 58 2 = 60
7. Inner Mongolia 5 & 60 1 - 61
8. Jiangsu /L## 81 - 1 82
9. Liaoning B % 17 1 1 19
10. Shaanxi P78 36 1 - 37
11. Tianjin X% 5 - - 5
12. Hubei #1E 53 1 - 54
13. Ningxia £ & 33 - - 33
14. Guangdong X 32 1 = 33
15. Hainan /& 22 - - 22
16. Guizhou E/M 16 - = 16
17. Yunnan £ 16 - - 16
18. Chongajing £ & 7 = = 7
19. Zhejiang H1/L 4 - - 4
20. Gansu H 20 1 = 21
21. Qinghai /8 5 1 - 6
22. Beijing It 4 = = 4
23. Jilin & #k 3 - - 3
24, Shanghai L& 4 - = 4
25. Anhui Z# 13 - - 13
26. Hunan #E 12 - = 12
27. Guangxi EF 7 - - 7
28. Heilongjiang 7% #&/ L 17 - E 17
29. Jiangxi L7 2 - - 2

1,174 14 3 1,191
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Locations of Natural Gas Business
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Locations of Crude Oil Exploration and Production Business
FHEREREEEB I HE
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Existing Projects
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Locations of Crude Qil Exploration and Production Business
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Chairman’s Statement
» FERE

The revenue of the Group reached RMB113,313 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of RMB7,843 million or
7.44%; the profit attributable to owners of the Company was
RMB5,551 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB917 million or 19.79%. Earnings per share (basic) was
RMB66.71 cents.

REFTHBEWAZEAREA13313ET ' AELENARE
78.431B 08, 7.44% ; ANA Al IR FEha A A R #5551 87T
FIELIE I A RBEQA7E T 19.79% - BIREF| (EAR) A ARK
66.71%5 o




Chairman’s Statement
FERE

| am pleased to report the results of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”) to
the shareholders on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, amid external risks and challenges including
sluggish global economic growth and prolonged Sino-US trade
frictions, the PRC government adhered to the general principle of
maintaining the momentum of stable and sound progress while
promoting quality development with supply-side structural reform
as its main guideline, and emphasize the guidance related to the
“Six Stabilities” to maintain a sustainable and healthy economic
and social development. GDP achieved a year-on-year growth of
6.1%. Meanwhile, the overall pollution prevention and control and
ecological construction on the state level would be strengthened.
Investment in environmental protection would be increased and
“Three-Year Action Plan for Defending the Blue Sky” would be
promoted. Full coverage of Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and its
surrounding areas and the Fenhe-Weihe Plain in respect of the
heating with clean energy in northern regions was achieved. A
serial of rectification measures in industrial furnace and the key
industries as well as the “Dispersed, Disrupted and Polluted”
enterprises had also stimulated the demand of natural gas. The
national production volume and the net imported volume of
natural gas was 306.7 billion cubic metres, representing a year-
on-year increase of 9.4%, with its proportion in the total primary
energy consumption exceeding 8% for the first time.

The Group took its responsibility seriously for its shareholders,
employees and society and it would proactively comply with
the nationwide oil and gas system reform and capitalise
opportunities bought by high-quality development of the energy
industry. The Group actively sought to exchange complementary
advantages and strengthen the cooperation with entities within
the industry in upstream and downstream. The Group was
committed to creating an open, shared, mutually beneficial and
symbiotic industrial “Ecosystem”. By fully unleash the efficacy
of natural gas sales reform of PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”), the Group continued to improve and optimize its
business management structure, organizational control system
and business operation model. The Group would put efforts in
developing end-user market, expansion, increasing end-user
sales volume and enhancing operating efficiency. With the steady
growth of the newly developed urban gas and other end-users
projects, the scale of natural gas sales had expanded rapidly,

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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and the sales structure of LPG had become more reasonable.
LNG terminal expansion was progressing as planned, gasification
and transmission capacity was further enhanced, and the LNG
application in vehicle and ship business has fully rolled out.
The Natural Gas Pipeline business increased in transmission
volume and growth in profits. The profits of the exploration
and development business had dropped due to the decline in
international crude oil price. Non-natural gas business enjoyed
rapid growth, measures such as “Double Hundred Action”
reform had been gradually implemented, thus the development
momentum was effectively unleashed, and the overall operating
results were better than expected.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB113,313
million, representing a year-on-year increase of RMB7,843
million or 7.44%; profit before income tax expense was
RMB13,645 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
RMB1,660 million or 13.85%; profit attributable to owners of
the Company was RMB5,551 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of RMB917 million or 19.79%. Earnings per share
(basic) was RMB66.71 cents. Excluding the impairment losses
on property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, accounts
and other receivables and exchange loss and gain, the core
profit attributable to owners of the Company and core earnings
per share (basic) was RMB6,252 million and RMB75.14 cents
respectively, representing an increase of 6.24% and 3.06%
respectively when compared with last year.

NATURAL GAS SALES

The Group concentrated on its end-users business and
focused its strengths on market expansion, thus its new project
developments achieved significant results. The acquisition of
equity interests in 17 gas projects of Jinhong Holding Group
Co., Ltd. (&%BEREERMNBERAA]) was completed; and
the strategic cooperation agreement entered into and between
PetroChina and the government of Heilongjiang Province had
signified the introduction of resources from Sino-Russian Eastern
Pipeline, which served the strategic of “Gasification in Longjiang”,
and the Group had also make all-out effort to promote the
development of end-users utilization projects in the northeast
regions. During the Year, 70 new development projects have
commenced operation and 58 projects completed business
registration. During the Year, the number of city gas projects of
the Group amounted to 402, covering 31 provinces, cities and
autonomous regions across the country.

Chairman’s Statement
FERE
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To fully capitalize on the development opportunities bought by the
nationwide battle of pollution prevention and control and policies
regarding the usage of natural gas implemented by regional
governments, the Group would maximize the advantages of its
resource and explored gas-usage potential of existing users so as
to realized the rapid growth of natural gas sales volume. During
the Year, natural gas sales volume was 28,029 million cubic
metres, representing a year-on-year increase of 27.44%, among
which, retail gas sales volume was 18,011 million cubic metres,
representing a year-on-year increase of 24.83%. During the Year,
the number of new users amounted to 1,463,000, including
1,446,700 new residential users and 16,200 new industrial and
commercial users, and the cumulative number of users has
reached 11,277,000, representing a year-on-year increase of
14.90%.

During the Year, the Natural Gas Sales business recorded a
revenue of RMB 94,112 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 8.05%. Profit before income tax was RMB4,469
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 51.90%.

LNG PROCESSING AND TERMINAL

Jingtang LNG terminal, Jiangsu LNG terminal and Dalian LNG
terminal maintained safe and stable production and operation.
Due to the changes occurred in parent’s resource structure,
the volume of imported LNG dropped while gasification volume
transmitted also declined. Through integrating LNG sales
resources, increasing the capability of LNG plants processing
and improving the sales system of liquefied product and other
measures like increasing the liquefied product sales volume in the
transportation field, thus gradually manifested the value of LNG
business chain. The expansion construction of Jingtang LNG
terminal and Jiangsu LNG terminal were proceeded smoothly.

During the Year, LNG gasification and entrucking volume of
Jingtang LNG Terminal, Jiangsu LNG Terminal and Dalian LNG
Terminal under the Group amounted to 18,557 million cubic
metres in total, representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.61%.
The average terminal utilisation rate decreased 9.0 percentage
points as compared with last year. 14 LNG processing plants
were put into operation during the Year, and the processing
volume of LNG processing plants was 2,054 million cubic metres,
representing a year-on-year increase of 32.89%. The production
capacity rate increased to 43.8%, representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.9 percentage points

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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During the Year, LNG Processing and Terminal business recorded
revenue of RMB9,187 million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 2.84%. Profit before income tax was RMB3,210
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.88%.

NATURAL GAS PIPELINE

During the Year, PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd.
vigorously improved its safety management, accelerated the
construction of interconnection projects, and maintained a safe
and stable operation of the pipelines, thus increasing “both the
transmission volume and results”. The Group adhered to the
strategy of stimulating retail sales with the construction of branch
pipelines, and it promoted the key branch pipeline projects in
an orderly manner during the Year. The Group commenced the
operations of 6 branch pipeline projects including Guizhou Duyun-
Kaili branch pipeline and completed 2 projects including Yueyang-
Linxiang branch pipeline.

During the Year, the transmission volume of the Group amounted
to 55,602 million cubic metres, representing a year-on-year
increase of 5.02%. The revenue of Natural Gas Pipeline business
reached RMB10,488 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 8.06%. Profit before income tax was RMB5,705 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 13.62%.

EXPLORATION AND PRODUCTION

During the Year, as international crude oil price declined compared
with last year, the average realised crude oil selling price of the
Group decreased to US$54.54/barrel from US$60.30/barrel of last
year. During the Year, the sales volume of crude oil of the Group
was 13.54 million barrels, representing an increase of 0.27 million
barrels or 2.03% compared with 13.27 million barrels of last year.
Sales revenue of crude oil was RMB2,004 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 3.09%. Profit before income tax
was RMB1,090 million, representing a year-on-year decrease of
12.80%.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) epidemic has created a greater
impact on the economy and society and the normal life of
people, especially on the social demand and supply side, while
the industries the Group operates in upstream and downstream
related industries have also been affected. The outbreak of
epidemic together with the drop of international crude oil prices,
the uncertainties in the global economy increased, which may
affect and restrict the turnaround of the domestic economic
situation. As the PRC government adopts strong measures
to scientifically prevent and control the epidemic which in turn
controlled the spread of the epidemic in China with a relatively
short time and laid a solid foundation for strong economic growth
and a stable and harmony society, and the prospect of PRC’s
positive economic growth in the long run remained unchanged.
The PRC government has recently intensified its effort on
adjusting macro policies and introduced policies such as tax and
fee reduction, proposed fundamental measures to stabilize foreign
trade and foreign investments, and continued to improve business
environment, aiming to increase confidence in foreign long-term
investment and operation and facilitate stable economic growth.

Crisis creates opportunity. 2020 is the year to achieve building
a moderately well-off society and materializing the “13th Five-
Year Plan” and the year to implement the “Three-Year Action Plan
for Defending the Blue Sky”. The PRC government persists in
preventing and controlling pollution with full force, being resolute
in promoting clean production in enterprises, and steadily
implements coal-control objectives in key regions, and as a
result it will continue to increase the demand for natural gas.
The National Development and Reform Commission addressed
favourable policy direction such as the prices of natural gas will
be “depending on the timely release of natural gas marketization
reform and be determined by the market”. Many local and
overseas analysts believe that the epidemic will have a certain
impact on the domestic natural gas consumption in the first
quarter of 2020, but with the resumption of work and production
nationwide, natural gas consumption will continue to increase
throughout the year.
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The pipeline business will be subject to adjustment due to the
establishment of China Qil & Gas Pipeline Network Corporation.
The Group will fully leverage on the integrated operation of its
parent’s natural gas sales business, seizes market opportunities,
optimizes strategic deployment, strives to turn crisis into
opportunity, and establish extensive cooperation with various
types of capital to speed up the development of retail sales
market, steadily increase business operating efficiency, and
promote various business to made new progress and new
achievements.

Fully expand the retail sales business scale. The Group
will leverage the advantages of PetroChina’s resources,
technical talents and the integration of upstream, midstream
and downstream business to establish innovative business
models, focus its strengths on large-scale projects, resulting
the development of the city gas market. The Group will position
on exploring new high quality and high-end projects, vigorously
promote joint ventures and cooperation with local governments
and market entities, push forward strategic cooperation and
cross-regional cooperation. In addition, the Group will accelerate
the construction of municipal supporting pipeline network and
expansion of user scale, increase the gasification rate of existing
market regions, and facilitate fast growth of natural gas sales
volume, so as to enable rapid expansion of the retail sales market
scale. It will enhance the development of natural gas generator
projects and distributed energy projects, actively participate in
complementary projects between natural gas and hydrogen
energy with renewable energy and push forward the plan of
projects including municipal heating and integrated energy.

Facilitate the construction progress of key branch pipeline
projects. Based on the leverage functions of its branch pipelines,
the Group will target on branch pipelines with strategic values and
radial effects, and develop integrated operation along with the
end-user projects. The Group will speed up the construction and
implementation of related branch pipelines and end-user projects
of “Gasification in Longjiang”, and organize the construction of 9
major branch pipeline projects such as Chaozhou branch pipeline
and Jieyang branch pipeline.
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Continue to promote the integrated operations of LNG
industrial chain. The Group will set up a whole industrial chain
of the sales system of liquefied product with “Terminals and
processing plants as base, self-operated stations and end-
users as support, logistic optimization as security, and tank
distribution as an auxiliary”. By applying various methods such
as commissioned processing and self-operations, the Group will
further revitalise LNG plant assets, increase processing volume,
raise capacity and speed up network layout construction of
vehicle and ship refilling stations, actively develop businesses
such as coastal power vessels refilling, sea vessels refilling, “Gas
in Substitution of Oil” of inland river vessels and inland river tank
transportation, vigorously increase the LNG sales volume in
transportation fields such area vehicles and vessels, and put effort
into creating new growth points.

Focus on improving LPG sales business efficiency. The
Group will strengthen the synergy between LPG, pipeline natural
gas and LNG, accelerate the transformation from single resource
and single market to multiple resources and multiple markets,
from direct sales to multidimensional sales, from semi-industry
chain to full industry chain, and from single business model to
diversified business model. Moreover, it will strive to stabilize LPG
resources from PetroChina, deepen resource channel cooperation
with large-scale domestic chemical enterprises, and expand
import channels of Central Asia, Russia and maritime resources.
Capturing the opportunity of market regulation by the government,
the Group will speed up and promote the construction of end-
user retail network and increase its proportion of retail sales. In
addition, the Group will explore the related product values of
LPG, and also actively search for the sale and purchase market
of upstream and downstream chemical products (such as coal
chemical alkene, alkane and isooctane) to realize product and
market diversification.

Actively expand the non-gas and new energy businesses.
The Group will further optimize the positioning of its non-gas
business, enhance the value extension of “one-stop” services,
vigorously introduce product sales and customer value-added
services etc, and promote businesses such as gas insurance.
The Group will explore the path of integrated development of
natural gas business and new energy (such as hydrogen energy,
photovoltaic and wind power) and the path of transformation into
clean energy integrated service provider, actively participate in
new business researches on power generation such as “wind-
gas complementation; light-gas complementation; water-gas
complementation (B R Ef « FREH « ZKAEFH)”, and expand
“Clean energy + engineering technology, financial services etc.”.
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The Group will continue to adhere to the concept of openness,
coordination and sharing development, strengthen its
development on ESG systems and capture industry opportunity,
persist in adopting a market-oriented approach and focusing on
benefits, continue to orderly withdraw from its exploration and
production business, maintain safe and stable operation of natural
gas pipelines, safeguard the interests of shareholders, focus on
end-users sales business, support the foundation of safety and
environmental protection, enhance gas project benchmarking
management, natural gas stations standardized management and
integrated management of branch pipelines, strongly promote
cost reduction and efficiency, continue to enhance its corporate
values and development quality in order to strive to bring more
returns to its shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB26.3 cents per share (2018: RMB23.0 cents per share) to
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of
members (the “Shareholders Register”) on 5 June 2020 (Friday)
subject to the approval at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company (the “2020 AGM”). The payment will be made on or
before 31 July 2020. The proposed 2019 final dividend amounts
to a total of approximately RMB2,277 million and 2018 dividend
of RMB1,831 million was paid in 2019. The payout ratio for 2019
(dividend per share divided by basic earnings per share) was
approximately 39.42% (2018: 40.06%).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2020 AGM will be held on 27 May 2020 (Wednesday). The
Notice of the 2020 AGM, which constitutes part of the circular
to shareholders, will be sent together with the 2019 Annual
Report. The Notice of the 2020 AGM and the proxy form will also
be available on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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CLOSURE OF SHAREHOLDERS REGISTER

For the purposes of determining shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the 2020 AGM, and entitlement to the final dividend,
the Shareholders Register will be closed. Details of such closures

are set out below:

i) For determining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2020

AGM:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
21 May 2020
(Thursday)

from 22 May 2020

(Friday) to

27 May 2020 (Wednesday)
(both dates inclusive)

27 May 2020 (Wednesday)

(ii) For determining entitiement to the final dividend:

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration

Closure of Shareholders
Register

Record date

4:00 p.m. on
3 June 2020
(Wednesday)

from 4 June 2020
(Thursday) to

5 June 2020 (Friday)
(both dates inclusive)

5 June 2020 (Friday)

During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM,
and to qualify for the final dividend, all properly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company’s Branch Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than the

aforementioned latest time.
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The Group’s success was attributable to the steadfast support
of all its customers, business partners and shareholders and the
dedicated efforts of all employees. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to extend sincere thanks to them.

By order of the Board

Ling Xiao
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020

AEBBERERERP  EBEHUARBRRNANX
RMEEETINFH T/ AAERKEFSAR
FEARDEHE

EEEGD

EE
TERPITEE

58 —ZE-ZEF=A-+mMmA

EREAERAT
T NEEERE



12N

-

=
o
1=
\
Bl
.
pEE !
_"._
i

N
‘,p. L1}
5 Rl |
P\ G
T

[}
\ \ \\} *TH
7\ Y
-\ T —
: \
: 4”—-» A\
\ ) 0\ —
N
-

”~

! vg;_ -

e



Management Discussion
» and Analysis
BB T

Kunlun Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries continued to
develop its natural gas business segment during the year ended
31 December 2019. Profit before income tax expense of the Group
for the Year was approximately RMB13,645 million, representing
an increase of 13.85% as compared with RMB11,985 million for
the last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately RMB5,551 million, representing an
increase of 19.79% as compared with RMB4,634 million for the
last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SR E T

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) continued to develop its natural
gas business segment during the year ended 31 December 2019
(the “Year”). Profit before income tax expense of the Group for
the Year was approximately RMB13,645 million, representing an
increase of 13.85% as compared with RMB11,985 million for the
last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
was approximately RMB5,551 million, representing an increase of
19.79% as compared with RMB4,634 million for the last year.

Revenue

Revenue for the Year was approximately RMB113,313 million,
representing an increase of 7.44% as compared with amount of
RMB105,470 million for the last year. The increase was mainly
due to the expansion of natural gas business.

The Group’s revenue was mainly derived from the Natural Gas
Sales segment, LNG Processing and Terminal segment and
Natural Gas Pipeline segment, which in aggregate accounted for
98.23% (2018: 98.04%) of the Group’s total revenue amounting to
approximately RMB111,309 million (2018: RMB103,402 million).

Other gains/losses, net

Other gains, net for the Year was approximately RMB364 million
(2018: losses of RMB259 million). The decrease in losses
were mainly due to decrease in exchange losses resulted from
depreciation of RMB against US$ to a lesser extent compared
with last year.

Interest income

Interest income for the Year was approximately RMB274 million,
representing a decrease of 7.12% as compared with amount of
RMB295 million for the last year. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in average balance of cash at bank compared with
last year.

Purchases, services and others

Purchases, services and others were approximately RMB85,116
million for the Year, representing an increase of 8.78% as
compared with amount of RMB78,249 million for the last year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in purchase volume and
price of natural gas which was generally in line with the increase in
sales of Natural Gas Sales segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee compensation costs

Employee compensation costs of the Group was approximately
RMB5,134 million for the Year, representing an increase of 5.96%
as compared with amount of RMB4,845 million for the last year.
This increase was mainly due to the increase in average salary
and bonus resulting from improved business performance as well
as economic inflation during the Year.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation for the Year was
approximately RMB6,350 million, representing an increase of
2.60% as compared with amount of RMB6,189 million for the
last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in property,
plant and equipment arising from right-of-use assets recognised
upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 during the Year.

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMB404 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
3.81% as compared with that of RMB420 million for the last
year. Impairment loss recognised during the Year was mainly
attributable to a LNG storage tank and CNG/LNG filling stations
whose carrying amounts exceeded the recoverable amounts.

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the Year were
approximately RMB3,112 million, representing a decrease of
8.17% as compared with amount of RMB3,389 million for the
last year. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease of
selling, general and administrative expenses incurred by certain
subsidiaries, which the Group ceased to consolidate upon losing
the absolute control during the restructuring processes in last
year.

Taxes other than income taxes

Taxes other than income taxes for the Year was approximately
RMB472 million, representing an increase of 0.85% as compared
with amount of RMB468 million for the last year. Taxes other than
income taxes remained fairly stable during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
i ERE

Interest expenses

Interest expenses for the Year was approximately RMB988 million,
representing a decrease of 12.57% as compared with amount of
RMB1,130 million for the last year. The decrease was mainly due
to the conversion of convertible bonds during the Year and the
increase in the amount of interest capitalised in 2019.

Total interest incurred for the Year was approximately RMB1,640
million of which RMB652 million was capitalised as construction-
in-progress.

Share of profits less losses of associates

Share of profits less losses of associates for the Year was
approximately RMB951 million, representing an increase of
10.84%, as compared with amount of RMB858 million for the
last year. The increase was mainly due to the increase in the
shared operating result from CNPC-Aktobemunaigas Joint Stock
Company (“Aktobe”), which incurred less exchange losses during
the Year.

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures

Share of profits less losses of joint ventures for the Year was
increased by 2.57% to approximately RMB319 million (2018:
RMB311 million). Share of profits less losses of joint ventures
remained fairly stable during the Year.

Profit before income tax expense

Profit before income tax expense for the Year was approximately
RMB13,645 million, representing an increase of 13.85% as
compared with amount of RMB11,985 million for the last year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB4,074
million, representing an increase of 8.01% as compared with
amount of RMB3,772 million for the last year. The increase was
generally in line with the increase in profit before income tax
expense.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Profit for the Year and profit attributable to owners of the
Company

The profit for the Year of the Group was approximately RMB9,571
million, representing an increase of 16.53% as compared
with amount of RMB8,213 million for the last year. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB5,551 million, representing an increase of
19.79% as compared with amount of RMB4,634 million for the
last year.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying value of total assets of
the Group was approximately RMB147,897 million, representing
an increase of RMB7,310 million or 5.20% as compared with
RMB140,587 million as at 31 December 2018.

The gearing ratio of the Group was 30.72% as at 31 December
2019 compared with 35.60% as at 31 December 2018,
representing a decrease of 4.88%. It is computed by dividing
the sum of interest-bearing borrowings (including convertible
bonds, if any) and lease liabilities of RMB35,117 million (2018:
RMB38,744 million) by the sum of total equity, interest-bearing
borrowings (including convertible bonds, if any) and lease liabilities
of RMB114,302 million (2018: RMB108,838 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has total borrowings of
RMB34,499 million which will be repayable as follows:
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The functional currency of the Company and most of its
subsidiaries is RMB. As such, the Group is exposed to exchange
rate risks arisen from borrowings denominated in other currencies
raised by the Company or these subsidiaries. The Group will
incur exchange gain/loss from such foreign currency borrowings
when RMB appreciates/depreciates against other currencies.
The details of the Group’s financial risk factors (including foreign
exchange rate risk) are summarised under Note 4.1 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Other financial risk
factors are summarised in Note 4.2 and Note 4.3 in the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the Year, no share option (2018: none) has been exercised
by the senior executives of the Company as all share options were
lapsed.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB9,647 million. Notwithstanding the net current liabilities
of the Group at 31 December 2019, the Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis because the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
of the opinion that the Group would have adequate funds to meet
its obligation, as and when they fall due, having regard to the
following:

(i) the Group expects to obtain credit facility from China
Petroleum Finance Company Limited (“CP Finance”). On 3
March 2020, the Group obtained a credit facility of RMB26
billion from CP Finance covering a period ending 31 March
2021;

(ii) the Group expects to generate operating cash inflows in
the future; and

(iif) the Directors consider that the Group could obtain
financing from various sources of funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2019, certain property, plant and equipment

of the Group amounting to RMB21 million (2018: Nil) were
pledged to banks for loan facilities granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

New Investment in Major Projects

PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd. (“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into equity transfer
agreement dated 15 August 2019 with certain indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Jinhong Holding Group Co., Ltd. (“Jinhong
Holding”), in which Kunlun Gas agreed to purchase equity
interests in 17 companies from Jinhong Holding at a consideration
of approximately RMB1,640 million. This acquisition will help the
Group to achieve rapid development in target markets, generate
synergies among the Group’s businesses, enhance operational
efficiency and increase market competitiveness. In the third
quarter of 2019, Kunlun Gas obtained all the necessary approvals
of the government authorities of the equity transfer and fifteen
entities have become the subsidiaries of Kunlun Gas while two
entities have become the associates of Kunlun Gas.

Material Investments

Material investments of the Group are its investments in
associates and in joint ventures.

The Group’s major investments in associates are mainly in its
Exploration and Production segment. The Group has invested
in an associate, Aktobe, located in the Republic of Kazakhstan
with an effective equity interest of 15.072%, the detailed financial
information of which is summarised in Note 18 in the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

There is no single material joint venture which significantly affects
the results and/or net assets of the Group. Details of the Group’s
investments in joint ventures are summarised in Note 19 in the
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Employee

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 38,557
employees globally, excluding the employees under entrustment
contracts (2018: 42,278 employees). Remuneration package
and benefits were determined in accordance with market terms,
industry practice as well as the duties, performance, qualifications
and experience of the employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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DIVIDEND
Dividend Policy

The dividend policy of the Company allows shareholders to
share the Company’s profits and also enables the Company to
retain sufficient reserves for its future development. Under the
circumstances that the Company makes profits and has no effect
on the Group’s normal business operation, the Company intends
to share its profits with its shareholders in the form of annual
dividend, which shall be in a total distribution amount of not less
than 25% of the Group’s annual consolidated profit attributable
to the owners of the Company, on the condition that it shall be
subject to the following “Criteria”.

Criteria:

1. When proposing the declaration of any dividends, the
Board shall consider, among other things, the business
conditions and strategies of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), the expected working capital
needs and future expansion plans, surplus, contractual
restrictions, actual and expected national financial
conditions, macroeconomic conditions and other factors
as the Board deems relevant.

2. The dividend rate will vary every year according to the
above criterion and the Company will not assure the
distribution of any specific amounts of dividend at any
particular period or the distribution of dividends at any
particular dividend yield.

Final Dividend

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of RMB26.3 cents (2018: RMB23.0 cents) per share. The
proposed dividend will be paid on or before 31 July 2020 to the
shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s register of
the members on 5 June 2020 (Friday), subject to the approval at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transaction.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model

Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

By the Order of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
TEE QRS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year”).

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”), code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) and certain recommended best practices (the
“Recommended Best Practices”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
as set out in the CG Code and complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the Year.

The Company has also put in place certain Recommended Best
Practices as set out in the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements
of the CG Code, and acknowledges the important role of its
Board in providing effective leadership and direction to Company’s
business, and in ensuring transparency and accountability of
Company’s operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company. The Board is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the
Company, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, establishment of ESG system, material
transactions (in particular those which may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and
the senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board fully supports the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management to discharge their responsibilities.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management shall report
back and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

The Company adopted written terms established on division
of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Composition

The Board has the necessary balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
There is a strong element of independence in the Board, which
can effectively exercise independent judgement.

During the Year, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman)

Mr Zhao Yongaqi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

Dr Liu Xiao Feng (Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr Sun Patrick (Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper (Member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)
(appointed on 27 August 2019)
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to:

(1 the appointment of at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors with at least one Independent Non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise;

@) the appointment of independent non-executive directors
representing at least one-third of the board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each Independent Non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

The Independent Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, serving on Board committees, scrutinising
the Company’s performance and monitoring performance
reporting, all Independent Non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Board Diversity

Under Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination committee
(or the board) shall have a policy concerning diversity of board
members, and shall disclose the policy or a summary of the
policy in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
Nomination Policy to align the board diversity.
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Nomination Policy

Selection criteria and principles

The Nomination Committee will consider the following factors
upon the assessment of candidates:

(1)

Review on the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board at least once a year, and also make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to align with the Company’s strategies.

Fully consider the Board Diversity Policy, individual
performance, individual capability, professionalism,
knowledge, experience and time that can be devoted
to the Company, personal credibility, the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange and applicable laws and regulations
etc.; identify candidate(s) with appropriate qualifications
to be member(s) of the Board, and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individual(s) nominated as director(s).

Make recommendations to the Board on the relevant
matters regarding the director(s) and succession plans
for the director(s) (in particular, the Chairman and chief
executive).

Board Diversity Policy

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to, skills, knowledge, experience,
gender, age, ethnicity, and educational background etc. Board
appointments will be made on meritocracy, contribution to the
Board and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard to the benefits of the diversity on the Board.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Board diversity of the Company in

terms of age, years of service and title are shown as follows:

Age Group FHRER™

Age Group | number of persons
FEERE (57) AE %
40-49 1 11%
50-59 5 56%
60-69 1 11%
above 70LL L 2 22%

Designation g7

Designation number of persons
L2 AH %
Executive Directors #1TE&E = 5 56%
Independent Non-executive
Directors 4 44%
WU FMITES

9 100%

Number of Years as Board Member F{ B EE &K 8 FH

Number of Years
as Board Members
EBEEEREEY | number of persons
(Years ) %
1-5 6 67%
6-10 1 11%
11-15 0 0%
16-20 1 11%
over 20LL | 1 11%

9 100%
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each Non-executive Director has entered into a formal letter of
appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years,
subject to the retirement and re-election in accordance with the
Bye-laws of the Company.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment. Every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company which provide that
every Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
during the Year shall retire at the next general meeting and every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years. Code
Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 have been fully complied.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws Article 97, Mr Zhao
Yongqgi and Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey will retire by rotation at
the Company’s forthcoming annual general meeting (the “2020
AGM”). Mr Zhao Yongqi is eligible and will offer himself for re-
election at the 2020 AGM. Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey will not offer
himself for re-election at the 2020 AGM since he has reached the
age of retirement.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws Article 89, Mr Tsang
Yok Sing Jasper will retire at the 2020 AGM. Mr Tsang is eligible
and will offer himself for re-election at the 2020 AGM.
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Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

During the Year, each of the Directors has attended various in-
house briefings and internal or external seminars/trainings, and
has read internal or external newsletters, updates and other
reading materials covering topics such as business of the
Company, corporate governance, industry knowledge, regulatory
updates, finance and management. The training records of the
Directors in 2019 are set out belows:
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B

BRHFZECEFTHEEEREIZERESSE
E~ EXGESEMRZMERM - URERKEFY
ARR 2 ZGNEEOBEE 212 - UWREE2HM
BERETRAMAEEERE T ZBE -

FER  ARBNZHERESRHEFENANRER

B -

AEE  REFCHFEZERNBEN LAFEINE
Hatg, E - WEMEABRINBER B - R
AREMBEME O REETBMARRER  £F
BORCITRME  EEEH MBEEE -EE—
T NFEIHEISIMT

Reading
materials
relating to the

Attending seminar/ Group, daily

meeting/forum/ business or

giving lecture responsibilities

at seminar of Directors

HE MEEH

Bk a/ g%/ £®-HE

WE /88 ¥ETES

BHERE BESHH

Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) BT RE(LE) Yes B2 Yes BB

Mr Zhao Yongaj (Chief Executive Officer) KR L (7T 4R) Yes E2 8 Yes B

Mr Zhao Zhongxun fishioN- Iy Yes B2 H Yes BHiE

Mr Zhou Yuanhong A& T E Yes B2 H Yes BHE

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer) BBRRE (TFEE) Yes B2 Yes BB

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEERAE Yes B2 Yes B¥iE

Dr Liu Xiao Feng =l eai i Yes B2 H Yes EHE

Mr Sun Patrick IEERE Yes B2 Yes BHE
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper IR

(appointed on 27 August 2019) (RZF-NE\H=1+HEZHE) Yes B2 Yes BHiE
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Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code Provision A.1.1 stipulates that regular Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals for reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies

and policies of the Company.

During the Year, 4 Board meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings,
1 Remuneration Committee meeting and 3 Nomination Committee

meetings were held.

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the
Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out below:

Exges
EBLUREENHEE

BIETEEXAIIRTE  EESeTHeREST
BRELIK  RYEFZF—K - UEBHIUHER T
&Z“‘ SEEE  AREEWHL AR R 2 R &
BUR

REE  HBOTHUREEEEE  —KBEKZES
THE AFHNEREEERLA=ZRIERZBEE
=3

xR

REE  BREFNEFS  BERZET  FHZ
BeliEtZEegR chFECEEHEIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

i/ eRRE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
- EZg ENZEee FHzEe REZES
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) ARERE(TE) 4/4 - - -
Mr Zhao Yongg fizy) Sopinted 3/4 - - -

(Chief Executive Officer) (77B#%)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun fizhisClpivted 2/4 - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FRELE 4/4 - - -
Mr Miao Yong BBEYE 4/4 - - -

(Chief Financial Officer) (e
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV TEE
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 3/4 3/3 11 2/3
Dr Liu Xiao Feng ZEEEL 4/4 3/3 1/1 3/3
Mr Sun Patrick FRELE 4/4 3/3 1/1 3/3
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper IR

(appointed on 27 August 2019) (R=F-NENF-F++HEZE) 22 11 11 11
Total number of meetings eRaY 4 3 1 3
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings and reasonable notice
is generally given for other Board meetings. For committee
meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required
notice period stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors/
committee members at least 3 days before each Board meeting
or committee meeting to keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management whenever necessary.

The Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, President, Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary will attend Board and committee
meetings, when necessary, to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Minutes are prepared after each
meeting and the final version is signed by the Chairman or the
chairman of the relevant committees (as the case may be) and
confirmed by the Board in the following Board Meeting or by the
relevant committee in the following committee meeting (as the
case may be). The confirmed minutes are kept for future reference
and Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at
a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Bye-laws also
contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain from voting
and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to
ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are held by different individuals during the Year.
Mr Ling Xiao was the Chairman of the Board and Mr Zhao Yonggi
acted as the Chief Executive Officer throughout the Year. There is
no relationship between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

There are written terms on the general division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practice. With the support of the senior management,
the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board
meetings. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The Chief Executive Officer is also responsible
for developing strategic plans and formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes
for the Board’s approval.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website and are available to shareholders
upon request.
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All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
the members of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors till 26 August 2019 and four Independent Non-executive
Directors from 27 August 2019 to 31 December 2019 (including
one Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise throughout the year). Mr Sun
Patrick was the Chairman of the Audit Committee throughout the
Year. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing independent auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

1. to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by independent
auditor before submission to the Board;

2. to review the relationship with the independent auditor
by reference to the work performed by the independent
auditor, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the independent auditor; and

3. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings, to
review the financial results and reports, financial reporting and
compliance procedures, the report on the Company’s internal
control and risk management review and processes and the
appointment of the independent auditor.

The Company’s annual results for the Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.
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There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from
the Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the independent auditor.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprised three Independent Non-
executive Directors till 26 August 2019 and four Independent
Non-executive Directors from 27 August 2019 to 31 December
2019. The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
making recommendations to the Board for approval of the
remuneration policy and structure and making recommendation
or determining the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference
to the performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets annually for
reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and determination
of the annual remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Company Secretary is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations to the
Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company.
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The remuneration paid to the senior management by band for the
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AEEXNTERERABZFHIMIREGEF T 10

Year is set out as below: N
Senior Management emolument EREBEABZME
Year 2019
—F-hF
RMB1,000,001 — RMB2,000,000 AR# 1,000,001 7TE AR ¥ 2,000,000 7T 1
RMB3,000,001 — RMB4,000,000 AR 3,000,001 ;T2 AR 4,000,000 7T 1
2
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REESE

The Nomination Committee comprised of four members till
26 August 2019 and five members from 27 August 2019 to
31 December 2019 including the Chairman of the Company
throughout the Year. Mr Ling Xiao was the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee throughout the year.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3. to assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors;
4, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executives;
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5. to regularly review the time required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities; and

6. to do such other things to enable the Nomination
Committee to discharge its powers and functions conferred
to it by the Board.

In performing its duties, due regards would be given to the Listing
Rules and the associated guidance.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the Year to
review Board composition, proposal for Directors’ re-election
on retirement, the appointment of new Director as well as the
objectives set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance functions as required under the CG Code:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board considered the following corporate
governance matters:

- adoption of corporate governance functions under the CG
Code;

- review the usage of annual caps on continuing connected
transactions of the Group;

- review the compliance with the CG Code; and
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- review of the effectiveness of the internal controls and risk
management systems of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

Code Provision A.6.4 stipulates that directors must comply with
their obligations under the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and, in addition, the Board
should establish written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors, and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

The Company has also established written guidelines — Code
for Securities Transactions by Relevant Employees in respect of
the dealings in the Company’s securities by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 82 to 88.
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During the Year, the fees charged by KPMG for the audit of
the Company and its subsidiaries amounted to approximately
RMB18 million (2018: RMB13 million). In addition, approximately
RMB2 million (2018: RMB2 million) was charged by KPMG for
non-audit services. The non-audit services mainly consist of
taxation services, interim review, advisory and other professional
services. The fees charged by other auditors of the Group
for audit services during the Year amounted to approximately
RMB10 million (2018: RMB12 million).

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

0

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as
the Chairmen of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees,
are available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Under the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting will be taken by poll except where the
Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Details of the
poll procedures are included in all notices/circulars to
shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings
of meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange and the Company subsequent to the close of
the shareholders meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

During the Year, one general meeting was held on
6 June 2019. The attendance records of the Directors to
the 2019 general meetings are set out below:—
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Directors Attendance
= HESERH
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman) EERE(LE) 1/1
Mr Zhao Yongaqi (Chief Executive Officer) MK (7T A8E) 17
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HRE T 1/1
Mr Zhou Yuanhong Bt 0/1
Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer) BELE (WBHE) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHPTEE

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey TEERE 01
Dr Liu Xiao Feng B EE 1/1
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 11
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LK 0/0

(appointed on 27 August 2019) (R=F-NENA=T+HEZT)
Total number of meetings BRAY 1

Rights of Shareholders to Convene Special General
Meeting

A special general meeting shall be convened on the written
requisition of shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the registration not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company which as at the date of
the deposit carries the voting right at general meetings
of the Company deposited at the registered office of
the Company in Bermuda (Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda) and the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong (39/F, 118
Connaught Road West, Hong Kong) for the attention of the
Board.

The written requisition shall specify the objects of the
special general meeting and signed by the requistionist(s).
If the Board does not, within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the written requisition, proceed duly to convene
the special general meeting the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the special general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which special general meeting may be convened by
the Board, provided that any special general meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the date of deposit of the written requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Communication

Corporation communications such as interim reports,
annual reports and circulars are sent to the shareholders
in a timely manner and are also available on the website
of the Company. The Company’s website provides the
shareholders with the corporate information, such as
principal business activities and latest development of the
Group, as well as the share price and dividend history of
the Company. Also, it provides information on corporate
governance and corporate social responsibilities of the
Group as well as the compositions and functions of the
Board and the committees. For efficient communication
with shareholders and in the interest of environmental
protection, arrangements were made to allow shareholders
to elect to receive corporate communications of the
Company by electronic means through the Company’s
website.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the
Company, such as telephone hotline, fax number, email
address and postal address, in order to enable them to
make any query that they may have with respect to the
Company. They can also send their enquiries to the Board
through these means.

Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website at http://www.kunlun.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard the
shareholders investment and the Company’s assets. The internal
control system of the Company comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and
standards. The Company also has an internal audit department,
which is responsible for monitoring the internal governance of the
Group and overseeing the risk management and internal control
system of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, assesses annually
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system which
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as risk management of the Company.
The Board acknowledges that such risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Having reviewed the assessment report
issued by an external advisory firm, the Board considers that the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are
effective and adequate.

The Group has been attaching great importance to internal
control and risk management. The Company continued to
facilitate the building of its internal control system, gradually built
and improved a comprehensive risk management system, and
effectively promoted its operation in compliance with the laws
and regulations. It actively pushed forward the integration of risk
management and business and gave full play to the guiding role
of risks in its management.

MATERIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL IN
2019

In 2019, the Company’s internal control and risk management
work, complementary to the Company’s overall strategic goals,
focused on high-quality development, further optimised the
internal control system, enhanced internal control supervision,
reinforced the merging between internal control and business
management, and ensured the continuous and effective operation
of the internal control system. The Company further strengthened
risk management and control on the increment of uncertainties in
the production and operational environment, insisted on carrying
effective risk management, strengthened the assessment of
major risks, scaled up management and control of risk events,
promoted quantitative assessment of investment projects, and
struck to prevent and resolved major risks. For two consecutive
years, the Group was rated by PetroChina Company Limited in its
annual internal control operation evaluation as “outstanding” unit.
The major risk management and control procedures of the Group
is reported as follows:
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Market risk

The Group took full advantage of the merging between
wholesaling and retailing, which had promoted the
safeguard of the resources. The Group also formulated
differentiated set of sales strategies, with each delineated
by the geographical boundary between provinces,
thoroughly analysed on costs structure, optimised resource
allocation, persisted on developing profitable users,
boosted sales and efficiency. The Group commenced
the three-year action plan to strengthen the competition
capability in the end-users market, disposed the non-
profitable stations, enhanced the synergetic development
capacity of the LNG industry chain. The Group expanded
resource procurement channels, and actively increased
domestic and foreign procurement quantity. The Group
continued to strengthen communication and coordination
channels; adopted the payment by letter of credit, in the
wake of steady growth of import volume. The Group
initiated differentiated marketing strategies to promote
sales volume and capacity, with prime focus on end-users
and annual sales targets.

Management Risk of Engineering Projects

The Group focused on key project constructions in terms
their completion and certification, innovated management
mindset, got rid of traditional barriers, and promoted the
application of latest management tools. Besides, the
Group strengthened the management of engineering
construction contractors, with the prime aim to nurture due
conscience among our contractors to dutifully undertake
works until their completion, and hence work schedule on
engineering construction could be meticulously executed.
Through the well-structured management, the Group
strengthened safety control for engineering. The Group
also initiated careful review on overall institutional workflow,
improved institutional framework, carefully worked out the
construction procedures for key projects, so that the safety
project construction was achieved effectively.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Investment Risk

The Group was committed to regulating the project
approval system and put effort to expand the market.
The Group undertook the project under the criteria of
tempo control, management regulation, risk regulation
and prevention and progress amidst stability. The Group
concentrated on the “13th Five-Year Plan”, that it would
step-up efforts to for strategic cooperation venture in key
project construction, and thus improved the quality of
project development. For those projects unabled to meet
the effective gain standards, those project would be duly
declined, and no investment funding would be committed.
For those projects which had received authorized approval,
the Group would apply reinforced control for risk elements.
For natural gas segment development plan executed in
second-tier subsidiaries across all provinces, autonomous
regions, and municipalities, the Group would roll out a
comprehensive evaluation and pointed out the direction
and composition of investment.

Health, Safety and Environmental Protection Risks

The Group continued to exercise stringent control and
management. Based on safety and environmental
responsibility, the Group would comprehensively
implemented accountability system by applying the
QHSE system to scrutinise and benchmark, and carefully
executed 3 major measures, including priorisation of
risk control, evaluation on safety and environmental
protection capacity and standardisation of the recruitment
procedure of frontline team. The Group would continue to
strengthen the inspection on internal control procedures,
SO as to give the leverage on the advantageous on cross
monitoring function. The Group would apply strict control
over hazardous operations, close supervision on safety
compliance with respect to contractors, strengthen
contingency plan management, enhance emergency and
accident management, and stick on project compliance
management, to ensure the safe and smooth operation of
various tasks.
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Legal Risk

The Group reinforced the fundamental management
system and compliance in operations, to formulate
administrative measures on legal arguments in relation
to major law-related incidents. The Group reinforced
penetrative management for contract dealings, including
its economic efficiency, legal and commercial operations,
ex-post contracts, digitalised management for contracts.
The Group would continue abide by law compliance,
as well as to safeguard our legal rights, while establish
a strict accountability system. The Group reviewed and
studied anti-monopolisation risks in relation to natural
gas distribution and end-users sales, undertook special
research on anti-monopolisation, drafted regulatory
standards and guiding rules that facilitated fair competition
behavior among industry peers.

Market Risk of Non-Gas Business

The Group, based on the three-tier strategy, themed
“promotion of non-natural gas sales with the assistance of
natural gas sales, interactive approach to apply natural gas
and non-natural gas, win-win solution for both” , focused
on sales promotion of gas derivative products, value-
added services, and resource integration. Leveraging on
the outstanding core business in different branches and the
geographical location, the Group speeded up proprietary
brand building and brand_specific strategies. The Group
commenced to enter into new business fields, including
insurance and agency of the gas appliances. Being an
agency also promoted the safety and profitability within the
core business, together with safe operation for residential
users.
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Human Resources Risk

The Group stuck to nurture a reserve talent cadre and
broadened its selection. The “Tentative Measures for
Early Exit of the Management Personnel from Senior
Management Positions” was in place, promoted mutual
and effective communication between executives and
broadened secondment channels. In addition, the Group
speeded up the training of excellent young executives and
ensured an orderly execution of succession plan for cadres
at executive level. Based on the integration at management
level, the Group transferred the frontline cadres to
headquarter for an all-round training, or “learning through
practice”. As the number of the cadres at middle level were
under strict and effective control which enabled the Group
to achieve professional development in cadre hierarchy, as
well as to serve to balance the age composition within the
overall cadre structure.

The Group will focus on the major risks identified in the
assessment results of 2020. Various business segments of
the Group will be managed and guided by their respective
predesignated accountable management departments.
Relevant management departments will formulate control
objectives, delineate control responsibilities, identify key
business areas and major scope of management and refine
control measures.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of Kunlun Energy Company
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review of the results of each business segment of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”), major risks
and uncertainties facing the Group’s business operations, and
the Group’s business prospects are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 15 to 25 of this annual report.

(1)  Business Strategy

At the beginning of 2020, the sudden outbreak of novel
coronavirus disease (COVID-19) epidemic has created
a greater impact on the economy and society and the
normal life of people, especially on the social demand
and supply side, while the industries the Group operates
in upstream and downstream related industries have also
been affected. The outbreak of epidemic together with
the drop of international crude oil prices, the uncertainties
in the global economy increased, which may affect and
restrict the turnaround of the domestic economic situation.
As the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government
adopts strong measures to scientifically prevent and
control the epidemic which in turn controlled the spread of
the epidemic in China with a relatively short time and laid a
solid foundation for strong economic growth and a stable
and harmony society, and the prospect of PRC’s positive
economic growth in the long run remained unchanged.
The PRC government has recently intensified its effort on
adjusting macro policies and introduced policies such as
tax and fee reduction, proposed fundamental measures
to stabilize foreign trade and foreign investments, and
continued to improve business environment, aiming to
increase confidence in foreign long-term investment and
operation and facilitate stable economic growth.
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Crisis creates opportunity. 2020 is the year to achieve
building a moderately well-off society and materializing
the “13th Five-Year Plan” and the year to implement the
“Three-Year Action Plan for Defending the Blue Sky”. The
PRC government persists in preventing and controlling
pollution with full force, being resolute in promoting clean
production in enterprises, and steadily implements coal-
control objectives in key regions, and as a result it will
continue to increase the demand for natural gas. The
National Development and Reform Commission addressed
favourable policy direction such as the prices of natural
gas will be “depending on the timely release of natural gas
marketization reform and be determined by the market”.
Many local and overseas analysts believe that the epidemic
will have a certain impact on the domestic natural gas
consumption in the first quarter of 2020, but with the
resumption of work and production nationwide, natural gas
consumption will continue to increase throughout the year.

The pipeline business will be subject to adjustment due
to the establishment of China Oil & Gas Pipeline Network
Corporation. The Group will fully leverage on the integrated
operation of its parent’s natural gas sales business, seizes
market opportunities, optimizes strategic deployment,
strives to turn crisis into opportunity, and establish
extensive cooperation with various types of capital to
speed up the development of retail sales market, steadily
increase business operating efficiency, and promote various
business to made new progress and new achievements.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s business are mainly operated by its
subsidiaries in the PRC and overseas, which in their
businesses should abide by the relevant laws and
regulations, including those relating to gas operation and
service, gas facilities protection, prevention and handling of
gas safety accidents, price determination regime of natural
gas, environmental protection, labour security, exploration,
production and sales of crude oil.The Group has also
obtained the requisite business licenses, qualifications,
approvals and permits which are necessary for conducting
its operations in the PRC and overseas.
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During the Year, to the best of the knowledge and
information of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the Group has complied with the relevant laws,
regulations and other applicable requirements that have a
significant impact on the Group and there have not been
any illegal or non-compliant acts which would materially
impact the Group's normal and continuing operations.

Key relationships with stakeholders

The Group recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to its healthy growth and strives to maintain
effective communication with its stakeholders, including
its shareholders, investors, employees, customers and
suppliers. This has facilitated the Group’s sustainable
development in various aspects, including its business
operation, environmental protection and work environment.

Corporate communications are provided to the
shareholders of the Company in a timely manner. The
Directors participated in the general meetings held during
the Year to enable effective communication with the
shareholders. The Company also continues to enhance
communications and relationship with its investors.
Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts to keep them
abreast of the development of the Company.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness in
recruitment and treatment of its employees, and has
established sound occupational health and safety policies
to create a desirable work environment for its employees.
Remuneration package and benefits of the employees
are determined in accordance with market terms, industry
practice as well as duties, performance, qualification and
experience of the employees.
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The Group adopts a market-oriented approach, closely
monitors the demand for its products and coordinate its
production, transmission and marketing activities with
an aim to provide greater value to its customers. The
Group has established long-term relationship with its
major customers, including PetroChina Company Limited
(“PetroChina”) and other independent third-party customers
which are primarily industrial users of the Group's gas
products. The ageing analysis and further details of the
Group's accounts receivable are set out in Note 24 in
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Group did not rely on any major customer during the Year,
and will continue to adopt multiple measures to develop
users and expand marketing channels.

At the same time, the Group adopts scientific approach
in managing its supply chain and controlling costs of raw
materials. The Group has also received strong support
from its largest supplier, PetroChina, in maintaining stable
supply for its midstream and downstream natural gas
business. The Group has maintained a good relationship,
and did not have any significant disputes, with its major
customers and suppliers during the Year.

The Group has upheld its mission of “Low-Carbon
Economy Green Development” in its long-term business
strategy. It has placed a great emphasis on environmental
protection by promoting energy conservation and emission
reduction with a view to contributing to the sustainable
development of the environment and maintaining long-term
growth of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
are the sales and distribution of natural gas, LNG processing,
LNG terminal and transmission of natural gas in the PRC, and
the exploration and production of crude oil and natural gas in the
PRC, the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Sultanate of Oman, the
Republic of Peru, the Kingdom of Thailand and the Republic of
Azerbaijan.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 89
and 90.

A final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of
RMB23.0 cents per share amounting to approximately RMB1,831
million was paid during the Year. The Directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of RMB26.3 cents per share for the
Year, totalling approximately RMB2,277 million.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 93 and 94, and Note 28 in the Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 27 in the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
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FAE TSR #E

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders —NERZZE—NF+ZA=F+—H AR
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were as follows: TT#"/)KT%{%ZZDT

2019 2018
—E-NEF - N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKEBETT
Contributed surplus A% 109 109
Retained earnings g e 17,779 14,340
17,888 14,449

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if:

(@ it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the Year.

BAERE-NN\—FRBE  NRBZEHBREK
AHETHIK ° A - RABETIIERT - TF
BEMEBPEIRIORMNEE » SHEHDIK

@ REEBIHRELEE
EEERAE 3

A IR 18
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year are:

Executive Directors:

Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman)

Mr Zhao Yongai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Mr Sun Patrick

Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper (appointed on 27 August 2019)

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

During the Year, the Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising
out of corporate activities.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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BRIEF BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr Ling Xiao (Chairman)

Aged 56, Mr Ling was appointed as an Executive Director on
12 January 2018, and served as the Chairman from 12 January
2018.

Mr Ling is currently vice president of PetroChina Company Limited
(Stock Code: 00857.HK), chairman of the board of directors of
PetroChina Pipelines Company Limited (FAAEBAREIA
7)) (“PetroChina Pipelines”). Mr Ling is a professor-level senior
engineer and has over 30 years of experience in the petroleum
and natural gas industry in PRC.

From June 2001, Mr Ling was deputy director of CNPC Xinjiang
Petroleum Administration. From August 2004, he had been
chairman of the board of directors, executive director and
president of Western Pipeline Company Limited (FAZ&EH
FR & LA R]). From March 2009, Mr Ling was president of the
Western Pipeline Branch Company. From November 2013, he
was president of PetroChina West-East Gas Pipeline Branch
Company (FF B/A i 78 5 52 85 B 38 5 /2 7)) and president of West-
East Gas Sales Branch Company (FifRE&i$EE 22 A)). From
March 2016, Mr Ling was vice president of PetroChina Natural
Gas and Pipelines Branch Company and vice president of Natural
Gas Sales Branch Company. From September 2016, he was vice
president of Natural Gas Sales Branch Company and president
of PetroChina Pipelines. Since December 2017, he has been
serving as the vice president of PetroChina and the chairman of
PetroChina Pipelines.
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Mr Zhao Yonggqi (Chief Executive Officer)

Aged 59, Mr Zhao was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer in
December 2013, was appointed as an Executive Director in June
2014 and was appointed as a President in March 2016.

Mr Zhao serves as the president of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company and as the executive director and president
of China Petroleum Hong Kong (Holding) Limited. Mr Zhao is a
professor-level senior economist and he has over 30 years of
experience in the oil and gas industry in PRC. Mr Zhao became
the vice president of PetroChina North China Sales Company
in December 1999, the president of PetroChina Inner Mongolia
Sales Company in October 2004. He became the president of
China Marine Bunker Co., Ltd. in November 2009, the president
and an executive director of PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd.
in August 2011. He became the vice president of PetroChina
Natural Gas Sales Branch Company in November 2017. He has
been serving as the president of PetroChina Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company since October 2018. Mr Zhao was elected a
representative to the 11" National People’s Congress of the PRC
in January 2008.

Mr Zhao Zhongxun

Aged 54, Mr Zhao was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in May 2016.

Mr Zhao is currently the vice president of department of planning
and programming of China National Petroleum Corporation
(“CNPC”) and PetroChina. Mr Zhao is a professor-level senior
economist. He has nearly 30 years of working experience in the
oil industry in PRC. Mr Zhao was appointed as the vice president
of department of planning and programming of PetroChina since
October 20086, the deputy director general of department of
planning and programming of CNPC and the vice president of
department of planning and programming of PetroChina since
June 2007, the vice president of department of planning and
programming of CNPC and PetroChina in May 2011.
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Mr Zhou Yuanhong

Aged 52, Mr Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director on 12
January 2018.

Mr Zhou is currently vice president of M&A Department of
CNPC and PetroChina and director of investee companies of
CNPC and PetroChina. From May 2002, he was deputy head of
finance division of PetroChina Natural Gas and Pipelines Branch
Company. From August 2003, he was deputy head of equity
management office under M&A Department of PetroChina. From
April 2006, Mr Zhou was head of equity management office
under M&A Department of CNPC and PetroChina. From July
2008, he was a full-time director and full-time supervisor of M&A
Department of CNPC and PetroChina. From October 2016, Mr
Zhou has been vice president of M&A Department of CNPC
and PetroChina and director of investee companies thereof. Mr
Zhou is also a director of CNPC Capital Company Limited (Stock
Code: 000617.SHE), a listed company on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. He has been serving as the president of Strait Energy
Industry Fund Management (Xiamen) Co., Ltd. (/& It 88 JB = % &
+ &I (EFY) AR QA and the executive president of Strait
Energy Limited since November 2018.

Mr Miao Yong (Chief Financial Officer)

Aged 47, Mr Miao was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 6 November 2018.

Mr Miao is currently chief accountant of Natural Gas Sales Branch
Company. Mr Miao was appointed to the aforementioned position
in July 2017. Mr Miao, being a senior accountant, has over 20
years of working experience in the oil and gas industry in PRC.
From July 2009, he was deputy chief accountant of Finance
Department of PetroChina. From June 2012, he was chief
accountant of PetroChina Southwest Pipelines Branch Company
(FF R A A PEREE 5 A Bl). From December 2016 to July 2017,
he was Chief Accountant of PetroChina Pipelines.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey

Aged 70, Mr Li was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in 1998.

Mr Li is chairman of IAM Family Office Limited (formerly called IAM
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited), a Hong Kong based investment
firm, and has over 35 years’ experience in merchant banking and
commercial banking. He is a non-executive director of The Bank
of East Asia, Limited, an independent non-executive director of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, Kowloon Development Company
Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited and Tai Ping
Carpets International Limited. He was an independent non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited until
24 May 2017. Mr Li has a Master of Business Administration from
Columbia University and a Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering
from Brown University.

Dr Liu Xiao Feng

Aged 57, Dr Liu was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 16 April 2004.

Dr Liu has more than 23 years of experience in corporate finance
and has worked in various international financial institutions
since 1993, including N.M. Rothschild & Sons, NM Rothschild &
Sons (Hong Kong) Limited, JP Morgan Chase, DBS Asia Capital
Limited, China Resources Capital Holdings Company Limited. He
was an independent non-executive director of Haier Electronics
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1169) since June 2007 up
to June 2014, an independent non-executive director of Hisense
Home Appliances Group Company Limited (stock code: 921)
since September 2017 up to August 2018, an independent non-
executive director of Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 196)
since January 2008, an independent non-executive director of
Cinda International Holdings Limited (stock code: 111) since
July 2016, the independent non-executive director of Sunfonda
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1771) since May 2017 and
the independent non-executive director of AAG Energy Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2686) since August 2018, the issued
shares of all of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is also currently an
independent director of UBS Securities Co., Ltd. Dr Liu obtained
a master’s degree and a Ph.D. from the Faculty of Economics,
University of Cambridge in 1988 and 1994 respectively, a Master
of Science degree in Development Studies from the University
of Bath, England, in 1987, and a Bachelor of Economics degree
from Southwest University of Finance and Economics, China
(previously known as Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics,
China) in 1983.
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Mr Sun Patrick

Aged 61, Mr Sun was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 18 February 2016.

Mr Sun is currently an independent non-executive director of
Trinity Limited and Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd.,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of CRRC Corporation Limited
and China Railway Construction Corporation Limited, both of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Mr Sun was an independent non-executive director and non-
executive chairman of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(2004-2015) and an independent non-executive director of China
Railway Signal & Communication Corporation Limited (2015-
2018), both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong, and
Chairman of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies
(2013-2015). Before that, he was the senior country officer and
head of investment banking for Hong Kong of JP Morgan Chase,
group executive director and head of investment banking for
Greater China at Jardine Fleming Holdings Limited. He was a
member of the Takeovers & Mergers Panel and the Takeovers
Appeal Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission,
deputy convenor of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
and a council member of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Sun graduated from the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania, the United States, with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Economics in 1981. Mr Sun also completed the
Stanford Executive Program of Stanford Business School, the
United States, in 2000. Mr Sun is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, the United Kingdom, and a
fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper

Aged 73, Mr Tsang was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 27 August 2019.

Mr. Tsang is currently an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited (stock
code: 3613), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange, an honorary professor at the Chinese University of
Hong Kong, convenor of Hong Kong Vision Research Programme
(& % BE = 5t 2), vice chairman of Hong Kong Policy Research
Institute Limited and an advisor of the Democratic Alliance for the
Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang also dedicates
himself to education in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang obtained a Bachelor
of Arts degree and certificate in education from the University of
Hong Kong in 1968 and 1981, respectively. He then obtained a
master’s degree in education from the University of Hong Kong
in 1983. He is currently a manager of Pui Kiu Primary School and
supervisor of Pui Kiu Middle School and Pui Kiu College.

From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Tsang was the chairman of the
Democratic Alliance for the Betterment of Hong Kong (& = &
7 B B3). From 1993 to 2013, Mr. Tsang was a member of the
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. From 1996 to 2000, he served as a member of the
Standing Committee on Language Education and Research.
From 1996 to 2005, he was a member of the Council of the
Open University of Hong Kong. From 1997 to 1998, he was a
member of the Provisional Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR”). From 1998 to 2016,
he was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR. From
2002 to 2008, he was a member of the Executive Council of the
HKSAR. From 2008 to 2016, he was the president of the 4th
and the 5th Legislative Council of the HKSAR. In addition, from
2001 to 2007, he was a non-executive Director of the Securities
and Futures Commission. From 2002 to 2008, he was a member
of the Disaster Relief Fund Advisory Committee. From 2003 to
2008, he was a member of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption Complaints Committee. From 2005 to 2008, he
was a member of the Executive Committee of the Commission
on Strategic Development and a board member of the Airport
Authority. From 2017 to 2018, he served as a member of the Task
Force on Land Supply.
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Company Secretary

Mr Cheng Cheng (Vice President, Company Secretary)

Aged 52, Mr Cheng was appointed as the Company Secretary on
11 July 2016. He served as an Executive Director from June 2004
to May 2016 and is currently a Vice President of the Company.

Mr Cheng is a senior economist and has over 30 years experience
in the oil and gas industry in China including 3 years in Canada
as vice president of CNPC International (Canada) Limited.
Mr Cheng served as the vice president of Natural Gas Sales
Branch Company since October 2018.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr Miao Yong

Aged 47, Mr Miao was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 12 January 2018 and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company on 6 November 2018. Mr Miao’s biography is set out
on the page 69.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and
in which a Director of the Company or any entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Commencement of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFQ”)) which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which any
such Director and chief executive of the Company is taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or which (b)
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which (c) were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuer under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are set out
below.

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 Each of the Company

ESER

RIZB-NAF+-A=1+—H ARFAZEERT
ZITHRABRAR R S EAHEBAE (Fx R E
7 MGG (TS MG ]) EXVER) 2 i
fn - RO REST  #E : @ REEHFIME
EPIEXVERFE 7 K8 BAMEARRR LB
BRSOXR (BRERERZ M BRI Z GRS
FRERARRTAEEREEITHRABRESE 212
BmIORR) ¢+ KO IRIFEF S LG EPISE 352 15%7A
FIARRBIMGFEZ ECMAZERIORE  3(C)
IRIRR R PrE S LR ARA (T ERRA) Tz L
TAESETESFRXH ZFETABANEARTR K
BT RS SOR R ESIANT ©

AARBREECN BTZERER

Capacity and Percentage
Nature of of Issued
Number of Interests Shares
Name Shares Bk (HEBTRA
H®H R EE EEME 2B
Li Kwok Sing Aubrey (note) T2 (M) 1,000,000  Beneficial owner 0.012%
EmEA A
Note: PEE -

The interests held by Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey represent long position in
the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries and
its holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SHARE OPTIONS

During the Period, the Company does not have any outstanding
share options granted to the directors and employees of the

Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN

SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
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maintained under Section 336 of the SFO, showed that the 15]% 3B ERARNAFE 2 FBRRRELMET

Company has been notified of the following interests, being 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are
in addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company.

C ARNBICEBRAM TN EBRERESANRD
ﬂHxZ%%iLALZV"\ o ZEWR AT XA
NAEERETETHRABIHES UINZ R -

Number of shares
ROHE Percentage of
Direct Indirect issued shares
interest interest HEBTRE
Name £ iR EEES ZBEDH
PetroChina Hong Kong Ltd. RABEBBERADA
(“PetroChina Hong Kong”)(" ([RRBEE]D 4,708,302,133 (1) - 54.38%
4,708,302,133 ()
PetroChina Company Limited REARRARRD
(“PetroChina”)(" AR
([HREE®R])D - 4,708,302,133 (1) 54.38%
4,708,302,133 (1F)
Fairy King Investments Ltd.? Fairy King Investments Ltd.® 277,432,000 (L) - 3.20%
277,432,000 (f7)
CNPC International Ltd. (“CNPCI")@ CNPC International Ltd.
(TCNPCI])®@ - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
277,432,000 (#7)
China National Oil and Gas HEARAARHR
Exploration and Development FE# A ([CNODC )@
Corporation (‘CNODC")? - 277,432,000 (L) 3.20%
277,432,000 (1)
China National Petroleum FEAERAAREE AT
Corporation (‘CNPC”) ([FEAEHREE]) @ - 4,985,734,133 (1) 57.58%

4,985,734,133 (11)
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Notes:

m PetroChina Hong Kong is a wholly-owned by PetroChina, which
in turn is owned as to 80.80% by CNPC. Accordingly, CNPC is
deemed to have interest in the 4,708,302,133 (L) shares held by
PetroChina Hong Kong.

@ Based on the Disclosure of Interests Online (DION) System of the
Stock Exchange, Fairy King Investments Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CNPCI, which in turn is wholly-owned by CNODC,
which is in turn owned as to 100.00% by CNPC. Accordingly,
CNPC is deemed to have interest in the 277,432,000 (L) shares
held by Fairy King Investments Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company were not aware of any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meetings of any other members of the Group, or any options in
respect of such capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the issuance of RMB3,350 million in aggregate
principle amount of 1.625% USD settled convertible bonds due
2019 with conversion price of HK$6.60 per share set out in Note
31 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 December 2019 and there
had been no other exercise of convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the Year.

Among the above mentioned convertible bonds of RMB3,350
million, the Company has redeemed the convertible bonds with
principal amount of RMB10 million upon its maturity on 25 July
2019. The remaining convertible bonds were converted and
586,411,405 ordinary shares were issued in this connection.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE i HITEEZEE

DIRECTORS

ARREREI BB IFMTEERIE LTRANE
BWBHELZFRBIUERE - NARABRS - A
BYIFATESHRBEILAL -

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS FER S

FARAIET 2 HEEERS - ARE ETRAE
1AATEITANTHEE

Continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, which
are required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, are as follows.

Annual cap
for 2019
Nature of transactions Details Amount incurred for 2019 “E-NE
RHME B3 “E-NEEEZEE FELR
RMB'million RMB'million
AREBETL AREBETL
(i) Provision of products by the CNPC As disclosed in Company’s 35,821 40,958
Group to the Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
HHEENASEREED and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARAIRBMAZE—+F+-AZTNA
ZRERZE—+ETZA—H
ZHRHRRE
(i Provision of services by the CNPC As disclosed in the Company’s 9,410 9,428
Group to the Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
PHEBNASERERYE and circular dated 1 December 2017
REAARIRBA-S—+F+—-A=1+hA
ZRERZE—tET-A—H
ZHRHRRE
(i) Provision of products by the Group As disclosed in the Company’s 5,653 7,959
to the CNPC Group announcement dated 29 November 2017
AEERTHERREER and circular dated 1 December 2017
RAARIRBA-S—+F+-A=1+hA
LRERZT—tFTZA—H
ZHEHRRE
(iv) Provision of services by the Group As disclosed in the Company’s 16,486 18,740

to the CNPC Group
AEERPHEERMERS

announcement dated 29 November 2017

and circular dated 1 December 2017
RARFAERA-T—+E+—-A=Z+ANH

IAERZE—tE+=A—H

ZBHRRE

EmERARLH

SE-NEFERE



Directors’ Report
EEEREE

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company. The Independent Non-executive Directors confirmed
that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions were entered
into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) on normal commercial terms or better; and (c) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the independent auditor of the Company to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
of the Company has issued its letter containing its following
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on pages 224 to 228 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

Nothing has come to the independent auditor’s attention that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;
(ii) are not in accordance with the pricing policies of the

Company if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group;

(iii) have not been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the cap disclosed in previous announcement
dated 29 November 2017 and circular dated 1 December
2017 with respect to the aggregated amount of each
transaction involved.

A copy of the auditor’s report has been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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The Company has confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Group has entered into certain entrustment management
contracts in relation to the management and operation of the
Leng Jiapu Contract and PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co.,
Ltd.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s purchases and revenue from sales
of goods or rendering of services attributable to major suppliers
and customers are as follows:

Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier
Percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s largest customer
Percentage of revenue from sales of goods or
rendering of services attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers

53%

55%

20%

23%

PetroChina, a listed subsidiary of CNPC, is the Group’s largest
supplier and customer.

Save for the above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the close directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company)
has an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to RMB1,096,463.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the employees of the
Company are reviewed and recommended by the Remuneration
Committee to the Board, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is sufficient
public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the Year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed below, as at 24 March 2020, none of the
Directors and their respective associates had any interest in a
business which competes or may compete with the businesses of
the Group (as would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10
of the Listing Rules if each of them were a controlling shareholder).
Nature of interest

Name of Director Name of company

FrENBUR

AEERBEERMNFHBROAFTHE ESRER
BZRER  BERABESIE

ARREERETINMEmFMEESLEELAR
AR EEE  BEENEARBMALETISHIE
ETEHYMESSFHERR

RIAATFIXE

BREBEEFEAFREESHNENAEE  EFHR
REFARBEFEERITRAE 25% 2 2HAR

BHEE -

BEER

BRI EEN  RZE_TF=A=+MA -
FEFANEE A ZHEALTRER HAKE X
BRAREHFZEBTREEMER(HEES
AYERRRBIR - BIZERE L AR RIS 8.10 16 T LA

) -

Nature of competing business

BEEnR NE BB EEME BEEBME
Ling Xiao PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and
EE B A S B 42 £ marketing of crude oil and natural gas
Rk RAR KR FHERAER
3% e &
Zhao Zhongxun PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and
i B 8 H B A of Department of marketing of crude oil and natural gas

Planning and
Programming

#8581 & B A

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Name of Director Name of company Nature of interest
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Nature of competing business

ExnR NEIECE EmME BEEBME

Zhou Yuanhong PetroChina Vice President Exploration, development and product and

BES W A h of M&A Department marketing of crude oil and natural gas
BERELEE ALK Rom R RARZ MR FEEEE R

3% # &
Miao Yong Natural Gas Sales Chief Accountant Marketing of natural gas
BB Branch Company  # & &t A0 KARMSHRE
RARHEE D QA

As the Board is independent of the board of the above entity, HMRARFEETGHE LN LAAFEEE @ ALK

the Company has therefore been capable of carrying on its ARIRESBI A Ll ERIEAFRAELSHE KRG

businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from, the above 7 °

business.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE STATEMENT OF Bk RBHEEE

FINANCIAL POSITION

The outbreak of novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) epidemic
in early 2020 has led to a series of precautionary and control
measures implemented across the globe and also casted
downward pressure on domestic and international energy prices.
[t may have certain impacts on the Group’s business operations.
The Group will pay close attention to the development of the
epidemic and assess its impact on the financial position, cash
flows and operating results. Up to the date of issue of these
financial statements, the assessment is still in progress and the
related impact could not be reasonably estimated at this stage.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the Year have been audited by
Messrs KPMG, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for reappointment of Messrs KPMG
as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhao Yongqi
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 March 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIZHETRE

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Kunlun Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kunlun
Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 245, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZRHERE

FASERTEIR

AREFFEERERMANEZHE - RRE AR
FAMBREANBARSEENSTH - GLFHE
ERPIFEFBEFAMBREMDEERETR
2 o BT SLELFRIEHEBIER

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants

FERIER AR (TLNG D) in TR AR E

ERR A IR AN 16 RE 1342

The Key Audit Matter
BEETTEE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in respect of the Group’s LNG processing plants
amounted to RMB7,830 million.

i
mE
7T

fh$+—H:+fH B BEEEMLNG IR
EEENYE  BERXHEAEARKT780HS

o i}

In view of the volatile LNG prices, management considered
that there were indicators that the Group’s property, plant
and equipment attributable to different LNG processing
plants may be impaired as at 31 December 2019.

HARINGERKE  EBERAR_ZT—NLF+_H
=+—H ESBEINGNIHmOYE  KEREBHFE
/)ﬁk@}—u‘“ °

Management performs impairment assessments of the
Group’s LNG processing plants whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of these assets may not be recoverable.

BEFHRIBFARERR EKIWGMIFmﬁﬁ@i
ERWEE - ERESHEETRER -

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 134 to 136.

136 A M5 3(m)(i) BT 2 5T R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNMEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of LNG
processing plants included the following:

HAIBLATE LNG I TRRERER BT EREA TR

° assessing management’s identification of CGU,
the allocation of assets to each CGU and the
methodology adopted in the preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
our understanding of the Group’s LNG processing
business and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

. BERME BSBEINGINITEBHIRRKIEH
BT ERMNENR Gt EEBERSELBUNR
E %IE%‘EEEE%EE%TLZE%E’U’n‘@ﬁb&&ﬁéﬁﬁ
E"Hﬁfﬁiﬁiuﬂ HERE

° assessing management’s cash flow forecast for
each CGU by comparing the key assumptions
adopted by management, in particular, forecast
LNG selling prices, forecast production costs and
expenses and the discount rate applied, with our
understanding, experience and knowledge of the
Group’s LNG processing business and the LNG
industry in general;
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Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants (Continued)

AHERIE R AR (TLNG ) hn TR HYRE ()

The Key Audit Matter

BERENSEE

Each LNG processing plant operated by the Group has
been identified as a separate cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
for impairment assessment purposes. Management
compares the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment allocated to each CGU with respective
recoverable amount, which is estimated by preparing a
discounted cash flow forecast, to determine the amount
of impairment loss, if any. The preparation of discounted
cash flow forecasts involves the exercise of significant
management judgement in determining the relevant inputs
to the discounted cash flow forecasts and the assumptions
adopted therein, including forecast LNG selling prices,
forecast production costs and expenses and the discount
rates applied.

FEETRENRR - EBESEELNG NIRRT R
UMREEABM([ReEESN]) - WEHLEYE -
BE RSB ENREEETRBSRESAZELNr KBS
REETRERE () - EERNERMELNIERE
h o BEEFRSEBARBRRNEE (2EBARKING
HEER  £ERAMAMESERARKANTIREK)
YRR &R

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 134 to 136.
BB Y FEIREN G 16 R 134 2 136 BNt 3(m)i) B S 51 R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAEEZEE

° comparing the forecast LNG selling prices with
external market data;

. AR BRI B R B TEDBIAR 2R LNG 35 & B 18 B T 5 8%
HEITHLE

° comparing key financial data, including revenue,
production costs and expenses, in the cash flow
forecasts with the budgets approved by the board
of directors;

. HOREDRI P B S BUR (B IR - A ERAF
B EKESSHENTEERHNEIRETILE

o assessing whether the discount rates applied in the
cash flow forecasts were within the range of those
adopted by other companies in the same industry;

. FHERERRTRANNTIREERERITEANA L
AERANESESEER

° comparing the actual results for the current year with
management’s estimates in their cash flow forecasts
prepared in the previous year to assess the historical
accuracy of the management’s forecasting process;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Assessing impairment of liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) processing plants (Continued)

FHERIER AR (TLNG ) tn TR AV RE ()
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The Key Audit Matter
BREETTEE

N

We identified assessing impairment of LNG processing
plants as a key audit matter because the impairment
assessments involve the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting LNG
selling prices, production costs and expenses and in
determining appropriate discount rates, all of which could
be subject to management bias in their selection.

BRORERNATEE R EELEAHE - LERIEARRK
LNGHE B - AEKAME B HFERIA MR AB & BT
RBE - AREANAGRAAEXIEEBRANTE
FAIRE RS LNG I TR H BB S AN FHIBISR T SR -

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy 3(m)(ii) on pages 134 to 136.
T E B IRZ AL 16 K 5 134 2 136 B 15 3(m)(i) B9 2 5TEIFR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENETNMEEZEE

o performing sensitivity analyses of the key
assumptions adopted by management, including
forecast LNG selling prices, forecast production
costs and expenses and the discount rates applied,
to assess what changes thereto, either individually
or collectively, would result in a different conclusion
being reached and assessing whether there were
any indicators of management bias in the selection
of key assumptions; and

. HREARTEEBRANSERERR  BEKR
KING HEEB - EEKAME A A NIRAFTHE
$ ETBRMEDN - URHE R RR BB EE

BRI BENRERNTEREETSIAMS

REERTESFETAEREEBRANER @ &

{Ex

° assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of LNG processing plants with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

. RIBRITETEYNER - e EXKEFEESTE
HEFHBEING N THRERHNEE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FEMBRRREBETREUIMER

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
IR ER &

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B SRR &
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Independent Auditor’s Report
WIZHETRE

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Wai Shun Lee.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
GeazmikiiER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Revenue WA 6 113,313 105,470
Other gains/(losses), net Hilhss /(B18)  F8 7 364 (259)
Interest income FLEWA 8 274 295
Purchases, services and others BREE - RIS R EAD (85,116) (78,249)
Employee compensation costs B B & A 9 (5,134) (4,845)
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation WE - BREREE (6,350) (6,189)
Impairment loss on property, VI - B KRR
plant and equipment PERIEN, = 16 (404) (420)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 5% « —RIEMEEE R (3,112) (3,389)
Taxes other than income taxes BRETISBLLASN 2 Bi 1R (472) (468)
Interest expenses FEZH 10 (988) (1,130)
Share of profits less losses of: FEAE = R BB 1R -
— Associates -Hr=Enm 951 858
— Joint ventures -6&ME 19 319 311
Profit before income tax expense FRFr 58 & A AR T 11 13,645 11,985
Income tax expense Frigii & A 13 (4,074) (3,772)
Profit for the year FREF 9,571 8,213
Other comprehensive income: Hh 2wk -
ltem that will not be reclassified N EHHEEER
to profit or loss: ZIER -
— Fair value gain/(loss) on other financial -EtemBEEs A AFE
assets (non-recycling), net of tax Wz, (B8 (AT [E
ZEm) - HIRBIER 65 (127)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently HignEfHoEEEs
to profit or loss: ZIER :
— Exchange differences on translation - B mEBmE
of financial statements, net of nil tax, of: ZIEH Z%E
MBRZTHIAE -
— Subsidiaries - f A 168 120
— Associates - B N A 14 (68)
— Joint ventures -BEE 20 63
Other comprehensive income for the year £REM2EKZE 267 (12)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZMEKEHATE 9,838 8,201
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Profit for the year attributable to: FAEMERT :
— Owners of the Company - RNARRER 5,551 4,634
— Non-controlling interests — FEPE I R R 4,020 3,579
9,571 8,213
Total comprehensive income for the year FARLEEREREE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company - NARRER 5,779 4,654
— Non-controlling interests — JEFE R 4,059 3,547
9,838 8,201
Earnings per share for profit attributable RABIRF LR Z
to owners of the Company & 14
- Basic (RMB cent) -BERK(ARES) 66.71 57.41
— Diluted (RMB cent) -#HE(ARED) 64.64 54.68

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(2).

The notes on pages 97 to 245 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to owners of the

Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in Note

15.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ZEUMBIRAFE

As at 31 December 2019 R=—Z—AF+-_HA=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
BRE ARBEERT AREKBEER
Assets EE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B K& 16 105,776 95,933
Advanced operating lease payments TR EEHEER 17 - 3,872
Investments in associates REE N T ZIRE 18 5,712 4,124
Investments in joint ventures REBLEZRE 19 3,203 2,870
Intangible and other non-current assets BERHMIERBEE 21 2,190 1,889
Deferred tax assets BT IR S B 32 1,366 1,242
118,247 109,930
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 1,398 1,865
Accounts receivable FEUTBR 5K 24 2,792 2,459
Prepaid expenses and other current assets BENREREMEEEE 25 6,820 5,859
Cash and cash equivalents RekIReEFEER 26 18,640 20,474
29,650 30,657
Total assets WEE 147,897 140,587
Equity R’
Capital and reserves attributable ARRREEMBERR
to owners of the Company fHiE
Share capital %N 27 71 65
Retained earnings BIEEF 28 28,484 25,362
Other reserves HAh i 28 21,433 17,277
49,988 42,704
Non-controlling interests FEEHI R R 29,197 27,390
Total equity R 79,185 70,094
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HEMBIRAR

As at 31 December 2019 A -ZE—AF+-A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-REF —E-N\EF
Note RMB’million RMB’million
B 5T AREEERT AREBHETT
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities REaE
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities JEN IR KR ERTBE 29 29,300 27,355
Income tax payable FETFT1S AR 32 728 794
Other tax payable HEApERTRIA 272 464
Short-term borrowings MHIEE 30 8,772 7,072
Convertible bonds A EEHA(E 25 31 - 3,306
Lease liabilities HEaRE 33 225 150
39,297 39,141
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Long-term borrowings REIEE 30 25,727 28,163
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIERE 32 1,697 1,292
Lease liabilities HEaRE 33 393 53
Other liabilities HEivafs 1,598 1,844
29,415 31,352
Total liabilities #EE 68,712 70,493
Total equity and liabilities EaRkAERRE 147,897 140,587
Net current liabilities REBEEFE 9,647 8,484
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 108,600 101,446

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
24 March 2020.

Zhao Yongqi
K
Executive Director #17TE %

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

The notes on pages 97 to 245 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEDEER

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

ADARFES Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity
Rk RERA  HAtRE Nt EBHMER  ERER
Note RMB'million  RMB’million  RMB'million ~ RMB'million  RMB’million ~ RMB'million
izt ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARYEER ARMAEEn ARYEER
Balances at 1 January 2018 R-F-\F-A-REH 65 25,046 14,680 39,791 25,600 65,391
Changes in equity for 2018; - )\ERREE
Proft for the year i - 4,634 - 4,634 3579 8213
Other comprehensive income Rt 2EYE - - 20 20 (32) (12)
Total comprehensive income EmEENRLE
for the year - 4,634 20 4,654 3047 8,201
Transfer between reserves GlEmek - (2,576) 2576 - - -
Final dividend for 2017 ZE-HERIRE 15 - (1,742) - (1,742) - (1,749)
Acquistion from non-controling e sl
interests - - - - (20) (20)
Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BRAERHIEiER 28 - - - - (2,891) (2,891)
Capital contributions from FEnitEG TR
non-controling interests - - - - 1,878 1878
Disposal of subsidiaries REMEBAA - - = - (r24) (r24)
lssue of shares upon conversion AT EABIRFFIERARA 31
of convertiole bonds - - 1 1 - 1
- (4318 2517 (1,741) (1,757) (3,49)
Balances at 31 December 2018~ R=E-NFt+ZA=T-R#k 85 25,362 17217 42,704 27,390 70,004
EmeeRERAA
— P NEEERE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEHEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARFEN Non-
Share Retained Other controlling Total
capital earnings reserves Sub-total interests equity
kx  RERA  HAtRE Nt OEBHMER  EREE
Note RMB’million  RMB'million  RMB’million  RMB'million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB'million
izt ARMEER ARMEER ARMEER ARYEER ARMAEER ARYEER
Balances at 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-A-REH 65 25,362 1721 42,704 27,390 70,004
Changes in equity for 2019: “E-NEERRE
Proft for the year ERET - 5,551 - 5,551 4,020 9,571
Other comprehensive income At EEYE - - 28 28 39 27
Total comprehensive income ERRENEEE
for the year - 5,551 228 5119 4,059 9,838
Transfer between reserves ERER - (598) 598 - - -
Final dividend for 2018 “2-\FRERE 15 - (1,831) - (1,831) - (1,831)
Acquistion from non-controling AR R
interests - - - - 16 M
Dividend to non-controling interests ~ BRERHI1E 2R 2 8 - - - - (3.222) (3,222
Capital contrioutions from ksl ER T
non-controling interests - - - - 853 853
Acquistion through business ERERAMETIE
combination 38 - - - - 236 236
Disposal of subsidlaries RENEAF - - - - (46) (46)
lssue of shares upon converson - AT EAEFBRFATEEARE 31
of convertiole bonds 6 - 3,330 3,336 - 3,336
6 2429) 3928 1,505 (2.25) 14)
Balances at 31 December 2019~ W=ZF-AF+-A=+-BEH m 28484 21,433 49,988 29,197 79,185

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

The notes on pages 97 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.

T AL RE R EET o

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

i - R—ZTE—hh&F—F—8B  AEBEFERALETE
AT R E B ISRELERE 165 « RiEM
B2BMEES(R) °

597 E 245 AWM IR AR IR 2 — 87 -




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F)\F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
P ARBEERT ARKBET
Cash flows from operating activities REEBFMBZRERE
Profit for the year F N F 9,571 8,213
Adjustments for: FEE -
Income tax expense Fri5HiE A 4,074 3,772
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation e « BRENREE 6,350 6,189
Share of profits less losses of associates JE (Bt & 2 Rl e F Rk B 18 (951) (858)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures EhEERFRTBER (319) (311)
Impairment loss on property, Vs~ BB KR
plant and equipment BIEFBE 16 404 420
Impairment loss on intangible assets B EERBEEE 21 16 103
Net (gains)/losses on disposal of property, HEME - HEREHEZ
plant and equipment (Wz=) /B 1BIF58 7 () 10
Net losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR BB FE - 2
Net exchange losses bE X B 7 288 758
Interest income FLEWA (274) (295)
Interest expense FEZ 988 1,130
Changes in working capital: LEERH
Accounts receivable R 3R (244) (170)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets AN FARHEM R EE (358) 33
Inventories FE 471 (379)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities JEERA KR EETBE 275 1,654
Other tax payable HApERTIR (192) 40
Cash generated from operations KREEE RS 20,097 20,311
Income tax paid EFTER (4,012) (3,293)
Net cash generated from operating REEBREECRESTE
activities 16,085 17,018
BAERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GRBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

—HhETA=+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Note RMB’million RMB’million
ByaE AREEERT AREKBET
Cash flows from investing activities ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁzfﬂﬁﬁs
Dividends received from associates RN ) #S) 781 470
Dividends received from joint ventures =) iﬁﬁ%H&HXZHXE'\ 208 259
Acquisition of subsidiaries i NS 38 (667) =
Acquisition of associates G lN (737) =
Acquisition of joint ventures WS B - (325)
Capital contributions to associates MEBtERNRNEE (777) (442)
Capital contributions to a joint venture m—EEELETE (201) @)
Proceeds from disposal of advance HEBMEERERZ
operating lease payments Fr{S 5008 - 63
Proceeds from disposal of associates RS A 8l TS EIR 112 53
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 25 REIE - 68
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEREEY
plant and equipment FriS kIR 594 604
Decrease in amounts due FELK R R AR A B 208
from an intermediate holding company e 24 549
Capital expenditure e (9,932) (8,4598)
Interest received 2HFE 284 267
Loans to an associate BT —fEgE A a] (59) (128)
Loans repaid by a joint venture *F'ﬁ/\éﬁt% BEEN 80 -
Loans repaid by third parties =HEEER 13 27
Net cash used in investing activities REAXGMAZREFE | (10,277)| _( (7,000)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEEEME2RERE
Capital contributions from non-controlling FEIE i X B
interests 807 1,726
Dividends paid to owners of the Company BRI AR E 15 & 26(h) (1,831) (1,742)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BT IR R R B 26(b) (3,165) (2,800)
Increase in borrowings fﬁ“i*bu 26(b) 9,343 13,811
Repayment of borrowings BIEEE 26(b) (10,986) (20,348)
Repayment of convertible bonds Eiﬁﬂ%ﬁé}}ﬁfﬁ% 26(D) & 31 (10) =
Interest paid ERFLE 26(b) (1,558) (1,821)
Capital element of lease rentals paid Eﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁﬂifﬁ%ﬁ@ 26(b) (301) (145)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEHES S B0 26(h) (31) (16)
Acquisition from non-controlling interests BEETE (73) (20)
Net cash used in 7L 5E B Fr A
__financing activities . ZEREF®E ] (7,805)| (11,355
Decrease in cash and HeRBRESEEERZ
cash equivalents B (1,997) (1,337)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—B2RE&R
ReZEER 20,474 21,850
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREE o2& 163 (39)
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t-A=+—H2ZHER
at 31 December REEEIEE 26 18,640 20,474
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using ~ Fiid : R=F—h&F—HA—H - MEI EERLIEETE

the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

The notes on pages 97 to 245 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kunlun Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its ultimate holding
company is China National Petroleum Corporation
(“CNPC”) which is a company established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). 4,708,302,133 shares
of the Company which was previously held by Sun
World Limited, the former immediate holding company
of the Company, was transferred to PetroChina Hong
Kong Limited (“PetroChina HK”), which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and is in turn wholly-owned by
PetroChina Company Limited (“PetroChina”), a subsidiary
of CNPC, on 14 May 2019. Since then PetroChina HK has
become the immediate holding company of the Company.
As at 31 December 2019, PetroChina indirectly owned
54.38% (2018: 58.33%) equity interest in the Company.

The address of the Company’s principal office and
registered office are 39/F, 118 Connaught Road West,
Hong Kong and Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures are the sales of natural gas, liquefied
natural gas (“LNG”) processing and terminal business and
transmission of natural gas in the PRC and the exploration
and production of crude oil and natural gas in the PRC,
the Republic of Kazakhstan (“Kazakhstan”), the Sultanate
of Oman (“Oman”), the Republic of Peru (“Peru”), the
Kingdom of Thailand (“Thailand”) and the Republic of
Azerbaijan (“Azerbaijan”).
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H: BAR & § &R’ 2A & Sun World
Limited 5 & 2 2N A 7 4,708,302,133 % % {5
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Bl B—EREBFMKILIZ AR - £
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SRR A A QR 2 54.38% g (ZF—N
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GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the Company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) had two (2018: two)
major production sharing arrangements, located in the
PRC and Azerbaijan respectively. On 30 December 1997,
the Group entered into an oil production sharing contract
(the “Leng Jiapu Contract”) to develop and produce crude
oil in Liaohe, Liaoning Province, the PRC. In 2002, the
Group acquired another production sharing arrangement
to develop and produce crude oil in Azerbaijan. Further
details in relation to the Leng Jiapu Contract and the
Group’s share of results and net assets in this arrangement
are shown in Note 35.

The oil operations in the PRC are conducted through
production sharing arrangements with PetroChina,
whereas the oil operations in Azerbaijan are conducted
through production sharing arrangements with both
PetroChina and a third party. The Group is entitled to a
fixed percentage of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of those oil operations in accordance with the respective oil
production sharing contracts entered into with PetroChina
and the third party.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

—REF (8])

RZBE—NE+-_A=+—H ARQRFKHE
MBAR(SAEIAEEDAEM(ZE—/N\:
M BEXTEEMOKEH - PR EKR
PIEFE - R—NANEF+=-A=1+H" &
SEEZ—HHBERIKER(RRE
ER))  MRAREZELETREREER
e RZTEF - AKERES—HER
DREHE - R EFBRE R EERMA ©
ZREEBERCEMFBERASEERZLH
FTG 2 B ROFEESSIRMIFES5 o

ARERFRZEBRRS - HEsRTEA
HRTM 2 B D B BETAEST - TP 2875
B EMER - JERETE AL —RE
=HRINZERARLZHEMETT - AEE A
RIFEPE M NFE =T D RIFI 2 mEE
mAKERMEALFEREBEE A DL
ZEE - BfFE WARXZH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group. Note 3(z) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Group and
the Group’s interest in associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for other financial assets which are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out in Note 3(h).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 5.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB9,647 million. Notwithstanding the
net current liabilities of the Group at 31 December
2019, the Group’s consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis
because the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) are of the opinion that the Group would
have adequate funds to meet its obligation, as and
when they fall due, having regard to the following:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

(i) the Group expects to obtain credit facility
from China Petroleum Finance Company
Limited (“CP Finance”). On 3 March 2020,
the Group obtained a credit facility of RMB26
billion from CP Finance covering a period
ending 31 March 2021;

(ii) the Group expects to generate operating
cash inflows in the future; and

(iii) the Directors consider that the Group could
obtain financing from various sources of
funding.

Consequently, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other
contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
Notes 3(p) and 3(q) depending on the nature of the
liability.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (see Note 3(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

A listing of the Group’s principal subsidiaries is set
out in Note 42.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group or Company and other parties contractually
agree to share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate or
joint venture that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-date
excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised
as profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture, the
Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture
(after applying the expected credit loss model to
such other long-term interests where applicable (see
Note 3(m)(i)).
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(CONTINUED)

(b)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 3(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses. Impairment
loss is measured by comparing the recoverable
amount of the investment with its carrying amount
(see Note 3(mj(ii)).

Listings of the Group’s principal associates and
joint ventures are shown in Notes 43 and 44,
respectively.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(c) Accounting for production sharing contracts

Production sharing contracts constitute joint
operations. The Group shall recognise in relation to
its interest in joint operations:

)

(i)

(V)

(v)

its assets, including its share of any assets
held jointly;

its liabilities, including its share of any
liabilities incurred jointly;

its revenue from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operations;

its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operations; and

its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly.

(d) Foreign currencies

(i)

(i)

Functional currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The Company’s
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(d) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(i)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date
is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into presentation currency at
the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into presentation currency at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the translation reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including oil and gas
properties (Note 3(f)) and construction in progress,
are initially recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost where it is probable that
they will generate future economic benefits. Cost
represents the purchase price of the asset and other
costs incurred to bring the asset into existing use.
For construction in progress, cost comprises direct
costs of construction as well as interest charges,
and foreign exchange differences on related
borrowed funds to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest charges, during the
periods of construction. Construction in progress is
transferred to property, plant and equipment when
the asset is substantially ready for its intended use.
Subsequent to their initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation, depletion and amortisation (including
any impairment) (see Note 3(m)(ii)).

Depreciation to write-off the cost of each asset,
other than oil and gas properties (Note 3(f)), to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives is
calculated using the straight-line method.

The Group uses the following useful lives for
depreciation purposes:

Interests in
buildings

40 years or over the
remaining period of
respective leases
whichever is the shorter

- Leasehold land  lease term
leased for
own use

= Natural gas 10-30 years
pipelines

- Equipmentand  4-30 years
machinery

— Motor vehicles 4-14 years

- Others 5-12 years

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until the assets are completed and ready
for use.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of assets are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. During the year ended
31 December 2019, management has revised
the estimates of useful lives of the Group’s certain
pipeline facilities from 10 years to 30 years with
reference to the practices commonly adopted by
the companies within the same industry and the
physical condition of the relevant assets resulting in
an increase in profit before tax for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounting to approximately
RMB127 million.

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment are determined by reference to their
carrying amounts and are recorded in profit or loss.

Interest and other costs on borrowings to finance
the construction of property, plant and equipment
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Costs for repair and maintenance
activities are expensed as incurred except for
costs of components that result in improvements
or betterments which are capitalised as part of
property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
their useful lives.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

)

Oil and gas properties

The successful efforts method of accounting is used
for oil and gas exploration and production activities.
Under this method, all costs for development
wells, support equipment and facilities, and proved
mineral interests in oil and gas properties are
capitalised. Geological and geophysical costs are
expensed when incurred. Costs of exploratory wells
are capitalised as construction in progress pending
determination of whether the wells find proved
oil and gas reserves. Proved oil and gas reserves
are the estimated quantities of crude oil and
natural gas, which by analysis of geoscience and
engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable
certainty to be economically producible from a given
date forward, from known reservoirs, and under
existing economic conditions, operating methods,
and government regulation before the time at which
contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably
certain regardless of whether the estimate is a
deterministic estimate or probabilistic estimate.
Existing economic conditions include prices and
costs at which economic producibility from a
reservoir is to be determined. The price shall be the
average price during the 12-month period before
the ending date of the period covered by the report,
determined as an unweighted arithmetic average
of the first-day-of-the-month price for each month
within such period unless prices are defined by
contractual arrangements, excluding escalations
based upon future conditions. The cost shall be that
prevailing at the end of the period.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

)

Oil and gas properties (Continued)

Exploratory wells in areas not requiring major
capital expenditure are evaluated for economic
viability within one year of completion of drilling.
The related well costs are expensed as dry holes
if it is determined that such economic viability is
not attained. Otherwise, the related well costs are
reclassified to oil and gas properties and are subject
to impairment review (Note 3(m)(ii). For exploratory
wells that are found to have economically viable
reserves in areas where major capital expenditure
will be required before production can commence,
the related well costs remain capitalised only if
additional drilling is underway or firmly planned.
Otherwise the related well costs are expensed as
dry holes. The Group does not have any significant
costs of unproved properties capitalised in oil and
gas properties.

The Ministry of Land and Resources in China issues
production licenses to applicants on the basis of the
reserve reports approved by relevant authorities.

The cost of oil and gas properties is amortised
at the field level based on the units of production
method. Units of production rates are based on oil
and gas reserves estimated to be recoverable from
existing facilities based on the current terms of the
Group’s production licenses. The Group’s oil and
gas reserves estimates include only crude oil and
condensate and natural gas which management
believes can be reasonably produced within the
current terms of these production licenses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ji) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment (see Note 3(m)
(i)). Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed.

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(9) Intangible assets (Continued)

(i)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 3(m)(ii)). Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives.

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while
their useful lives are assessed to be
indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life
of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed
annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful
life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of
change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite
lives as set out above.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, are set
out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are
recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus
directly attributable transaction costs, except for
those investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL”) for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair
value of financial instruments, see Note 4.3. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group
are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is
held for the collection of contractual
cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest.
Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest
method (see Note 3(s)(v).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) — recycling, if
the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised,
the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled
from equity to profit or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(h) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(Continued)

(i)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is
not held for trading purposes and on initial
recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity
from the issuer's perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until
the investment is disposed of. At the time of
disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income
in accordance with the policy set out in Note
3(s)(iv).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

FEEBER (R)

(h)

REBRRAFSNWEMRE (F)

(i)

KRERE

REAEH 2 IRERD BRI
NP ER A RIFZBAR
BREWIFUNRZRBHFAR
RN HERIRER - NEEE
WA HEHAE R - BEERE
RIEAFEF AR EE RS
(ARl EERL) - Bt B

EAER c ZEREBUERET
BEAEREL  BEEERT
ARBRERMERARZ EED
B TER - BB EE -
REMEZEREART 2S5
MBRBELFERFEECRA
EOEEE) NEETREE
HE - RHEER - RATFER
H(TAIBEZEER) RRFTZ
CHEEARTAN BTesE
EIEBx - RABHFREEE
2B (THwPERZEATE
SFABSSIR A FET AR
2 E W a ) AR 5 M 5 3(s)(v)
FTEkBURIE A E R B
TR o



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

(A)  Policy applicable from 1 January 20719

Where the contract contains
lease components and non-lease
components, the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and
accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)
(i) Leased assets (Continued)
(i) As a lessee (Continued)

)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease
liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted
to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 3(e) and

3(m)(i).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

)

B

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of
the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero.

The Group presents right-of-
use assets in “property, plant and
equipment” and presents lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019

In the comparative period, as a
lessee the Group classified leases as
finance leases if the leases transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group. Leases
which did not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Where the Group acquired the use
of assets under finance leases, the
amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease
payments, of such assets were
recognised as property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges,
were recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation was
provided at rates which wrote off
the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease
or, where it was likely the Group
would obtain ownership of the asset,
the life of the asset, as set out in
Note 3(e). Impairment losses were
accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out
in Note 3(m)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments were
charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals
were charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they were
incurred.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Where the Group had the use of
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis was
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received
were recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they
were incurred.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(i) Inventories

Inventories include natural gas products, liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”), materials for natural gas
pipelines and crude oil which are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
is primarily determined by the weighted average
cost method, which comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads, but excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the cost of
completion and selling expenses.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 3(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under
the payment terms set out in the contract. Contract
assets are assessed for expected credit losses
(“ECLSs”) in accordance with the policy set out in
Note 3(m)(i) and are reclassified to receivables
when the right to the consideration has become
unconditional (see Note 3(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 3(s)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see Note 3())).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(1) Accounts receivable

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if only
the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been
recognised before the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see Note 3(Kk)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see Note 3(m)(i)).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for ECL on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, accounts and other receivables,
including loans to an associate and joint
ventures, which are held for the collection of
contractual cash flows which represent solely
payments of principal and interest) and debt
securities measured at FVOCI (recycling).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at
FVOCI (non-recycling), are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For undrawn loan commitments, expected
cash shortfalls are measured as the
difference between (i) the contractual cash
flows that would be due to the Group if the
holder of the loan commitment draws down
on the loan and (ii) the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn
down.

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, accounts
and other receivables: effective
interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

FEEBER (R)
(m) FESENEEREHE)
() FKELBTARSHEENE

EEE (&)
AHERREREERE)

HR AT B E ZURIE « T8H
WETRER () M5 E AR
ZHEEARERER - BIEMAK
EBZAHRER - Ai)WE
BERCIRE - AEEESBK
M2 REmME ZEZ =8t

=
= -°

HEMBENFEEX - AHR
TR RRRE R LA T REIR K AL
iF -

- B E MR B E AN
JFE W B R I L At R W R
R AR EE N
BN R EILUE
I54

- PRNESBAE: ¥
BRI -



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for accounts receivable,
lease receivables and contract assets,
are always measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days past
due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

failure to make payments of principal
or interest on their contractually due
dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument's
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the
debtor's ability to meet its obligation
to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument's
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in
the fair value reserve (recycling).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 3(s)(v) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

= significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

= it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when
the Group determines that the debtor does
not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EZ:HK(4E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets (m) EEEENEEREGE)
(Continued)
(i)  Impairment of other assets (i) EMEERE

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets

- oil and gas properties;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
ready for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(m)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(m) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss in respect of
assets other than goodwill is reversed
if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(iiilj Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year.

(n) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into
ordinary shares at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares to be issued is fixed, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments,
i.e. they contain both a liability component and an
equity component.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value based
on the future interest and principal payments,
discounted at the prevailing market rate of interest
for similar non-convertible instruments. The equity
component is the difference between the initial
fair value of the convertible bonds as a whole
and the initial fair value of the liability component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible bond equity reserve
until either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bond
equity reserve, together with the carrying amount of
the liability component at the time of conversion, is
transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. If the bonds are
redeemed, the convertible bond equity reserve is
released directly to retained earnings.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, deposits held with banks and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 3(m)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Accounts payable

Accounts payable are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has unconditional rights to defer
settlements of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

r)

Taxation (Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date
in the countries where the Group, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from initial recognition of
goodwill. The deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

r)

(s)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

The Group also incurs various other taxes and levies
that are not income tax. “Taxes other than income
taxes”, which form part of operating expenses,
primarily comprise resource tax, urban construction
tax, education surcharges and business tax.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group's assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

FEEBER (R)

(r)

(s)

BiE ()

WA R MITREMGNRRAEE
HPAVMMIA R EE AR REET
PSR EER BT MR — RIS
AR —ERRE BT RERTER
Bl IEH - BEIIER T RRF
BEERIBAERE  BEMSHEE
KB &7 Al ARG

AEBTELZEIRPIFHIAINZ E
R IBREE - [FRAABHRAINZH
HIBREEXHN 8D EEE6
BERD  WHEEERT  HEE
BEpnE & ER o

WA K E Uiy 58

BWGEELBAEE B EEKBIED
EmiHE - R Z RS AER
SEHEEE  AAKEEHRZK
i D RSN ©

N

B

WAEERSRF < IEHIREETE
Pk TH A B R R B R T
R BEAAEETR A RKELZ &
mE TEERKRE=ZFTERRZE
TR -  WATBEEERLEMEH
BB - WHRERE S



3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

(CONTINUED)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income
is accrued separately under the effective interest
method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does
not adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
takes possession of and accepts the
products. If the products are a partial
fulfilment of a contract covering other goods
and/or services, then the amount of revenue
recognised is an appropriate proportion of
the total transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and services
promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Rendering of services

The Group's revenue from rendering of
services is primarily attributable to provision
of natural gas pipeline transmission services
and LNG gasification and unloading services.
Revenue from the rendering of these services
is recognised in the profit or loss when
control over these services is transferred
to the customer upon transmission of the
natural gas or the gasification or unloading of
LNG.

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by
the Group as a construction contract when
the contract relates to work on assets under
the control of the customer and therefore
the Group’s construction activities create
or enhance an asset under the customer's
control.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from
the contract is recognised progressively over
time using the cost-to-cost method, i.e.
based on the proportion of the actual costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion
or suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Construction contracts (Continued)

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment
is established.

- Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset (see Note
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

®

Government grants

Government grants are the gratuitous monetary
assets or non-monetary assets that the Group
receives from the government, excluding capital
injection by the government as an investor. Special
funds such as investment grants allocated by the
government, if clearly defined in official documents
as part of “capital reserve” are dealt with as capital
contributions, and not regarded as government
grants.

Government grants are recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group is able to comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Government grants
in the form of monetary assets are recorded based
on the amount received or receivable, whereas non-
monetary assets are measured at fair value.

Government grants received in relation to assets
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
evenly in profit or loss over the assets’ useful lives.
Government grants received in relation to revenue
are recorded as deferred income, and recognised
as income in future periods as compensation when
the associated future expenses or losses arise; or
directly recognised as income in the current period
as compensation for past expenses or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

(u)

v)

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: (i) the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events;
(ii) it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and (iii) reliable
estimates of the amount can be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Retirement benefit plans

The Group contributes to various employee
retirement benefit plans organised by PRC
municipal and provincial governments under which
it is required to make monthly contributions to these
plans at prescribed rates for its employees in the
PRC. The relevant PRC municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of existing and future retired
employees of the Group in the PRC. The Group has
similar retirement benefit plans for its employees
in its overseas operations. Contributions to these
PRC and overseas plans are charged to expense
as incurred. The Group currently has no additional
material obligations outstanding for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of
employees in the PRC or overseas other than the
monthly contributions described above.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

(w)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price); excluding the
impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and including the
impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save). Non-market
performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total amount expensed
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. In addition, in some
circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant
date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant date.
At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital for the shares issued.
When the options expire or are lapsed, the equity
amount recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve is released directly to retained
earnings.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

(x) Related parties

(@

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

U

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3

(CONTINUED)

()

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(Vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vil A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and Executive Directors for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

(CONTINUED)

@

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16,
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the
developments have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the current
or prior periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining
whether an arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC)
15, Operating leases — incentives, and HK(SIC) 27,
Evaluating the substance of transactions involving
the legal form of a lease. It introduces a single
accounting model for lessees, which requires a
lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less (“short-term
leases”) and leases of low-value assets. The lessor
accounting requirements are brought forward from
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 January 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2019. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 17.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition options applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS
16 defines a lease on the basis of whether
a customer controls the use of an identified
asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use.
Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
were entered into or changed on or after
1 January 2019. For contracts entered
into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient
to grandfather the previous assessment of
which existing arrangements are or contain
leases. Accordingly, contracts that were
previously assessed as leases under HKAS
17 continue to be accounted for as leases
under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously
assessed as non-lease service arrangements
continue to be accounted for as executory
contracts.
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(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets which are exempted. As
far as the Group is concerned, these newly
capitalised leases are primarily in relation
to leased office buildings and gas stations
in property, plant and equipment. For an
explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see Note 3(i)(i).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e.
1 January 2019), the Group determined
the length of the remaining lease terms
and measured the lease liabilities for the
leases previously classified as operating
leases at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the
relevant incremental borrowing rates at 1
January 2019. The weighted average of
the incremental borrowing rates used for
determination of the present value of the
remaining lease payments was 4.28%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the following recognition
exemption and practical expedients at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16:
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3
(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

0

(i)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect
of the recognition of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends
within 12 months from the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or
before 31 December 2019;

when measuring the lease liabilities
at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, the Group applied a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar
remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar
economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16, the Group relied
on the previous assessment for
onerous contract provisions as at 31
December 2018 as an alternative to
performing an impairment review.
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(CONTINUED)

(2) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The difference between the operating lease
commitments as at 31 December 2018
and the opening balance for lease liabilities
recognised as at 1 January 2019 arise
primarily from short-term leases and other
leases with remaining lease term ending
on or before 31 December 2019 and the
discounting effect of future lease payments
for the remaining leases.

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31
December 2018.

So far as the impact of the adoption of
HKFRS 16 on leases previously classified as
finance leases is concerned, the Group is
not required to make any adjustments at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, other
than changing the captions for the balances.
Accordingly, instead of “obligations under
finance leases”, these amounts are included
within “lease liabilities”, and the depreciated
carrying amount of the corresponding leased
assets is identified as right-of-use assets.
There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EZ:HK(4E)
(CONTINUED)
(z7  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (2 ETBE2E (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BEBYBHREERFE167%FHE (E)
b. Lessee accounting and transitional impact b. EHEANCTEERABEZE
(Continued) (#%&)
The following table summarises the impacts TRELME N B s 2
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s B 165 H ARE B4R & ik
consolidated statement of financial position: MRFTEECFE
Capitalisation of Carmjing
Carrying amount at operating lease amount at
31 December 2018 Reclassffication contracts 1 January 2019
RZZ-\£ BERE iy 2
t-A=+-RERA Exiv AHERL —A-AzEAE
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARERET AREEET AREEET AREEET
Line items in the consolidated ~ &AHERRES
statement of financial SRAERNERS
position impacted by the ERIE 16558 28EE
adoption of HKFRS 16:
Property, plant and equipment ER T 95,933 4102 641 100,676
~ equipment and machinery - kRS 4375 (642) - 44,733
- right-of-use assets -RREAE - 4,744 641 5385
Advanced operating lease RfEEREER
payments 3872 (3872 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 109,930 230 641 110,801
Prepaid expenses and EREGEL
ofher current assets THAE 5859 (230) - 5629
Current assets HBEE 30,657 (230) - 30,427
Lease liabiites (current) HEAR ()
(note) (M) 150 - 149 299
Current liabilities i =4 39,141 - 149 39,20
Net current iabilities THAETE 8,484 230 149 8,863
Total assets less current BEERRDEE
liabilities 101,446 - 492 101,938
Lease libiltes (non-curren) BEAE(ENE)
(note) (Bz) 53 - 49 545
Total non-current liabilities FraeEaE 31,352 - 492 31,844
Net assets BERE 70,094 - - 70,094
Note: The carrying amounts of obligations under ek : —E—NF—A—H#

finance leases at 1 January 2019 were
included in lease liabilities.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

BEMREAEREEDA
HERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3 EaTBER (48)
(CONTINUED)
(z7  Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (2 SBTTBE2E (&)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) BB BHEERFEI16FHE /(&)

Impact on the financial result and cash flows
of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 January
2019, the Group as a lessee is required to
recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and
the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the previous policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. There is no significant change on the
reported profit before income tax expense
in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, as compared to the
results if HKAS 17 had been applied during
the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the Group as a lessee is required to split
rentals paid under capitalised leases into
their capital element and interest element (see
Note 26(b)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to how
leases previously classified as finance leases
under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than as
operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. Although
total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant
change in presentation of cash flows within
the consolidated statement of cash flows (see
Note 26(c)).

Lessor accounting
The accounting policies applicable to the

Group as a lessor remain substantially
unchanged from those under HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

4.1

Financial risk factors

Exposure to foreign exchange rate risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

Risk management is carried out by the management
of the Group under policies approved by the Board
of Directors. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. There has been no change to the Group’s
exposure to the risks mentioned above or the
manner in which it manages and measures the
risks.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
rate risk primarily through sales and
purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currency giving rise to this
risk is primarily United States dollar (“US
dollar”). The Group is also exposed to
foreign exchange rate risk in respect of the
pborrowings and cash and cash equivalents
which are denominated in Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) and US dollar.

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to foreign exchange rate risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated
using the spot rate at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

RBEREEREMIAATEE(SH)

41 HEEBEZ(E)

(a)

SMERIE (A7)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)

MeER
(MAREHR)
2019 2018
E2-F “E)\F

US dollar HK$ US dollar HKS

i BT e B

RMB’million RMB’million RMB'milion RMB'milion

AE®EER AE¥EER AREBET ARERET
Accounts recevableand  FEMERZIR

other curent assets AthREAE 202 10 - 10

Cash and cash equivalents B RBLSEEE 190 63 314 3
Accounts payable and ERSHR

accrued liabilties Eraf (30) (127) 29) (10)

Borrowings #E (1815) (4,968) (7676) (4:859)

Gross exposUre arising ERZEER

flomrecognised assets  BEEE

and liabiltes 288 (7,459) (5,022 7.39) (4,826)

The Group did not enter into any hedge
contracts during any of the years presented
to hedge against its foreign exchange rate
risk. However, management monitors the
related foreign currency exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4 RBBEKBEERSMTAAFE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIEEEE (E)
(a)  Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued) (a) MERE ()
The following table indicates the instantaneous TRINREAEER RS BR
change in the Group’s profit after tax E¥ B KRR A EERZB E
(and retained earnings) that would arise if REBFE - AEBORTE R
foreign exchange rates to which the Group FI(RRFRBF) # BN & &)
has significant exposure at the end of the (RE&FT 7B E b 2 B B B &5
reporting period had changed at that date, TEE) o
assuming all other risk variables remained
constant.
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
increase in increase in
Increase/ profit for the Increase/ profit for the
(decrease) year and (decrease) year and
in foreign retained in foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rates RMB’million rates RMB’million
FRaFR FREM R
RIFER RIFEA
E= OR2) /& B 3K CRi) /4
tH/ () AR¥BER A/ (TR) AREBET
US dollar £ 5% (373) 5% (370)
(5%) 373 (5%) 370
HK$ BT 5% (251) 5% (241)
(5%) 251 (5%) 241

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of
the instantaneous effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after tax and retained
earnings measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB
at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.

ER2FNNDMERTIAKE
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a

(b)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within
the Group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a
counterparty will default on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk arises
primarily from accounts receivable.

A substantial portion of the Group’s cash at
bank and time deposits is placed with state-
owned banks and financial institutions in
the PRC and management believes that the
credit risk is low.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. Depending on market conditions,
debtors with balances that are past due over
a certain period would be requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience indicates significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases and
the customer bases are separated into
the related parties and third parties. The
management considered that the credit risk
associated with accounts receivable from
related parties is low, taking into account the
financial position, past experience and other
factors of the related parties. The expected
credit loss rate for accounts receivable from
related parties is immaterial under lifetime
ECLs method. Thus, no loss allowance for
accounts receivable from related parties was
recognised.

R EMBRRMEE

—NF+ZA=T-HLEHFE
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

RBEREEREMIAATEE(SH)

41 BEEBEZE(E)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued) b) EFEREE)
The following table provides information TRIEHEEEREEGRE=7
about the Group’s exposure to credit risk EWERFEAZ 2 EERR RTE
and ECLs for accounts receivable from third HEEEE &R
parties:
2019
“E-NF
Provision on
Gross carrying individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
RMERIER BHEE
RAAE EERMK BRE ROGEER BRRME
RMB’million  RMB’million RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBEER % AR®EERT AREEBER
Within 1 year —£R 1,610 (19) 3.16% 47) (60)
Between 10 2 years —EMER 217 (19) 23.45% (62) (75)
Between 2 to 3 years WE=ER 166 (14) 35.81% (54) (68)
Between 310 4 years ZENER 70 (29) 60.79% (29) (54)
Between 4 t0 5 years NERFR 120 (66) 89.28% (48) (114)
Over 5 years AEE 179 (35) 100.00% (144) (179)
2,322 (170) (380) (650)
2018
-3
Provision on
@ross carrying individual Loss
amount basis ECL rates ECLs allowance
L BHEE
REEE BERE BRX EHESEE ERER
RMB'milion  RMB'million RMB'milion  RMB'million
AREBRET ARKAEETL % AR¥BEL AR¥EERL
Within 1 year —R 1,655 (50) 2.99% (48) (98)
Between 10 2 years —EWER 271 9 22.72% (59) (68)
Between 2 to 3 years ME=FR R ) 33.40% (30) 32
Between 3 to 4 years —ERER 133 (79 48.14% (26) (105)
Between 4 to 5 years NERER 70 (12) 065.43% (38) (50)
Over 5 years RELE 143 (18) 100.00% (125) (143)
2,364 (170) (326) (496)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past five years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in

MHEBEREERSMTAAFHE(R)

Bt m bR E & ()
(b) EEERE (&)

BHEEERRENBELSF
ZERBEERTHE - ZFL
KRB L BB E IR 2 &
A~ BB ER P a8 R
Z MR R TR AR 2 &
BERR=E B ZRETH

?__éo

RUBRA R & #E E 2 B8

respect of accounts receivable and contract HIRNFAZ T
assets during the year is as follows:
2019 2018
—2-NF —TN\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREHET
Balance at 1 January R—R—B#&#&% 496 491
Amounts written off s < 518 (5) ®)
Impairment losses recognised, net RZBEERE - 38 59 13
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=1+—R#&#% 550 496
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE

163
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, amounts due from related parties
and loans to third parties included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk. No other financial assets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s liquidity risk management
involves maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. Management prepares monthly
cash flow budget to ensure that the Group
will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group arranges and negotiates financing with
financial institutions and maintains a certain
level of standby credit facilities to reduce the
Group’s liquidity risk.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
net current liabilities of RMB9,647 million.
The Group will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its
liquidity position in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Based on the existing level of gearing and
continued access to funding, the Group
believes that its liquidity risk is not material.

Analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities
based on the remaining period at the date
of the consolidated statement of financial
position to the contractual maturity dates are
presented in Notes 29, 30, 31 and 33.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates and fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out in
below.

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end
of the reporting period.

RBEREEREMTIAATEE ()

41 HEEREZE(E)
(c) FEELEF (&)

ENRBAEARBBERKFIAK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

RBEREEREMIAATEE(SH)

(CONTINUED)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 HEEBEZ(E)
(d) Interest rate risk (Continued) (d) FIEEE(E)
2019 2018
—E-NF ZE-N\EF
Effective Effective
interestrate  RMB’million interest rate RMB’million
ERFE AR%EBEER ERAE ARKBER
Fixed rate borrowings: EERE !
Bank loans RITEN 4.63% 8,583 4.55% 7,451
Loans other than bank loans BRIBITER
N2 B 4.03% 22,894 4.05% 24,823
Convertible bonds AEnEs - - 4.03% 3,306
Lease liabilties (note) HEEE () 4.36% 618 5.27% 203
32,095 35,783
Variable rate borrowings: FERE:
Loans other than bank loans BRIITER
SA9hZ B 3.55% 3,022 4.08% 2,961
Total borrowings BEeE 35,117 38,744
Fixed rate borrowings as EREEAREE
a percentage of total Bott
borrowings 91.39% 92.36%
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 MisE : AEBEFERLERTEN

using the modified retrospective approach
and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS
17. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated. See Note 3(z).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis
points in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit for the year and
retained earnings by approximately RMB25
million (2018: RMB25 million).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit for
the year and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate borrowings
of the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit for
the year and retained earnings is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as
2018.
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern, optimise returns for owners and to
minimise its cost of capital. In meeting its objectives
of managing capital, the Group may issue new
shares, adjust its debt levels or the mix between
short-term and long-term borrowings.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is calculated as the sum of
interest-bearing borrowings (including convertible
bonds, if any) and lease liabilities divided by the sum
of total equity, interest-bearing borrowings (including
convertible bonds, if any) and lease liabilities. The
gearing ratio at 31 December 2019 is 30.72% (2018:
35.60%).

There were no changes in the management’s
approach to capital management of the Group
during the year. Neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured
at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 4

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

RBEREEREMIAATEE(SH)

(CONTINUED)
4.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.3 ADFEMEE (&)
(a)  Financial assets measured at fair value (a) HELIFETNTEZEZHEE (&)
(Continued)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at Fairvalue at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2019 categorised into 31 December 31 December 2018 categorised into
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 218 Level 1 Level2 Level3
R-B-1F R=$-NETtZA=T-A |2 W=E-\E+-f=1-A
tZB=t-A NATEHESEA tZA=1-A HATEEAEA
LAV £-§ 28 #=0 LAY -4 24 =8
RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion
AE¥EEr ARMBERL ARMEER ARMEBR AR¥AER AREAET ARMBET AREEET
Recurringfairvalue ~ E¥HEAFEHE
measurements
Other fiancialassets ~ EftSRiEE
- Listed -t 202 202 - - 121 127 - -
During the years ended 31 December HE_Z-NFR_Z-N\F
2019 and 2018, there were no transfers +—A=+—BLFE " F—
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers A N 58 — A 2 [ 0 4 e A T A
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is BAZ=MxEF=REL -
to recognise transfers between levels of fair AEEMBER TR AT EER
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting 2 BB EER A WRE RS
period in which they occurred. REEY o
Information about fair value measurements BAAVEFEZER
As at the date of the statement of financial REEARREKBE - IE L™
position, all the listed equity securities are Z A FEH R AT ESER
stated at fair values, which have been T2 E 5 RN IEEE P 2
determined by reference to bid prices quoted BAEBMETRE °
in the respective stock exchanges.
(b) Fair value of financial assets and (b)) URFEUNIERZZHBEE

liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 are not
materially different from their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

4.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair value
(Continued)

The fair values of long-term borrowings
are based on discounted cash flow using
applicable discount rates based upon the
prevailing market rates of interest available
to the Group for financial instruments
with substantially the same terms and
characteristics at the date of the statement of
financial position. Such discount rates ranged
from 3.26% to 4.37% (2018: 3.54% to
4.49%) per annum as at 31 December 2019
depending on the type of the borrowings. An
analysis of the carrying amounts of long-term
borrowings is presented in Note 30.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated by the
Group, based on historical experience and other factors
which include expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty and
judgement are described as follows:

(a)

Estimation of oil and natural gas reserves

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are key
elements in the Group’s investment decision-making
process. They are also an important element in
testing for impairment. Changes in proved oil and
natural gas reserves, particularly proved developed
reserves, will affect unit-of-production depreciation,
depletion and amortisation recorded in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for property, plant
and equipment related to oil and gas production
activities. A reduction in proved developed reserves
will increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
charges. Proved reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward, based on new
information, such as from development drilling and
production activities or from changes in economic
factors, including product prices, contract terms or
development plans.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 5

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Estimation of impairment of non-financial
assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
was suffered any impairment. Property, plant
and equipment, including oil and gas properties,
are reviewed for possible impairments whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Determination as to whether and how much an
asset is impaired involves management estimates
and judgements such as future prices of crude oil
and natural gas, discount rate used in discounting
the projected cash flows and production profile.
However, the impairment reviews and calculations
are based on assumptions that are consistent with
the Group’s business plans. Favourable changes
to some assumptions may allow the Group to
avoid the need to impair any assets in these years,
whereas unfavourable changes may cause the
assets to become impaired.

Legal contingencies

The Group is a defendant in certain lawsuits as
well as the named party in other proceeding. While
the outcomes of such contingencies, lawsuits or
other proceeding cannot be determined at present,
management believes that any resulting liabilities will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial
position or financial performance of the Group.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

REVENUE 6

Revenue mainly represents revenue from the sales of
natural gas, LNG processing and terminal business,
pipeline transmission of natural gas and sales of crude oil.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major products or
service lines is as follows:

A

WAEZEREHERAR - LINGII T 2
FREXRT - BEEBERARNEE R
A BAMBHRELNF16RBERN KB
BEFAHZWAREZEmMRBEERAD
LI

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’million  RMB’milion
ARWEEBT ARKBETRL

Disaggregated by major products B ZEmIAREER A D
or service lines

— Sales of natural gas products - HERAREMD 93,467 86,087
- Revenue from LNG processing, —-LNGHIT » S K E

gasification and entrucking service BRIEUA 7,371 7,625
— Revenue from pipeline - EEEHREKA

transmission service 10,471 9,690
— Sales of crude oil - SHERM 2,004 2,068

113,313 105,470

The Group’s revenue are substantially derived from the
sales of goods to customers in the PRC and recognised
point in time.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales and service contracts such
that the above information does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under the
sales or service contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
is disclosed in Note 37.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

7 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

Hitless ~(B548) - 7H88

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

AR¥BEERT ARKBET

Net exchange losses & X EEF (288) (758)

Rental income GiERE AL N 54 70

Government grants BT # BG 348 44
Net gains/(losses) on disposal HEME - BB R&HE

of property, plant and equipment Wz (E18) - F58 2 (10)

Others HAfth 248 395

364 (259)

Government grants for the year ended 31 December 2019
mainly represented compensation of reduction in income
due to the implementation of Value-Added Tax Reform from
the PRC government of RMB294 million (2018: Nil). There
were no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies
attached to the receipts of these grants. There is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such
grant in the future.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

INTEREST INCOME 8 FIBKA
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARMEERT ARBHETL
Interest income on: FIEZ M BB :
— Amounts due from related parties — FEULRRTSE 75 50E 98 107
- Bank deposits - IRITFENR 176 188
274 295
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION COSTS 9 [EEMERE
2019 2018
—®-hE —T-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARBHETL
Salaries, wages and allowances e TERZERL 4,649 4,364
Retirement benefits scheme IRIREETEIH R
contributions 485 481
5,134 4,845

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement plans
organised by municipal and provincial governments for
its staff. The Group is required to make contributions to
the retirement plans at rates ranging from 14% to 20% of
the salaries, bonus and certain allowances of its staff. The
Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with these plans beyond
the annual contributions described above. The Group’s
contributions for the year ended 31 December 2019 were
RMB485 million (2018: RMB481 million).

ERPBUARZATE  AEBRERELK
MRBTREAEE TERNSHETBHER
RIKETE - AEBAKREEBTIHS  BAK
=T EBE 2 14% & 20% A 3R R 81 B H i
Ko Br Bl 2 FEMHIRIN - ANE B EEAE
HZETE AR HMRKEFNNRERE
F-HEZZE-—NFT+_A=+—HLHF
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—\F: ARSI HETT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

10 INTEREST EXPENSES 10 FIBZH

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E2—N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEERT ARBHETL

Interest expenses on: FHEZMEXZH :
Bank loans IRITER 487 298
Senior notes BEEE 240 228
Convertible bonds (Note 31) AT ES (FFE31) 44 131

Other loans, from: EmER 8
— An intermediate holding company - — B R A A 7 30
— CP Finance - RS 516 748
— Fellow subsidiaries S GE NG 318 236
Interests on lease liabilities (note) HESBEZFE (M) 28 13
Less: Amounts capitalised & B beRE (652) (554)
988 1,130

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are
attributable to the construction of qualifying assets. The
average interest rate used to capitalise such borrowing
cost was 4.36% (2018: 4.19%) per annum for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 BREEHERGH
ltems charged in arriving at the profit before income tax BRETISHERANRANEHRATIER ¢

expense include:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Auditors’ remuneration %S AN B &
— audit services - ZE AR 28 25
— non-audit services - IFZBURT 5 4
Cost of inventories recognised ERRRAZ 2 FEKA
as expense 85,294 78,487
Minimum lease payments for leases NERBEESFHERE 175
previously classified as NERKEHECHE
operating leases under HKAS 17* KB E(FEE~ - 454
Depreciation charge and depletion of A TIER 2T & i R 1BFE
— owned property, plant and -BEME - BE
equipment* PET N 5,953 5,984
- right-of-use assets* —ERAEEE" 340 41
Amortisation cost of IATNIE B 2 B EERAR
— advanced operating lease payments —AERIEEB G ERFE 17 5%
for leases previously classified DEACERECHEY
as operating leases under TR EEER
HKAS 17* - 109
— intangible assets -BREE 57 55
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation #TE& - 185 K # i 6,350 6,189

* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the *
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. The depreciated
carrying amounts of the finance lease assets which were
previously included in property, plant and equipment and
advanced operating lease payments are also identified
as right-of-use assets. After initial recognition of right-
of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

AEBDERRETENEZERNEREL
MBREEINEI6RLABR _-F—N
F—A—HZ BN - ARERIRES
B ENEITROBERKEREZR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

12
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESERETIZ#NE
EMOLUMENTS
Details of the emoluments of directors for the years ended HE-Z—NEER-ZE—N\F+A=1+—
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: AIEFEREEZMEFBUT
2019
—B-1F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2019
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
g2 LY S — 3
EEZHe REEEA B HE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®Tn AR%®Tn AR%TR AR%TxR
Directors: I
Mr Ling Xiao EELE - - - - -
Mr Zhao Yongg KRR E - 888 - 74 962
Mr Zhao Zhongxun HEELE - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FRELE - - - - -
Mr Miao Yong BELE - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 264 - - - 264
Dr Liu Xiao Feng 2EEEL 220 - - - 220
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 220 - - - 220
Mr Tsang Yok Sing Jasper LERTE (K -F-NF
(appointed on 27 August 2019) NAZF+AEZR) 7 - - - 77
781 888 - 74 1,743
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 ESRETIZEME (8)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2018
—FN\F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2018
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 0 S Sy IX: 3
EERe  RAEEREA Mg ST @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn
Directors: %
Mr Ling Xiao RERERZF-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —At-BEZE) - - = - -
Mr Zhao Yongg fEp S i - 72 - 23 795
Mr Zhao Zhongxun fizho e - - - - -
Mr Zhou Yuanhong FEBEE (RS- \F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —At-BEZ{E) - - = - -
Mr Miao Yong BEAE(R_Z-N\F
(appointed on 12 January 2018) —A+-REZEHA) - - - - -
Mr Huang Weihe EMRAGE (RS- N\F
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=REE) - - = = -
Mr Wu Enlai REXELE(R-T-NF
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —At=-BEA) - - - - -
Mr Ding Shilu THEEE(RZS-N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —A+=REE) - - = = -
Mr Zhang Yaoming RIBAEE (M- N\E
(resigned on 12 January 2018) —At=-BEA) - - - - -
Mr Li Kwok Sing Aubrey FEELE 257 - - - 257
Dr Liu Xiao Feng BlEzetE+ 215 - - - 215
Mr Sun Patrick FEERE 215 = = = 215
687 772 - 23 1,482

The discretionary bonuses of the Directors are reviewed
and recommended by the Remuneration Committee to the
Board of Directors, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market

statistics.
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

12 DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEE’S 12 EEREIZEME(4E)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

AEEIRFAEEREEEME ALTEE
—Z(ZE—N\F: —R)EF BEZHE
EREMANHRE - FREMNTFHRTEA
(ZZE—N\F : mBH) AL ZBEIT -

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year including one (2018: one) director
whose emolument is reflected in the analysis presented
above. The emoluments payable to the remaining four
(2018: four) individuals during the year are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Salaries and other emoluments e EMMe 5,879 6,519
Discretionary bonuses BEIEAT - —
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 678 775
6,557 7,294

The emoluments fell within MENFTHIEE : Number of Individuals

the following band: VPN
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 TTA T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &L= 1,500,000 75 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T E 2,000,000 77T 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 /87T E 2,500,000 77T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& T E 4,000,000 78 7T 1 1

None of the Directors has waived their remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not incur any severance payment to any director for
loss of office or any payment as inducement to any director

to join the Company (2018: Nil).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrisBi&EH
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBHET

Current tax ENHARE1E

- PRC -/ 3,708 3,455
— Overseas —BoN 221 110
3,929 3,565
Deferred tax (Note 32(b)) IEFERLIE (P& 32(b)) 145 207
4,074 3,772

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for as the
Group has no assessable profit for the year (2018: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations, the PRC corporate income tax rate applicable
to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is principally 25%
(2018: 25%). The operations of the Group’s certain regions
in the PRC have qualified for certain tax incentives in the
form of a preferential income tax rates ranging from 15% to
20% (2018: 15% to 20%).

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the applicable
rates of taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the
Group operates.

HRANEBRAFEL ERRVEN - &
WERBBFSHAREE(ZF—N\F:
&) o

RIERERRAERER AT - BARK
SENFREZHB AR 2 PRI B
KFERB%(ZFT—N\F:25%) A&
BEFEETHE CCEFEETHEESR
B ZEBEUAMGHREEAEE M
BHMENRI5% ZE20% (ZE—N\F : 15% &
20%) °
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13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 13

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax expense
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using

—HhETA=+—HILFE

FrisBigER (§)

AEBERASHE ARG 2 B
ﬁHEAK’EIZqﬂlm%Fﬁ%%ﬂR%ﬁﬁﬁ 12

ok B 477 AR i

the corporate income tax rate in the PRC applicable to the EReEo =207 ¢
Group as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EEBERT ARKBET
Profit before income tax expense BRETSILE A A F 13,645 11,985
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 25% BLIE25% (ZF—/\F : 25%)

(2018: 25%) SEZBIE 3,411 2,996
Under-provision in prior years BEFERETR 47 63
Effect of different tax rates MERER 78 (25) 62
Tax effect of income not subject to tax ~ HEBFIWA Z Fiigmr 2 (75) (80)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HIFE Sk H 2 TS/ 2

for tax purposes 184 220
Tax effect of share of profits less losses — JE{GHEE A alin FBEE 2 s &

of associates (164) (145)
Tax effect of share of profits less losses BT & B HEaFREE 2 MIETE

of joint ventures (61) 61)
Tax effect of deferred tax not recognised ARIEREILEFLIE 2 T & 356 459
Tax effect of withholding tax B Yk IR B 2 TEHFR

on dividends received or receivable ZIRIERE 401 258
Income tax expense Frisiisz 4,074 3,772

The domestic income tax rate used in the calculation
above is the PRC tax rate which is the jurisdiction where
the operations of the Group are substantially based.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

B -

ERFAEMAZBEARSHRBE X S EHR
xR PER/AKEIERGREMEZRDE



14

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SEREXREFERF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BREABNIDBEARTRREGEASE
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of 2P ARES 51 BEIL(ZE—NF
approximately RMB5,551 million (2018: RMB4,634 million) ARM4634BEIT) ARFAREITER
and weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue N84 8321 BER(ZZ—NF :
during the year of approximately 8,321 million shares (2018: 8072 EEMR)ETHE
8,072 million shares).
Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the MATERESNZEBIELARE - GRES
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of B TR BEARREREEEASEE 2% FL
approximately RMB5,577 million (2018: RMB4,722 million) ARBBSTTEBT(ZZE—N\F: AR
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,722 BB TT) R EBERNE T HE4 8,628
approximately 8,628 million shares (2018: 8,635 million ABER(ZZE—N\F :8,63588K)LUT
shares) after adjusting for the effect of convertible bonds, T
calculated as follows:
(i) Profit attributable to owners of the Company (i) AP B RERESET (#8)
(diluted)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Profit attributable to RNA AR FE(R R T
owners of the Company 5,551 4,634
After tax effect of effective BRI S ERESD
interest on the liability BEHSHBRTETE
component of
convertible bonds 26 88
Profit attributable to AR RIBEREME RN (H58)
owners of the
Company (diluted) 5,577 4,722

eatRaRA= (I
B hEEEHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZE—Z— NF+_-_A=+—HLFE

14 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 SREXAREFER(8)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares (i) TERMEFHE (EE)
(diluted)
2019 2018
—g-hE —TNE
million shares  million shares
BER BER
Weighted average number R+=Z—A=+—H#
of ordinary shares at T AR nAE T 8
31 December 8,321 8,072
Effect of conversion of AERES BBy E
convertible bonds 307 563
Weighted average number R+=—A=+—H#H
of ordinary shares AR e I (5E)
(diluted) at 31 December 8,628 8,635

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 15 ZAASKREELIRE
THE COMPANY

(i) Dividends payable to owners of the Company (i) REZESRDTRRABKE
attributable to the year
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EBEER AREHET
Proposed final dividend attributable RAFIRREIGEIR 2
to owners of the Company for 2019 ZE-NFERERE (M3 @)
(note (a)) 2,277 -
Final dividend attributable to owners of 2 UNS &Y
the Company for 2018 (note (b)) ZE-\FERRE (FEE D) - 1,831

184 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

15 DIVIDEND ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company

15  AAFRREMERS (&)

(i) L HMBFEEMRIARRHIERES

attributable to the previous financial year, (REEEHUER ZAT)
approved and paid during the year
2019 2018
—FE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEER AREBET
Final dividend in respect of the previous F—BERRRERE
financial year, approved and (RAFERERT)
paid during the year 1,831 1,742
Notes: MisE -
(@) At the meeting on 24 March 2020, the Board of (@) R-ZE-_ZTF=A-_+HBENE

Directors proposed final dividend attributable to
owners of the Company in respect of 2019 of
RMB26.3 cents per share amounting to a total
of approximately RMB2,277 million. The amount
is based on approximately 8,659 million shares
in issue as at 24 March 2020. The consolidated
financial statements do not reflect this dividend
payable as the final dividend was proposed after
the date of the statement of financial position and
will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation
of retained earnings in the year ending 31
December 2020 when it is approved at the 2020
Annual General Meeting.

Final dividend attributable to owners of the
Company in respect of 2018 of RMB23.0 cents
per share amounting to a total of approximately
RMB1,831 million were approved by the
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting on 6
June 2019. The amount is based on approximately
8,080 million shares in issue as at 19 March 2019
which was paid on 28 June 2019.

HE EESEBIRELRARK
REE-_Z—NFRAREER
263ARED  BEAHXNHAR
B 27T BETL - ZSBIVERS
ToTF=-A - FHHBETZY
8,659 B BRI FHE o B Lt
REARR SHEN A AR % B HAfR IR
% B R RIEZ SR A VISR
=N FRIE-EBERFREKR
T AR ZEREEHNES
ZEZEF+ZA=1+—HIEFE
PSR R ARFEFNZ DK

ARABIIRHEEN —Z— N FARERL
BESR20ARE S - BHE
HHOARK1,831BEL BEE
R-ZE—AERNANBRITZRE
BERG E#E - ZoBHER
ZE-NF=ATNABBETZH
8,080 E BRI MFTHE - WERZ
E-NERAZFNBXN -

EmERARLHE

—T-NEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 P - BERRE
Leasehold Equipment
landleased  Oiland gas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings forownuse  properties pipelines  machinery vehicles Others  in progress Total
HENHEER ARR
B CEEDH RARNE AMREE  RERER hat:d B  ERIR 4E
RMBmilion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMBmilion ~ RMB'milon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'million ~ RMB'million
AREEEL AREEET ARMBET AREEET ARKEER AREEEL AREEEL ARMEET AREEET
Cost: A
Balances at 1 January 2018 WZZ-)\E-A-B&H 4250 - 12617 49,356 66,118 3014 1544 14,885 161,844
Curency transation dfferences ~ E¥ERER 2 - 199 - 2 5 1 5 214
Additions B 3 - 4 - 336 109 I} 7,85 8,667
Disposals it (126) - (204) - (2.267) (327) (4 (690) (3,662
Transfers g 129 - - 105 5544 - - (6,378) -
Bancesat 31 December 2018 W= \ETA=1-BiH 4290 - 12,946 50,061 69,733 2,801 1545 15,677 167,063
Impact on fitl appication of NS EREATBASED
HKFRS 16 (note) Z165 072 () 38 4152 - - 23 2 8 - 4743
Balances at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-B&H 4,648 4,152 12,046 50,061 69,956 2,803 1,553 15877 161,79
Cunency translation cfferences ~~ EEEXZE 2 - 203 - 5 2 - 3 215
Additions B 233 431 208 - 666 63 84 8,866 10,551
Acquistion through busingss BREHAHETIE (W)
combination (Note 38) 1] 161 - - 1,752 4 2 132 2,130
Disposals e (154) (169) (1) - (860) (205) (10) (141) (1,560)
Transfers B 354 - - 1,511 6,999 - 3 (8,867) -
Bdancesat 31 December 2019 R=Z-NETZA=T-RAER 5,162 4575 13,336 51,572 78,518 2667 1632 15670 173,132

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - RERRE ()
(CONTINUED)
Leasehold Equipment
landleased ~ Oil andgas  Natural gas and Motor Construction
Buildings forownuse  properties  pipelines  machinery vehicles Others  in progress Total
EENERR L2y
B CEELH RARNE  RAREE  REREE ot B  ERIR &8
RMBmilon ~ RMB'miion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMBmilon ~ RMB'milion ~ RMB'millon
AREEET AREEET ARMEET ARMEET ARKEER AREEET AR%EEn ARMEET AREEET
Accumulated depreciation ZHITBRBHENRAE
and depletion and impairment;
Balances at 1 January 2018 RE-N\E-A-BER 1211 - 11,613 13906 2453 2,189 585 2,069 56,109
Currency translation difference EREREE 2 - 12 - 2 2 1 - 129
Charge for the year FEERH 151 - 20 1559 3,707 21 7 - 6,025
Disposals e (38) - (20d) - (1,075) (232 (14) - (1,569)
Impaiment loss TEEE - - - - 188 - - 2% 0
Balances at 31 December 2018~ WZF—/\FHZA=+-BEH 1326 - 11,821 16,46 27,358 2,206 644 2,301 61,120
Balances at 1 January 2019 RIE-NE-F-RER 1326 - 11,821 15,46 27,358 2,206 644 2,301 61,120
Curency franglation dfferences ~ EREH£E - - 17 - 2 2 - - m
Charge for the year KERT 2%9 164 28 1442 3,881 188 101 - 6,203
Disposals e (1) ) @) - (8m) (185) (1) (26) (638)
Impaiment loss HEEE 1 - - - 35 2 I 35 404
Balancesat 31 December 2019 MZE-AET-A=t-HEsH 1,565 14 12241 16,907 31,195 2212 785 2310 67,356
Net book value: RHFE:
Blancesat 31 December 2019 R=Z-NETA=T-B&R 3597 4,434 1,005 34,665 47323 455 847 13,360 105,776
Bdancesat 31 December 2018 R=F-\FTZA=T-REE 2964 - 1,125 34,59 42375 5% 90 13376 95,933
Mzt : AEBEEERKETENERRERAER

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective method and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17. See Note 3(z2).

ISR EERF 16 R ARR T —IF
—A— B 2B - AR ERTIRESS
SHEREI7T RO EAKEHEZHE
RIEREEE - RIS -

EREAERAT
F-NEEERE

187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The buildings of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.

Other assets mainly comprises of containers, roads,
bridges and others.

As at 31 December 2019, certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group were pledged to banks for loan
facilities granted to the Group. See Note 30.

As at 31 December 2019, the legal title registration of
certain of the Group’s properties with carrying amount of
approximately RMB851 million (2018: RMB775 million)
is subject to certain administrative procedures to be
completed by the relevant local government authorities.
The Board of Directors of the Company is of the opinion
that the risks and rewards of using these assets have been
transferred to the Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
situated on leasehold land in the PRC which was granted
for use by the relevant government authorities to the Group
at nil consideration with no specific terms of usage.

In view of the fluctuations in LNG supply and prices during
the year, the Group performed impairment assessment
with respect to certain LNG processing plants, each of
which being identified as a cash generating unit.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s property, plant
and equipment in respect of the Group’s LNG processing
plants amounted to RMB7,830 million. No impairment
was recognised with respect to LNG processing plants
for the year ended 31 December 2019. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, impairment of RMB126 million
to construction-in-progress of a LNG processing plant
was recognised to reduce its carrying amount to the
recoverable amount of RMB26 million.

The estimate of the recoverable amount of these LNG
processing plants was determined based on a value in use
calculation, using a discounted cash flow model. Future
cash flows were adjusted for risks specific to these LNG
processing plants and discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate ranging from 13.65% to 15.34% for the current year
(2018: 14.97%-16.90%).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

MW - BE KRR (R)

AEEZBFERUNFHE -

H
fib

M

P

ETBRERRERM  EX BREHE

/

RZZE-NE+A=+—H0 AEEET
ME - BERRECRASERER 2 E5E
BEHEMTIRIT - F2HMEES0 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of the Group’s right-of-

16

W - BERRE (R)

ERAEEE

AT BAEEIZBEEERRS D 2 (ERE

use assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEREFEIN
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hEF —E-NF
+=HA=+—H —HA—H
Notes RMB’million RMB’million
PiEE AR¥EBEEBRT ARKEBER
Buildings, carried at depreciated cost AT EKATIBRZ BT @) 302 358
Leasehold land leased for own use, LI ERAYBR2HE
carried at depreciated cost EERzHE L1 (i) 4,434 4,152
Equipment and machinery, AFrERARTIER Z
carried at depreciated cost BGEISE - (iii 697 865
Motor vehicles, carried at depreciated ~ ATERAIBRZ
cost E 5 2
Others, carried at depreciated cost AFrER AT R 2 HALIEH 5 8
5,443 5,385
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

16

—HhETA=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16 Y% - BERRE ()
(CONTINUED)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) FEHESE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases HRERERCHERB I HEE 2917
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: LU
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Depreciation charge of right-of-use RIEAEERMNBID 2
assets by class of underlying asset: FRAEEERESL -
Buildings BF 111 —
Leasehold land leased for own use HENEERZHEE i 164 109
Equipment and machinery B S 65 49
340 150
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 10) HEa &R S (FFE10) 28 13
Expense relating to short-term leases ~ E2%5 HAFA & & o ¢4 F0 BR 15
and other leases with remaining RZZE-—NF+ZHA=+—H
lease term ending on or before 32 Bl JE 2 ELAb A8 E A8
31 December 2019 2 406 _
Minimum lease payments for AEFRBEE S ERIFE 175
leases previously classified as DERKEHECZHEZ
operating leases under HKAS 17 =IEEENHE - 454

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use
assets relating to leases which were previously recognised
as operating leases under HKAS 17. The depreciated
carrying amounts of the finance lease assets which were
previously included in property, plant and equipment and
advanced operating lease payments are also identified
as right-of-use assets. After initial recognition of right-
of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee
is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use
assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. See Note 3(z).

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

BaE

AEECDFERAKEBREEXERES
S REERE16HKUAEN T — N
¢ A—BZH0&E - UBERIRESR

BeERE1I7T R BAKEHEZH
fﬁnﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ LRIFTAYE  BE

R REHEEEZNERMERTE
MEERERI AR BEREEE - ¥
PHERAN_ZE—NFE—HA—B2EREER
Bk AEEEAEBAEBRFEREE
EFE - MIFRBARBEREAHANZE
ARG EHEB TEA  HEMAS -
RIFW A - EEBERWEES - BT
3@ °



16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
RMB834 million, in which RMB161 million of right-of-use
assets were acquired through business combination.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 26(c) and 33,
respectively.

0]

(ii)

(iii)

Buildings, carried at depreciated cost

The Group has obtained the right to use buildings
as its warehouses and offices through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2 to 10 years.

Leasehold land leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use of certain
leasehold land in the PRC. The leases typically run
for a period of 10 to 50 years.

Equipment and machinery

The Group leases equipment and machinery under
leases expiring from 16 to 20 years. Some leases
include an option to purchase the leased equipment
at the end of the lease term at a price deemed to be
a bargain purchase option.

16

W - BERRE (R)

EREEE (&)

FR EAREEFERARKSMEE
T B ARK161 A& T B BRERE O

EE-

HElRenteaErHsaBasE ST
Z =B D RIS AR BT RE 26(c) K. 33 °

() HUFEEFIEZEF

AEBEDEEHESNRGREREE
BREMREZEBFZEMRE - —KM
5 ARHENS REMEETF -

(i) HEELFEEAZHELY

AEEERBETURATEZEEL
W ERE —RME - BAHEES
H+EERTF -

(i) REREE

AEBRER T RFE-TFEANER
ZHEEEHERBRKS - FOHEE
BEREE - RNEEERE A RER
REEBREER . EVBESRE

&t

EmERARLHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

17 ADVANCED OPERATING LEASE PAYMENTS 17

The Group’s advanced operating lease payments mainly
represent land use rights and comprise:

HEEEHEER

AEEZENKEHERTER T HER
% B

RMB’million

ARBEER

Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE—\F—HA—B#&% 3,782

Currency translation differences BEEHZRE (1)

Additions NE 414

Amortisation for the year RF S (109)

Disposals HE (214)

Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—H#&H% 3,872
Impact of initial application VIZERAB BN EHREER

of HKFRS 16 (note) F 1655 2 R 2 (FiFE) (3,872)

Balance as at 1 January 2019
and 31 December 2019

R_ZE—h&F—A—8BKk
—E-NF+ZA=1+—H#& =

Note: These advanced operating lease payments are amortised
over the related lease terms using the straight-line
method. The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-
of-use assets relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. The
amortised carrying amount of the advanced operating
lease payments is also identified as a right-of-use
asset. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets at 1
January 2019, the Group presented all the right-of-use
assets under property, plant and equipment. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

e - RERNEEREFRNHABAABAUNER
EEH - AEBEEERKERIEPEER
ERERBMBREENF16RILFHER
—T-NF-A BB - JARLE
AIREE AT EANFE 17RO BERKEEH
ECHERRAEREEE - BNREHE
R B HAREE T E R BEREEE -
NTERN _FE—NF—HA—BZER#E
BER AEESMAEEREEEZIIR
(2% BER&EE] - REBWTE - L&
BERAEED -

18 NEEATZRE

2019 2018

—E-hE —TE-N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

AREEERT ARBEHEETL

Share of net assets L& ESE 5,362 3,774
Goodwill EES 350 350
5,712 4,124

Details of the principal associates are set out in Note 43.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Summarised financial information of a material associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed below:

18

R EMBRRMEE

—NF+ZA=T-HLEHFE

REE AT 2128 (])

TREL-HERBERAZHBEN
2 EReABERBABRNEAZRIELRE
AR RESAMBHREAREE

CNPC - Aktobemunaigas
Joint Stock Company

(“Aktobe”)
(I Aktobe )
2019 2018
—E-NEF —\&F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
Gross amounts of the associate’s  Ef& A\ 5] 2 4%
Current assets MENVEE 2,084 2,030
Non-current assets ERBEE 15,524 14,347
Current liabilities MENEE (6,287) (5,034)
Non-current liabilities FEnRBEE (8,340) (8,317)
Equity s 2,981 3,026
Attributable to non-controlling interest R HI MR RS (G 204 72
Attributable to the associate’s kNS Y
shareholders 2,777 2,954
Revenue WA 10,346 11,778
Profit from continuing operations B EEB R 2,602 2,397
Post-tax profit or loss from ERIFRHE S E BT A B
discontinued operations - =
Other comprehensive income Eib2milias 60 (276)
Total comprehensive income 1@4&1/\@ 2,662 2,121
Attributable to non-controlling interest  3E3EHIMEAE RS FE(L 134 79
Attributable to the associate’s NSy ey
shareholders 2,528 2,042

EmERARLHE
“E-NEFFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

18 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 MEEATZIRE (E)

Aktobe
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBER

Reconciled to the Group’s HIREXEBRBEE AT 2R

interests in the associate
Group’s interest (note) REE R () 25.12% 25.12%
Group’s interest in net assets of the FUASKERB S N FBEFE

associate at beginning of the year ZiEm 742 533
Total comprehensive income AEEE LA =BATE

attributable to the Group 635 518
Dividend received during the year FREWEE (679) (304)
Group’s interest in net assets FRANEEREEE QA

of the associate at end of the year BEFE I ER 698 742

Note: The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the FiiEE : AR Aktobe 2 25.12% R e Z’Si%?ﬁ
B4 S B ER N\ T4k A
Group is 15.07%, as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe 60% Hz < B RIHA - MARERELG

was held by a 60% owned subsidiary of the Group. Aktobe 2 FLIR B 75 15.07%

194 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18 REtZAT]ZIRE (&)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually BERTEEZBE AR ZEHER
material:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBETRL

Aggregate carrying amount of ERITEE 2B E RTINS
individually immaterial associates in WIS RR 2 BIREE
the consolidated financial statements 5,014 3,382
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEERLZEHE R BeRE
share of those associates’
Profit from continuing operations RECEEB R 330 277
Post-tax profit or loss from BRI B E EBRBIEER
discontinued operations - -
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wz - -
Total comprehensive income FHIKEERE 330 277
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REBLEZEE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBHET
Share of net assets ELEEFE 3,163 2,831
Loans to joint ventures MEBETLEER 40 39
3,203 2,870
Details of the principal joint ventures are set out in Note 44. AT EEERE ZFIBHNMIzE44 -
As at 31 December 2019, included in loans to joint RZZE-NE+_A=+—HR&ELEE
ventures is an amount of RMB40 million (2018: RMB39 RERARKIAOBEL(ZE—N\F : AR
million) which is unsecured, interest-free and recoverable BIOBETL) %eBAEREKR 2E8KA
on demand. BEREE -
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

19

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends declared from joint ventures are approximately
RMB208 million (2018: RMB259 million) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the non-
controlling shareholders of Xi‘an Qinggang Clean Energy
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Qinggang”), Binhai Xinneng Co.,
Ltd. (“Binhai Xinneng”) and Jilin Jigang Clean Energy Co.,
Ltd. (“Jigang”) made unilateral capital injections. Upon
completion of such capital injections, the Company's
shareholding in Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and Jigang
decreased to 50%. The Directors considered the Company
have joint control over Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and
Jigang. Accordingly, Qinggang, Binhai Xinneng and Jigang
are classified as joint ventures of the Company as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.

There is no individually material joint venture which
significantly affects the results and/or net assets of the
Group at 31 December 2019.

Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
individually material:

19

REELEZIRE (R)

BE-_T-HAE+-_A=1+—HILEE &
BOESTRZBBHNABARK208HGET(—
T—N\F: AREE2S9FETT) ©

REBE-_Z—-N\F+-_A=+—HItFE
ALZESRERMEERAR(EE] - X2
ANAEBBESHEMRERAR([EGH
B2 ) REME BT RERBRAT(TEE])
ZIEEBRBRRBELESTEEE o BTTKZ
FER  ARRINES  BEFERTEZ
BRIER L ES0% - EERABARARES
B RSB RA LRIESIE - Bt - R
—E-hERZE-NF+ZA=F+—H E
B BEHEREBEDBEALRRTEED
% °

TEEHNBEERZAELEHARER-F
—NETZA=+—BHZXER /LEEF
BEREATE -

BRTES 2 AL ABER -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥EERT ARKBET
Aggregate carrying amount of ERTEE 2 & BEBFERERE
individually immaterial joint WSk < AR HE(E
ventures in the consolidated
financial statements 3,203 2,870
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEBERGZEEELEZEEH
share of those joint ventures’
— Profit from continuing operations - BB E A 319 311
— Post-tax profit or loss from - B IERECE EBRTEER
discontinued operations - -
— Other comprehensive income - Hth 2w 20 63
— Total comprehensive income - 2HEWEBEE 339 374
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20
Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 42.

The following tables list out the information related
to PetroChina Beijing Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
Pipeline”), PetroChina Jiangsu LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
LNG”) and PetroChina Jingtang LNG Co., Ltd. (“Jingtang
Co.”) the three subsidiaries of the Group which have
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

RIBATZi%E
BRI EMB AR FBENHEL2 -

TRIEFABELERRAREBERAT]
(MtREE]D - PEABIEHFRICAARE
[RAB(DIFFLING]) R AmRERIERA
RABRABR(RERAR)RAEEHEFEKN
IR IR R ([ IFFE I e es |) 2 = FHFT/ES
REEBZEFR - AT AT25.2 M E R
2HEIMEM A BFDRHAT < 28

Beijing Pipeline

tREE

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEEBRT ARKBET

NCI percentage FEVEHIME S B DL 40% 40%
Current assets MBNEE 1,503 1,181
Non-current assets EMBEE 42,846 41,605
Current liabilities MENBE (5,998) (5,421)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (6,454) (7,384)
Net assets BEFE 31,897 29,881
Carrying amount of NCI FERE | R AR E (B 12,759 11,948
Revenue WA 10,144 9,553

Profit and total comprehensive FRRMEEAEW=BAEE

income for the year 4,257 3,788

Profit allocated to NCI DECEFEEHIE R R 2 R 1,663 1,461
Dividend paid to NCI SENE LIy Tl ¥\ 1,267 1,765

Cash flows generated from EEBFSCHSRE

operating activities 6,329 7,107
Cash flows used in investing activites ~ REZEBKA RS RE (3,378) (2,072)
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ REE/EENFTA RS R E (2,765) (6,403)

eaRaRA= (Rl
B hEEEHE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

20

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20

(CONTINUED)

RIBATZi%E (8])

Jiangsu LNG
IELNG
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBETRL

NCI percentage
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Profit allocated to NCI

Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows generated from

operating activities
Cash flows used in investing activities
Cash flows used in financing activities

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

Annual Report 2019

IR M A L
MBEE
FRBEE
mBRE
FRBAE
BEFME
TR M s AR E

YA
F P A Ko 2 W Es 4R

D BECE I BV R 2 i A
B IR BRI R 2 RS

B

REEGABZRER

KREXBHAZRERE
BETDMAZRERE

45% 45%
1,040 1,248
4,847 4,735

(539) (535)
(90) (294)

5,258 5,154
2,366 2,319
2,363 2,826
1,253 1,038

564 872
614 225
1,453 2,124
(1,006) (286)
(1,329) (1,860)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 RMMBATZIRE ()
(CONTINUED)
Jingtang Co.
REQTE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
NCI percentage FEESIEERA DL 49% 49%
Current assets MENVEE 801 926
Non-current assets JERBEE 5,077 4,910
Current liabilities mENEE (641) (1,114)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (279) (33)
Net assets BEFE 4,958 4,689
Carrying amount of NCI FEFE M AR (B 2,429 2,298
Revenue WA 1,932 2,371
Profit and total comprehensive FRmA REEW = REE
income for the year 956 1,257
Profit allocated to NCI 2 IEPR R 2 s A 468 616
Dividend paid to NCI EH;H IR R 2 S 319 206
Cash flows generated from KEEBECREnE
operating activities 1,319 1,599
Cash flows used in investing activites ~ REXBKFAZIRETRE (184) (326)
Cash flows used in financing activities ~ FEEEEFTAZ RS R E (1,259) (1,476)

Note:

The subsidiaries have initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise additional right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS
17 under this approach, the comparative information is

not restated.

it

MEARCERRETENEERNERE
BUBREENE1GFLAER TN
F—RA—H2 B0 - AL ERIRIEE
BEEREIT RO ARCEHEEZHE
EREIMERBEELHERE - RIEM
E HBRERLEST -

=

EB

—ET—
==

REERBRAT

NEFRHRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZE—Z— NF+_-_A=+—HLFE

21 INTANGIBLE AND OTHER NON-CURRENT 21 SERRHEMIEFHEE
ASSETS
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKEET
Intangible assets (note (i)) mR A E (M) 1,017 323
Prepaid construction costs TR ER A 525 734
Loans to an associate (note (i) ) — B & 2 A B 3R (B & (i) 360 301
Loans to joint ventures (note (i) MEBETEER (W?(nl)) - 290
Other financial assets (Note 22) e B E (FiiE22) 202 127
Others HAh 86 114
2,190 1,889
Notes: P%E -
() The intangible assets mainly comprise goodwill, contract () BREAETEZRENE  6RBE - 5T
relationships, franchised rights and computer software BEREMEGRA BEEEZEEHN
costs. The movements in intangible assets are as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-NE —Z-\F
Goodwill Others Total Goodwill Others Total
[t 3 Hitr #@t e Hft @t
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'milion  RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEBT ARWEEBR AR¥EER AR¥AET ARKEET AREEER
At 1 January ®—A—H 139 184 323 243 215 458
Additions NE 8 23 31 - 32 32
Acquisition through EREBACETIE
business combination (FizE38)
(Note 38) 205 531 736 - - -
Disposal & - - - ®) (1) ©)
Impairment loss HEBE - (16) (16) (96) ) (103)
Amortisation for the year A EEE §H - (57) (57) = (55) (55)
At 31 December Rt+=A=+—H 352 665 1,017 139 184 323
(ii) As at 31 December 2019, loans to an associate are (ii) —NWEFE+ZA=+—8 " m—[5H

unsecured, interest-bearing ranging from 4.28% to 4.35%
(2018: 4.28% to 4.35%) per annum and with remaining
maturity periods over 12 months but less than 2 years

(2018: 2 years).

(iii) As at 31 December 2018, loans to joint ventures were
unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.99% per annum and with
remaining maturity periods over 12 months but less than 2

years.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(iii)

%?W%fﬁ%fﬁ?ﬁﬂ BREFERENT
4.28%i4.35%( ZE—)\F 1 428% %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

22 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 22 HbhEFEE

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

—FE-hEF —E-N\F
+=—A=+—8 +t—A=+—H

Note RMB’million RMB’million
ihE=a ARBEERT AREKBET

Equity securities designated 18TE B A FERTA 0), (i)

at FVOCI (non-recycling): ErmElmitEl
IR FE 5
(AT R £i85) ¢

— Listed in Australia - POBRAA T £ 7 7

— Listed in Hong Kong -RBEALT 4 5

— Listed in the PRC - R EEH 191 115

202 127

Notes: Bk -

0] The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial assets 0] REERGE PBRRKRILAZESERE S
in the consolidated statement of financial position by the R E A& B E 2 2 BREEE T 5E4.3(a) ©
measurement hierarchy are set out in Note 4.3(a).

(i) The Group designated other financial assets at FVOCI (ii) BEDREREAERMEE  AtAEE
(non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic EEEMEMEEREATEFTALME
purposes. No dividends were received on these HEEE (T EREER) - AFEL
investments during the year (2018: Nil). ERZEREWRERBKE (ZE—N\EF :

&) -

RRtRERAT [Ny
B hEEEHE
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

23

24

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

INVENTORIES

23

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

#

iy

Zr‘_—!

RAEMBIRARTFERYE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
Natural gas KAR 1,168 1,518
Materials for oil and gas properties Bl RARYERRAREEBMH
and natural gas pipelines 185 307
Crude oil in tanks and others WP [ K HoAth 45 40
1,398 1,865
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24 FEWRRTR
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-N\F
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
Accounts receivable, IR - HIBR BB G
net of loss allowance 2,792 2,459
Ageing analysis R DT

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts receivable, based on the invoice date and net of

loss allowance, is as follows:

BEHEHF - FRER NGB EIREE) 12
HEAMERONET :

2019 2018

—E-hF —ET—N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEET AREBETL

Within 3 months =EAUR 2,284 1,990
Between 3 to 6 months =EAEXNEAN 78 76
Over 6 months NEA 430 393
2,792 2,459

Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 24 FEUGHRER (48)
The Group’s revenue from rendering of terminal and AEEBREELKTE REBRE KR BHEE
pipeline services and sales of crude oil are generally WA —REZHEREFT30AE90 B H
collectable within a period ranging from 30 to 90 days from FUE - MHERARNUREZMHEER
the invoice date while the sales of natural gas are made THEHEO0 B - NEBFEECRE KA EUERFK
in cash or on credit terms no more than 90 days. Further EEZEERRZE—FE - SHIRMEE
details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising 4.1(b) °
from accounts receivable are set out in Note 4.1(b).
PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT 25 FEfREHEMIKEHEE
ASSETS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Other receivables, net of credit losses ~ EfbEIFRIE @ FIBREEE1EE 1,752 955
Prepayments (note) TEAER (BIEE) 2,487 2,475
Amounts due from an intermediate FEU A R A B RIE
holding company 15 39
Loans to joint ventures MEETEER 410 200
Loans to third parties ME=ZFER 25 38
Dividends receivable FEUS AR B, 93 93
Value-added tax recoverable A Y ]2 E T 1,839 1,692
Income tax recoverable EIEEiEES 8 7
Other current assets HtmehEE 191 360
6,820 5,859

Note: On the date of transition to HKFRS 16, operating lease
prepayments of RMB230 million previously included
in “Prepayments” were adjusted to right-of-use assets

recognised at 1 January 2019. See Note 3(z).

The amounts due from an intermediate holding company
are RMB15 million (2018: RMB39 million), which are
expected to be settled within one year, and unsecured and
interest-bearing at 1.80% per annum (2018: 1.80% per
annum).

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, interest-bearing
at 4.99% per annum (2018: 4.99% per annum) and with
remaining maturity period of less than one year as at 31
December 2019.

MiaE : RBREREVHRELAE165KER -
ERFATENR] ZARK20BET
ZREHERNFTIRBEER T —NF
—R—AWRZEREEE - RINE3(@) -

EUWHEIZERARRIEASARBISEETT
(ZZE—N\F: AR¥39FEEL) ' FEHR—
FREE AEEBRIZFHE1.80%(=
T—N\F : FHEA.80%)5TE °

MAEECEERAEEE  IHFFE499%
FFR(ZE—N\F : FHEL499%) KT
Em#BR —E—NEFE+_A=+—HIR—
f‘f o

EmERARLHE

—T-NEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

26 HERBEFHEAE

(@ RERRELFEEBVRE:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —FT-N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT AREKBET

Cash at bank and on hand RIT R FEIRS 18,132 18,924
Short-term bank deposits REEIRI TR 508 1,550
Cash and cash equivalents He MREEFERR 18,640 20,474

Cash at bank and bank deposits carry interest at
prevailing weighted average market rate at 0.39%
per annum (2018: 0.39% per annum).

Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash
are amounts of approximately RMB16,852 million
(2018: RMB17,393 million) denominated in RMB
which are deposited with banks in the PRC. The
conversion of these RMB denominated balances
into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds
out of Mainland China is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC Government.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019

RITIR S RIRTTERIRIRITINEFY
MIBERMNE039% (ZF—)\F : F
A= 0.39%) 58 -

BITFER - BITEBR RS BIEFTR
RARB R ERITI AA REHE Z
BOARKE16852BET(ZE— N\
F: AR¥A73903BETT) ° ZF A
AREHEZEBR I BRABINEREE
© B H BRI AR S S EBRTE
5.2 SN B BIIFR Al B OE AR

(b) RMEFHFEENEEHR

TRHFAAEERETDFELNE
EEE BERERENIRTRE
BYWES  BMELTHAELNEE
EAREGRHERERTRERE
BESERIRKASRK D BLE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

K"
FEMBmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z —ZE—NFE+-_A=+—HILtFE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HERFASFEHIEHR (8F)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RETBFELNEELHERGE)
financing activities
Convertible Lease Dividend
Borrowings bonds liabilities payables Total
B8 UERES HEEE EffRE o
RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million  RMB’million = RMB’million
AR¥EEnr ARWEEn AR%AEEnR AR%EER AR%EER
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-H 35,235 3,306 203 1,059 39,803
Impact on initial application NP RAB AR BRE
of HKFRS 16 (Note) ERE 16K FE (HzE) - - 641 - 641
At1January20t9  R=®-AF-A-R | %25 3306 o4 1089 40444
Changes from financing MERERERD:
cash flows:
Increase in borrowings fe ézi'ﬂﬂ 9,343 - - - 9,343
Repayment of borrowings BEES (10,986) - - (10,986)
Repayment of convertible bonds BETERES - (10) - - (10)
Capital element of BERAEREASHH
lease rentals paid N - - (301) - (301)
Interest element of ERAERSHETHR
lease rentals paid - - (31) - (31)
Interest paid ERHE (1,530) (28) - - (1,558)
Dividends paid to owners BERARARERS
of the Company - - - (1,831) (1,831)
Dividends paid to BRI ERRE
non-controling interests - - - (3,165) (3,165)
Total changes from financing ~ BEREREZHAH
Cashflows G173 68 63 (49%) (8539
Effect of foreign exchange EXxQBs¥8
rate changes 239 - - - 239
Other changes: AfeRm:
Net changes in lease liabilities FRHEERETE
during the year - - 78 - 78
Interest expenses HERZ 1,568 44 28 - 1,640
Transfer (to)/from accrued liabiities  (EHZ) /B A E:FEE (29) 24 - - (5)
Conversion of convertible bonds AT E (a5 - (3,336) - - (3,336)
Dividends to owners AARRRRE
of the Company . - - - 1,831 1,831
Dividends to FEEHIME RS
non-controling interests T - - - 3,222 3,222
Acquisition through business ERAHOHEN
combination (Note 38) LEAGERR)) 659 - - - 659
Totalotherchanges  RMEHEAE | 2198 (328 106 5083 4,089
At 31 December 2019 R=B-NF
t=A=t-H 34,499 - 618 1,116 36,233
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using Mzt - AEEBEAKETENEEREREE

the modified retrospective method and adjusted
the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which
were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17. See Note 3(2)

MR ELF16RLHER —F—1F
—HA—BZ &R - AR ERIRIEEE
BRTERE1T RO BAKEHE 2 HER
REERE - RT3 -

EmERARLHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERFAESFEIEH ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REITEBFFEENEEYHIR(E)
financing activities (continued)
Convertible Lease Dividend
Borrowings bonds liabilities payables Total
f& ERES HESE RS b
RMB'million  RMB’million ~ RMB’million ~ RMB’million  RMB’million
AREEERT AREER ARYEER ARMEER ARYEER
At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-F-H 41,101 3,230 351 1,069 45,751
Changes from financing RERERERD
cash flows:
Increase in borrowings fEEEm 13,811 - - - 13,811
Repayment of borrowings BREE (20,348) - - - (20,348)
Capital element of BEREE
lease rentals paid MexeHMH = = (145) - (145)
Interest element of RAREEY
lease rentals paid REMEHH - - (16) - (16)
Interest paid BERHE (1,767) (54) - - (1,821)
Dividend paid to owners of BERARARERE
the Company - - - (1,742) (1,742)
Dividend paid tonon-controling B #IMERRS
interests - - - (2,800) (2,800)
Total changes from financing ~ RERERELHAR
cashflows 8304) (54) (161) (4,542) (13.061)
Effect of foreign exchange EXxQ8s¥8
rate changes 661 - - - 661
Other changes: HitgE
Interest expenses MERR 1,540 131 13 - 1,684
Transfer to acorued liabilities ERERARRE 237 - - - 237
Conversion of convertible bonds BT E A E % - (1) - - (1)
Dividend to owners of the Company ERAREAIRERE - - = 1,742 1,742
Dividend to non-controlling interests BRI ERRE - = = 2,891 2,891
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF - - - (101) (101)
Total other changes HtRBEH 1,777 130 13 4,532 6,452
At 31 December 2018 R=E-N%
+=A=1-H 35,235 3,306 203 1,059 39,803

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflows for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of

BeRkB&FEEA (R)

(c) HERESRHAR

PHEEFAGERERERIEHE

cash flows for leases comprise the following: FEATEIR :
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
(note)
(Bf3E)
RMB’million RMB’million
AR¥BEERT ARKBET
Within operating cash flows KERERER 418 460
Within investing cash flows KBRS METR 265 414
Within financing cash flows BEREMER 332 161
1,015 1,035
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 Mz : A"EEEFERALEBITEHEFX

using the modified retrospective approach and
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Previously, cash payments under
operating leases made by the Group as a lessee
of RMB460 million were classified as operating
activities in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term
lease payments, payments for leases of low value
assets and variable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities, all other
rentals paid on leases are now split into capital
element and interest element (see Note 26(b)) and
classified as financing cash outflows. Under the
modified retrospective approach, the comparative
information is not restated. Further details on the
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in
Note 3(2).

JER BB MELRIF 165K
RER-_Z—NF—H—B 287
wEER - ABLSERTIRIEE B et 4R
BITHROERKEHE HER
RIEAEEENEEAE - 5TAl -
REBEREBAMEEZ AR
W0 E BT REMHEETRS
NRREGEEHRERERANEIER
[1REEE) | - IRIBBBPBRELE
AIZE165% - BRETEHERER
P AZEBREENK - REE
BEMEMRE ARG -
A B ENHESERG ST AR
2B RFEFD (RKHTFE26(0))
WHEARERSR  RIBLE
FEWE  ERERESS] - B
HREZEEMBHREERE16
SR B 2 — R BRI
3(2) °

EmERARLHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 HERASEFEHIEHR (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflows for leases (continued) (c) MHEBRSRLHAZEGE)
These amounts relate to the following: ZECRETSZBEERA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —EN\F

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBER

Lease rentals paid BfHEERS 750 621

Additions of leasehold lands NEHEEERZHEELH
leased for own use 265 414
1,015 1,035

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B&E

Number of Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary
shares shares

million HK$’million
TEREE TEREE

BER BEET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each AR EE 0.01 87T Zi#k
At 1 January 2018, RZZE—-—N\F—H—H"
31 December 2018 and “E-NF+-_A=+—H8BK
31 December 2019 —E-NAFt+A=+—H 16,000 160

208 KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 27 BE(H)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —Z-N\F
Number of Nominal value Number of  Nominal value
ordinary of ordinary ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares shares
million RMB’million million RMB’million
TEREE ZTEREE TmARE e L BREE
BER AR¥BEER BER ARBBEER
Issued and fully paid: 2RTR
BEAM
Ordinary shares ZAREE0.01,ET
of HK$0.01 each 2 ZfR
At 1 January n—A—H 8,072 65 8,072 65
Issue of shares upon A )
conversion of convertible  E&SRFEEITRZD
bonds (note) (P 5E) 587 6 - -
At 31 December m+=ZA=+—8H 8,659 71 8,072 65
Note: On 19 November 2018, 170,502 ordinary shares were iz : R=ZE—N\F+—A+NA8 170,502

issued upon conversion of convertible bonds (see Note
31) and the Group's share capital increased by HK$1,705
(approximately RMB1,508) accordingly. The amounts were
not presented in the table above as the numbers therein
are rounded to the nearest million.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 586,240,903
ordinary shares were issued upon conversion of
convertible bonds (see Note 31) and the Group’s
capital increased by HK$5,862,409 (approximately
RMB5,1583,090) accordingly. The amounts presented in
the table above are rounded for presentation of balance
as at 31 December 2019.

TR RERTERESRET(EH
FE31) + AL AEE Z R AE 01,7057
TL(HARYEA,5087T) - BRASEEIEE
ERE2Y RRAEHEENBAAZER
BIZES -

BE_Z-—NFE+-_A=+—BILFE -
586,240,903 % & @ I B A 85 A 1] $5 A (F
HrrErT (RMIFEST) MANEE 2 AR
#115,862,409 7 7T (#) A R ¥ 5,153,090
L) e RERZINZEEERZIR_F
—hWFE+-_A=+—HBz&HmMUER
)\ °

EmERARLHE

—T-NEEERE
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S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

28 OTHER RESERVES

28 HfthfEE

(@) Movements in components of other reserves (@) HtRFEERES
Group
A5R
Convertible
Fair bond
Share  Contributed Merger  value reserve equity Translation Retained
premium surplus reserve  (non-recycling) reserve reserve Others eamings Total
ATERfE TEs
(F8E B5R
RHEE g4ze AHRE E88) &R EiRE -0} AERA .1
RMBmillon RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion RMB'milion RMBmilion RMBmilion
AREEEL ARMEET ARMEET ARMEET ARMEET ARBEEn ARBAEER AREEER  AREEER
note () note fj note fi) note ) note (Y note (v note (vi)
iG] Bk () B3k (i) His () HEEN) GGl HiaE (i)
Balances at 1 January 2018 RR-N\E-f-BEk 3,358 109 (23820 167 1% 1,089 4632 25,046 39,726
Total comprehensive income forthe year A2 ERKEE - - - 99 - 119 - 4634 4654
Transfer between reserves fElEREE - - - - - 2576 [2576) -
Finel dvidend for 2017 ZE-tERERS - - - - - - - (1742 (1742
Issue of shares upon conversion REATSRERREIRG
of convertible bonds 1 - - - - - 1
Balances at 31 December 2018 R=B-NFTZA=t-RER 32,359 109 (23820 68 1% 1,18 7208 25,362 42639
Balances at 31 December 2018 W=2-NETZAZt-BR
and 1 January 2019 “E-15-B-RER 32,359 109 (23,820) 68 1% 1,158 1,208 25,362 4,639
Total comprehensive income for the year  EM2EREEE - - - 50 - 178 - 5551 5719
Transfer between reserves fElEmEE - - - - - 598 (598) -
Finaldividend for 2018 “3-)\ERERE - - - - - (181) (1851)
Issue of shares upon conversion NERTEREARRARA
of convertile bonds 3,525 - - - (195) 3,330
Balances at 31 December 2019 HRoB-RE+=A=t-REH 35,884 109 (23,820) 118 - 1,336 1,806 28484 49917
Note: The Group, including the Company, has initially fizk : AEBE(BREARART) BEHALE

applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the
modified retrospective approach. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated
and there is no net effect on the opening balance
of the Company’s equity as at 1 January 2019,

see Notes 3(z) and 45.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

28 Hibf#E (R)

Movements in components of other reserves (a) HibRABEARES (B
(Continued)
Company
G
Convertible
Share  Contributed  bond equity Retained
premium surplus reserve earnings Total
B
E5R
R EE EfER Efite ity am
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREBEET AR¥BET AR%BER ARMEER ARMEER
note (| note (i note (v)
fiE() (i) Pz ()
Balances at 31 December 2017 ~ R=E-t&+=F=1-H
and 1 January 2018 R=8-N§-F-R&# 3,38 109 19 15,477 48,139
Total comprehensive EnzEbELE
income for the year - - - 605 605
Final dividend for 2017 ZE-HERERE - - = (1,749) (1,742
lssue of shares upon converson - REBATERERERTRG
of convertible bonds 1 - - - 1
Balances at 31 December 2018~ W=Z-\F+-A=t-B&sH 32,359 109 19 14,340 47,003
Balances at 31 December 2018 ~ R=E-NE+-F=+-A
and 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-F-REH 32,359 109 195 14,340 47,008
Total comprehensive EmEENREE
income for the year - - - 5,210 5,210
Final dividend for 2018 “T-\ERHRS - - - (1,831) (1,831)
lssue of shares upon converson - RERATERERERTRG
of convertible bonds 3,525 - (195) - 3,330
Balances at 31 December 2019  R=E-hE+-B=1-B&H 35,884 109 - 171,119 53,772
Nature and purpose of other reserves b) HiFEEZMEREN
Notes: BRE -

(i) Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the
share premium account may be applied by
the Company in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the
Company as fully paid bonus shares.

(i BREAFE-NN—FREE " K
e ER AR AMERT BRA
B R ENREETT T AR BIR
RZARBRETREG °

BERERA R
NEFRHRE

A
E& i
T

=
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %= —

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of other reserves (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(V)

(vi)

(i

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of
the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Group and the amount of the
Company'’s shares issued for the acquisition.

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the considerations and the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired under
business combinations under common control.

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
equity investments designated as FVOCI under
HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting
period (see Note 3(h)).

The convertible bond equity reserve represents
the equity component of the convertible bonds at
initial recognition.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3(d)(ii).

Others mainly represent capitalisation of retained
earnings by subsidiaries and the statutory surplus
reserves. Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, the Articles of Association and the resolution
of Board of Directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC, the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of its net
profit to statutory surplus reserves. Appropriation
to the statutory surplus reserves may be ceased
when the fund aggregates to 50% of those
subsidiaries’ registered capital. The statutory
surplus reserves may be used to make good
previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of
those subsidiaries upon approval.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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28 Hfthf#E (48)

(b)

Hivf#f 2 EE R B 1 (&)

BisE - (&)

(i)

(iii)

(vii)

BHESRENBARNEAEEY
BRMZGEBRRESEARA S
WEMBEITZRNEBEZER

B OFHREEIE KRIESI T %5546 6
PRUCBMT B A R 2 KB RERAR
R e

NP EFHE(ATEDNEEZ) S
ERBEMRAFREBEBTEMER
HERIE OMRIFTE RIZ A FHERA
Hit2mE Wt 2 BRARERF
Bz REFEH (RME3N) °

EHRE %Hx%ﬁ%ﬁh PIIRTERH
A BRESERE D

[& N B B IRRE BN SRR E
EZFTEE R ZERE - RERENE
3(d)(i) 2 EETERRIE ©

Hi = EHRMBERRERRT
BN REAERBHANE - RIE(HE
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AR BREM AR S 2 A S B B A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

29

(c)

Distributability of other reserves

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of
other reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 was RMB17,888
million (2018: RMB14,449 million). After the end of
the reporting period the Directors proposed a final
dividend of RMB26.3 cents per ordinary share (2018:
RMB23.0 cents per share), amounting to RMB2,277
million (2018: RMB1,831 million) (Note 15). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

28

Hitb it (48)
(c) AaREfMFE

R-E—NE+_A=+—8 " "¢
MR RS E D IR 2 HAbFEER
CHE(BBEAERE—NN\—FRFE
HE)BARK17888BHEL(ZF
—N\F: AR¥14,4490F87T) - 1
WMEHRE  EFEBAPREER
LTBRB6IARED (ZE—\F:
BR23.0ARKE D)  EARKE 2,277
BELT(ZE—/\F: AE¥18318
) (MEE15) o AR B REER

end of the reporting period. WARERAE—IBEE -
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 29 [EftlRFIRIETERE
LIABILITIES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEBERT ARKBET
Accounts payable FEfTBRR 2,214 2,791
Contract liabilities aH8aE 9,800 9,383
Salaries and welfare payable g€ RkEF 342 383
Accrued expenses FERTRISE 16 14
Dividend payable FERTAR B 1,116 1,059
Interest payable FERF B 144 139
Construction fee and equipment AREERE PGP
cost payables 10,079 10,361
Amounts due to related parties FE 1~} BB 75 K18
— Non-controlling interests — JEEHIME RS 1 1
— Others - B 380 236
Consideration payable (Note 38) FERIRAE (FI7E38) 576 —
Other payables H AT FRIAE 4,632 2,988
29,300 27,355
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

29

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED 29

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group also had non-current
contract liabilities of RMB776 million (2018: RMB744
million) which were included under non-current other
liabilities and were expected to be recognised as revenue
in over 12 months but less than 5 years.

The Group’s contract liabilities represent primarily advances
received from customers. In certain regions of the PRC,
customers of the Group’s city gas business are required to
use integrated circuit cards and top up in advance before
the balances are deducted upon usage of natural gas.
Depending on the market conditions and the customers’
credit profile, the Group also require advance for certain
customers for sales of other natural gas products. These
advance payments from customers are recognised as
contract liabilities until the natural gas products are sold to
the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the amount of RMB9,383 million (2018: RMB8,881 million)
recognised in contract liabilities at beginning of the year
has substantially been recognised as revenue during the
year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
accounts payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

FEfRRR R R B 1R (4])

RZZE-NFE+ZA=+—8  AEEI#E
BERDEVNEEARBIT6EETL(=F
—N\F: AR¥T744FET) - HEFAER
BEMBEALARER BB+ —EAE
PRAFZIA -

REEZEHNEBEEIERAERP 2B -
EREETHE  RNEBZHTRRELE
FAFEREKEERRBLIEE - HORE
BARARENRER - BTRAEREFEER
KA ARERHEEMARARERK TS
ERETEFPEENR - ZEREREFZTE
NREEEERAREREETRF ALY
AMEBERBENEE REBEE_Z—NF
T-A=+—HLFE  FUREHAER
BZARKEQIBIAETL(ZZE—/\F : AR
¥ 8,881 B & L) ENFRABIERAWA °

AR DA

BEREHR - BARRIREZAHZRE
DTEAT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —T—N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT AREBHETL

Within 3 months =EARA 1,620 1,875
Between 3 to 6 months ={EA=EA 81 124
Over 6 months NEA A E 513 792
2,214 2,791

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables fall within the credit time
frame. The contractual maturity date of accounts payable
and accrued liabilities is within one year.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

—NF+ZA=T-HLEHFE

BORROWINGS 30 fEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —\&F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Short-term borrowings — secured (note) 4EHAEE — K (Fi:E) 24 =
Short-term borrowings — unsecured MEEE - I 3,540 5,181
Current portion of long-term borrowings RHIfEE Z BNEAEEH 5,208 1,891
8,772 7,072
Long-term borrowings — secured REEE - BEF - 8
Long-term borrowings — unsecured REEE - EmEH 30,935 30,046
Less: Current portion of long-term B REEE ZBNEE D
borrowings (5,208) (1,891)
25,727 28,163
34,499 5,235
Note: As at 31 December 2019, certain property, plant and Wi : RZE—NF+=-A=+—8  ~xEEH
equipment of the Group amounting to RMB21 million T - BERLZERARKE2100E T
(2018: Nil) were pledged to banks for loan facilities granted (Z2—N\F : &)  ZEEHRAEEE
to the Group. B2 B E R TIRIT ©
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated EEZEMEBERUNTEESE

in the following currencies:

2019 2018

—E-NE —N\F

RMB’million RMB’million

ARBEERT ARKBET

RMB AREE 21,645 22,624
US dollar =TT 7,815 7,676
Hong Kong dollar BT 4,968 4,859
Japanese yen Hot 18 24
Euro BT 53 52
34,499 35,235

EmeeRERAA

“E-NEFFERE
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

30 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the borrowings of the
Group were repayable as follows:

faE (48)

R NFR T N\F+_A=+—
B AEBZEEBZRNTERE

Loans other

Bank loans than bank loans

RITER MREBITERAIZERK
2019 2018 2019 2018
—g-hE “T\F B-NF "EF)\F
RMB’million RMB’milion ~ RMB’million RMB’million
ARBBEERT ARKBERT ARWEBEEBRT ARKBERT
Within one year —FA 3,609 3,638 5,163 3,534
Between one to two years —E=WF 346 1,216 1,968 7,960
Between two to five years MERF 1,975 692 15,101 12,867
After five years RHEPAR 2,653 2,005 3,684 3,423
8,583 7,451 25,916 27,784

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its borrowings. The information
presented is based on the earliest date on which the Group

TRHAMAREBEZEEZHRTAOFH - F
2INERTIUAAREE AN 2 &FEMAE
o WRIAFTRRERE(BEASEH

can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted B
cash flow including principal and interest:
Loans other
Bank loans than bank loans
SRITEN MREBITERUUMZERK
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE “2N\F ZE-AF 2 NF
RMB’million RMB’milion ~ RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEBER ARKBET AR¥BER ARKBESERT
Within one year —F R 3,913 3,807 6,103 4,576
Between one to two years —E=WF 569 1,367 2,800 8,790
Between two to five years MERF 2,403 1,014 16,181 14,247
After five years RF A& 3,151 2,445 3,758 3,606
10,036 8,633 28,842 31,219

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS 31 TIEiRES
2019 2018
E-hE I3\
Liability Equity Total Liabiltty Eouity Total
8f E& 3t 8f fEa e
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB'million RMB'milion RMB'milion
AE%BER ARMEEn ARMEEn AR¥REn  AREBER  AREBER
Carmying amount ag at 1 January ’—-A-BZEAH 3,306 195 3,501 3230 195 3425
Accumulated nterest expenses BRI 400% 25t
acorued at effective inerest HER®
rate of 4.03% 44 - 4 131 - 181
Transfer fiom accured liblties Ll 2% - % = = =
Accumulated inferest paid BRZ:E 28) - (28) (54) - ()
Conversion of convertiole bonds BE G (3,336) (195) (3531) (1) = )
Redemption of convertile bonds upon maturty N TARES (10) - (10) - - -
Carying amount as MZA=1-A
at 31 December L5 - - - 3,306 195 3,501

On 13 July 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to
issue convertible bonds due in 2019 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) with principal amount of RMB3,350 million to third
parties. The Convertible Bonds are denominated in RMB
bear interest of 1.625% and will be settled in US dollars.
The conversion price was HK$7.13 per share (translated
into HK$ at the fixed RMB to HK$ exchange rate of
0.8625) as at the date of issuance and is subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments. The issuance of Convertible Bonds
was completed on 25 July 2016. The conversion price
was adjusted to HK$7.05 per share with effect from 15
June 2017 and then adjusted to HK$6.80 per share with
effect from 5 June 2018. With effect from 21 June 2019,
the conversion price was further adjusted to HK$6.60 per
share.

On 19 November 2018, the Convertible Bonds with
principal amount of RMB1,000,000 were converted into
170,502 ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$6.80
per conversion share.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Convertible
Bonds with principal amounts of RMB62 million and
RMB3,277 million were converted into 10,571,182 and
575,669,721 ordinary shares at conversion prices of
HK$6.80 and HK$6.60 per conversion share respectively.
The Company has redeemed the Convertible Bonds with
principal amount of RMB10 million upon its maturity.

RIZE—XRNELA+=8 " AQFEFZ—1H
REWZ - B AARREBERE = HET
REGEAARKEIBOEETRA-Z—H
FRE A ERES ([ERES] - AR
BEETE R I EBIREH 1L 1.625% 51 2 K A
ELEE - NEITH BIREAERKRT7.138
T(HRARK XA THEFEER0.8625F
BT WAlE RESEFAE - iR
BER_T—AFLtA-T+HBZMK - Eif
BEAEASR7.05ET BT —CF~
ATHAREXN  EEABHAEAETR6.80F
T EE—N\EXARARES - B=F
—NFARAZT—HE  SHREE—PHEE
EER6.60/8TT -

RZFE—N\F+—A+ILB TeBEAEAR
# 1,000,000 C 2 AT ERE S - BIRERE
FRE % 6.80 B Tk 170,502 A% & iR
A% o

BE-_ZT—hE+-_A=+—HItFEE &
CHEAAREEETRARKI2ITES
TLZ A BRESE DR ERESRERR
6.807% 7t & 6.60,8 T E1R K 10,571,182 %
575,669,721 fx E i o AR A2 R 2| H]
AERASEAARK10BE T2 Al @G
%—;o

EmERARLHE

—T-NEEERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBHmRME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE
31 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED) 31 TERES ()
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMAEE 2 ATERES 2R TENF
contractual maturity for its convertible bonds. The H o FIZ2AER A EEES N 2&FA
information presented is based on the earliest date on HMAEE WRRAMBEREAE(BER
which the Group can be required to pay and represents the e RFE) :
undiscounted cash flow including principal and interest:
2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Within one year - 3,403
Between one to two years - -
- 3,403
32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 &ZEMBRARPZHAES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current tax in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents:

(a)

REMBARRRP ZNPBIES !

2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
Tax payables in respect of MBARNATRRENS ZFIE :
subsidiaries in:
—the PRC 649 711
— Peru 2 59
— Thailand 9 4
660 750
Withholding tax on dividend M AR DR S 2 BT
distributed by the subsidiaries 68 44
728 794

As at 31 December 2019, the Group also had
income tax recoverable of RMB8 million (2018:
RMB7 million) which were included under “prepaid
expenses and other current assets”.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 Z&UHBKRERDZREH (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CERRAZELEHEEERAERE:
(i) Movement of each component of () FEEHEAZEFEESHAXS
deferred tax assets and liabilities T 2B E
The movements in deferred tax assets/ FRNBECHBEE (BB Z
(liabilities) during the year without taking into BE)(WEEREBER -G
consideration of the offsetting of balances AVAREEMARR) 0T ¢
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
Undistributed
profits of PRC
and overseas Revaluation
Accelerated  subsidiaries, surplus from
tax  associate and Deferred business
depreciation  joint ventures income Others  combination Total
hERED
HEAR
BELAR
mg  REbEZ RAEEHAH
il b FARAE ifidien At LEfERS fam
RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million RMB'million
AREEEL AR¥EER ARYBET ARKEEn ARMBET AREEER
At1 January 2018 R=F-\E-A-H (248) (3% 278 551 - 189
Curency tranglation difirences  EEEZ 28 - {4 = ? = (6
Disposal of subsiciaries HEHBAA 0] - - () - ()
(Chargec)/credited to the NeAERT (k) /58
consolicated profit or loss (109) 99) (19) 16 - (207)
Credited to other N2 ELEES
comprehensive income - - - 2 = 2
At 31 December 2018 R=F-\E+ZA=+-H (359) (4%) 23 540 - 50)
At January 2019 RZF-NE-A-H (358) (495) 23 540 - (50)
Currency translaton differences  SBERZE ] @ - - - 4]
Acquistion through business ~ EEERARHETNE
combination (Note 39) (Bt 38) - - - 66 (185) (119)
(Chargec)/credtted to the NEA RS (M) /B8
consolidated profit or loss 43) (105) ] 5 - (145)
Credited to other B2 TRGES
comprehensive income - - - (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-NET-A=+-A (404) (602) %1 509 (185) (331)

ERtRERAT  [BFle
—BR-AETERE

=



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZE—Z— NF+_-_A=+—HLFE

32 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 32 ZF&UHBKRERDZRE (&)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CHEIZEEREEERERSE:@ (&)
(Continued)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) HEHBEREERE R
statement of financial position
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’million ~ RMB’million
ARBEER ARWBET

Representing: 5
Deferred tax assets RIEFIRE 1,366 1,242
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE (1,697) (1,292)

(331) (50)

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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LEASE LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods. The information
presented is based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flow including principal and interest:

33.

HEAfR

TRINAAEERARE PR BERSH

BIREBEARBANR Z&F A AR
ATERERE (BFEAS RFAEL)

Lease liabilities relating
to leases previously
classified under
HKAS 17 as finance lease

SRRBEBEER
Other lease liabilities (note) FI7THEsEAREREEZ
HttfAEaE (i) HEZHERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—N\F —E-hEF —T-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
AREEEBRT ARKBEBERT ARYBER ARKBERT
Contractual undiscounted BHIRITE
cash outflow WREm
Within one year —FR 192 = 57 153
Between one to two years —EWF 122 = - 57
Between two to five years MERF 201 = - =
After five years RFELAE 325 = - =
840 - 57 210
Present value of HERERE
lease liabilities 562 = 56 203

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the

modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities
relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17. Other lease liabilities
include amounts recognised at the date of transition to
HKFRS 16 in respect of leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17 and amounts relating
to new leases entered into during the year. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated.

See Note 3(2).

BAE

AEBEEAKETENEERERETE

PEHEERF16RLAER T —N4F
—A— Bz HES - AR ERTIRIEES
SEERIE7T RO B AKERE  HER
REEEE AW EAEERAESR
EBM ISR SR F 1658 % AL SRR B
EREENFEIT RO BAKEREZA
EMRSEURERFERI L 2HEE
HEZ S5 - BB % - B ERILE
E5 o RMIEESE) -

EmERARLHE

—T-NEEERE
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R EMBRRMEE

34 COMMITMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE
34 kiE
Capital commitments BAREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FT-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
AREBEERT ARKBET
Contracted but not ERTAERELRE -
provided for:
Qil field deveopment costs HMAREER 151 —
Other property, plant and Bz - BE k&
equipment 896 1,326
1,047 1,326
Authorised but not EHUEERETY -
contracted for:
QOil field development costs HEAREEA 453 281
Other property, plant and Hst - BE MEE
equipment 877 2,479
1,330 2,760

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT
Leng Jiapu Contract

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract signed in 1997, the
Group agreed to acquire 70% of the production sharing
interest for RMB1,008 million and to fund its share of
cost of the development carried out for the realisation
of oil production (the “Development Operations”) in the
area as defined in the Leng Jiapu Contract (the “LJP
Contract Area”), at an estimated cost of US$65.5 million
(approximately RMB474 million) in the first two years of the
development period and be further responsible for 70% of
the development cost after the first two years, in exchange
for a 70% share in the oil production from the LJP Contract
Area.

Pursuant to the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group shall bear
70% of the costs required for the Development Operations
in the LJP Contract Area which shall be allocated (after
deduction of local taxes and enterprise income tax) firstly
towards operating costs recovery and thereafter in the
proportion of 70% to the Group and 30% to PetroChina
towards investment recovery and profit.

The Leng Jiapu Contract provides twenty consecutive
years of production sharing from the date of
commencement of commercial production and will expire
on 31 December 2023.

In connection with the Leng Jiapu Contract, the Group
has also entered into an Entrustment Contract with an
operational entity owned and operated by CNPC, whereby
the latter is entrusted to take up the responsibility as
an operator. Under the Entrustment Contract, a Joint
Development Management Organisation was established
for the performance of the contractual responsibilities
under the operatorship.

35

HEERSEERE

A

REEME

a1

BEFRTR—NANEENLREAR @ A&
EREWET0% 2 EmMmDKER - (EFEAR
1,088 WEAERLSREERMA
EzHE([RREARME ) A EER M
Em([RBIEX]D) Bh2RAENAN - amE
B AR AAESSABET(HAR
WAaT4BETT)  WINBEEEMFERT0%
ZHBERA - LRBRREESRHE70% 2
ERE -

RELSREBAER  AEEBELKESRM
AR EER MAEED KT Z 70% KA -
EENER(RMREMRBRERAEHR
&) RN EEEKA - Heri AL EHE
Bl A HIR70% B230% 2 th Bl 5 - 1B R
o B8 A e BRER RO A

REEBERBE - BFRREEIERR R
EESERREE_+EY BN T =4
+=—RA=+—HE®°

AEETRSRECRE—EAHPEAME
BeERATEECRBEBIURTEA
[l - Bt - BEEREAEERIEEENER
- RIEZFAER  CRUBAMEEREE
B BOEEXEAREBETZEME -

EmERARLHE

“E-NEFFERE
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35

36

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT 35 HHERSBRER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Leng Jiapu Contract (Continued) RREGE (&)
The summary of assets, liabilities and results for the year REEEBASERRREGR I ERCE
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in = BEREEMENGRE WBRERERH
relation to the Group’s interest in the Leng Jiapu Contract MEAR
is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT ARKBET
(i) Results for the year (i) REEHE£E
Income WA 973 979
Expenses X (843) (850)
(i) Assets and liabilities i)y ZBERESE
Non-current assets EMBEE 339 375
Current assets MENEE 653 493
Current liabilities mEBE (73) (81)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - (60)
Net assets BEFE 919 727
(i) Capital commitments (i) BAREE
Contracted but not EETAMERIEL B
provided for 151 =
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 MFBARS

CNPC, the controlling shareholder of the Company, is
a state-controlled enterprise directly controlled by the
PRC government. The PRC government is the ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Related parties include
CNPC and its subsidiaries (together, the “CNPC Group”),
other state-owned enterprises and their subsidiaries which
the PRC government has control, joint control or significant
influence over, the entities which the Group is able to
control, jointly control or exercise significant influence
over, key management personnel of the Company and
CNPC and their close family members and any entity, of
any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group’s parent.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

In addition to the related party information shown
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the following is a summary of significant related party
transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business
between the Group and its related parties during the years
and balances arising from related party transactions at the
end of the years indicated below:

(a)

Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures

The Group has extensive transactions with other
companies in the CNPC Group. Due to these
relationships, it is possible that the terms of
the transactions between the Group and other
members of the CNPC Group are not the same as
those that would result from transactions with other
related parties or wholly unrelated parties.

The principal related party transactions with the
CNPC Group and associates and joint ventures of
the Group which were carried out in the ordinary
course of business, are as follows:

(i) The Group entered into (i) the Leng Jiapu
Contract with the CNPC Group in 1997
and (i) certain supplemental agreements,
including a sixth supplemental agreement
on 29 November 2017 for connected
transactions for the three years ending 31
December 2020, for the purpose of renewing
the terms of the previously signed master
agreement and supplemental agreements.

Under the Leng Jiapu Contract and the
master agreement, a framework for a range
of products and services to be procured
from the CNPC Group to the Group and vice
versa including oil and gas products, general
products and services, financial services and
rental services is provided.

36
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 FEEtARS(48)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates (a) EEFPHEME -
and joint ventures (Continued) X5 (#)
() (Continued) () (%)

- Provision of products by the CNPC -
Group to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB35,821 million
(2018: RMB32,913 million) for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

- Provision of services by the CNPC =
Group to the Group amounted to
approximately RMB9,410 million
(2018: RMB4,432 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

- Provision of products by the Group =
to the CNPC Group amounted to
approximately RMB5,653 million
(2018: RMB4,477 million) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

- Provision of services by the Group =

to the CNPC Group amounted to
approximately RMB16,486 million
(2018: RMB16,058 million), which
mainly includes natural gas pipeline
transmission services and LNG
gasification and unloading services
provided by the Group, for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures (Continued)

(i)

)

The Group has entered into agreements
for the sales of natural gas with certain
associates and joint ventures of the Group
amounting to approximately RMB750 million
(2018: RMB118 million) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The above transactions in (i) and (ii)
constituted connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, amounts
due from and to CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures of the Group, which
are unsecured and interest-free, except
borrowings, loans to an associate, loans to joint
ventures and lease liabilities, are included in the

36 FABEARS(E)

(a) HEAHEE BEQARARSELEZ
X5 (&)

(i)

(i)

AEE NS MASEE
FHENRRAELEMHEXR
RE - REBE_ZT—HAE+=
A=Z+—BLEFEEHEARE
B0EBETT(ZE—\F: AR
118 BETT) °

() ® () B zRSBEET
HAE1AAEZBKAER S o

RZB-—NFRZF-N\EF
TZA=1t—8  BREER
THHER  AEBEZHBE
RAIRAEBLEZFEA (KRB
B EBEXT-RBELQR &

RTEERXLRBAEREIN)

following accounts captions and summarised REERAKEE 25T AT
as follows: EREEERRNZ IS TN
2019 2018
—FE-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEEBERT ARKBET
Intangible and other mEREMIEREEE
non-current assets 422 1,009
Accounts receivable JE W AR X 1,020 591
Prepaid expenses and FENRREMREEE
other current assets 519 239
Accounts payable and ERERFR R EET A E
accrued liabilities 5,746 4,617
Borrowings B 18,713 20,779
Lease liabilities HEAE 40 114
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Key management compensation

36 FABERS (&)

(b)

TREEECME
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F

RMB’million  RMB’million
ARBEER ARBBETRL

Salaries and allowances FHekile 4 6
Retirement benefits — defined RIREF - RERREE

contribution scheme - -

4 6

(c) Transactions with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

Apart from the aforementioned transactions and
the transactions with CNPC Group, associates
and joint ventures, the Group has transactions with
other state-controlled entities include but not limited
to (i) sales and purchases of goods and services;
(i) purchases of assets; (i) lease of assets; and (iv)
bank deposits and borrowings.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker which is determined as the Executive
Directors of the Company.

The Group organises its business around products and
services. From the products and services perspective,
the Group is engaged in a broad range of petroleum
related activities and derives its revenue from its four
operating segments: Natural Gas Sales, LNG Processing
and Terminal, Natural Gas Pipeline and Exploration and
Production.

The Natural Gas Sales segment is engaged in the
wholesales and retail sales of various natural gas and
LPG products. LNG Processing and Terminal segment is
engaged in the processing, unloading, storing, gasification
and entrucking of LNG. Natural Gas Pipeline segment
is engaged in the transmission of natural gas through
pipeline. The Exploration and Production segment is
engaged in the exploration, development, production and
sales of crude oil and natural gas.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on each segment’s profit/(loss)
before income tax expense, share of profits less losses of
associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

Segment assets exclude deferred and current taxes,
other financial assets, investments in associates and joint
ventures, as all of which are managed on a central basis.

Corporate income and expenses, net, mainly refers to
interest income earned from cash and cash equivalents,
net exchange gains/losses, general and administrative
expenses and interest expenses incurred at corporate
level.

Corporate assets mainly comprise cash and cash
equivalents held at corporate level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

37

38

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Neither the Group’s revenue is derived from nor the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the place of domicile of
the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of
approximately RMB22,139 million (2018: RMB20,535
million) is derived from one (2018: one) customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. The revenue is attributable to the Natural Gas
Sales, LNG Processing and Terminal, Natural Gas Pipeline
and Exploration and Production segments.

ACQUISITIONS

On 15 August 2019, PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd
(“Kunlun Gas”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into equity transfer agreements (the “Agreements”)
to acquire equity interests in seventeen entities at a total
cash consideration of RMB1,640 million (the “Acquisition”).
The Acquisition was completed on 31 August 2019. Upon
the completion of the Acquisition, fifteen entities (the
“acquired entities”) have become the subsidiaries of Kunlun
Gas while two entities have become the associates of
Kunlun Gas.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
Annual Report 2019
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ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)

These entities are mainly engaged in gas supply and
management business. Acquisition of these subsidiaries
and associates are summarised as follows:

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

38 I

- 4B 4B

Percentage of
equity interests

Name of the entity acquired Consideration
EReE EHERES 2L KRE
RMB’million
AREBEER
Subsidiaries: BRG] :
1. Liaocheng Development 1. HQD?&;??%%%?%@@%@%&E 100.00% 157
Zone Jinhong Natural Gas Co., Ltd. A E MR A)
(now renamed as Liaocheng ERMRERAR)
PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd)
2. Feicheng Jinhong Natural Gas Co., Ltd. 2. HE?&E%/I%%’%W‘{Z? [%QL\; ETE ; 100.00% 32
(now renamed as Feicheng AR AL b
PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd) EmMRBRA"E)
3. Ta'an Jinhong Natural Gas Co., Ltd. 3. RLEBARRBR AT 100.00% 1
(now renamed as Tai’an PetroChina (RABERARLPAMH
Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd) ERMRERAR)
4. Hengshui Zhongneng Natural Gas. 4. BKPRERRRAR LA 100.00% 163
Co., Ltd. (now renamed as Hengshui (GREBE R AE KR AH
PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd) EmeRERAR])
5. Julu County Zhongcheng Longyuan 5} Efﬁ;—%ﬁ? %@&@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁf 100.00% 4
Gas Co., Ltd. (now renamed as BEBERAEEPA)
Julu PetroChina Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd) EmRRBERAR)
6. Hengyang Xina Natural Gas Co., Ltd. 6. B PARMRARRBERAF] 100.00% 75
7. Xiangtan County Zhongyou Xinxing 7 ORESRETERRER AR 60.00% 155
Gas Co., Ltd.
8. Shaoshan Zhongyou Jinhong 8. ML HEBRRER AT 100.00% 22
Gas Co., Ltd.
9. Qidong Zhongyou Jinhong Gas Co., Ltd. 9. A8+ /m& IR R AR A a) 100.00% 85
10. Changning Zhongyou Jinhong Gas 10. BERHESBRRER QA 60.00% 184
Co., Ltd.
11. Chaling Zhongyou Jinhong Gas Co., Ltd. 11. KA BE&BRMEER LA F 100.00% 104
12. Hengshan Zhongyou Jinhong Gas 12. LR S BR R AR A A 100.00% 27
Co., Ltd.
13. Hengdong Zhongyou Jinhong Gas 13. R HEBERR AR A A 100.00% 17
Co., Ltd.
14. Ta’an Gangtai Infrastructure 14, ﬁ?iziﬁfgﬁﬁgﬁg%@%ﬁ KE'E.;&ET 80.00% 167
Construction Co., Ltd. BERENARLTHA)
(now renamed as Tai'an PetroChina EmitREBEARAAF)
Kunlun Energy Pipeline Co., Ltd)
15. Tai'an Gangxin Gas Co., Ltd. 15, RLABHMMRER AR 74.00% 86
(now renamed as Xintai PetroChina (RABERAI BT A
Kunlun Gas Co., Ltd) EmMEBERAF)
Subtotal /Nat 1,279
Associates: /NI
1. Tai’an Antai Gas Co., Ltd. 1. RELHRMRRER LA 48.99% 176
2. Hengyang Natural Gas Co., Ltd. 2. M AMREREELR 34.00% 185
Subtotal INET 361
Total et 1,640
EmeeRERAA

—T-NEEERE

233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

38 ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED) 38 IEE (&)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BB A A
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the ZRBBEERNKEERARZ A RRIEE
acquired entities at the Acquisition date were as follows: FaEzAFENT
RMB’million
ARBBEET
Property, plant and equipment I E Y S 2,130
Investments in associates REEE R R ZTE 2
Intangible and other non-current assets &2 M M IERENEE 531
Deferred tax assets BETIAEE 66
Inventories FE 4
Accounts receivable UL R TR 89
Prepaid expenses and other TR R E M REEE
current assets 722
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEEE 36
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities FEfTBRRX N fEET & & (1,406)
Income tax payable FERT TS HR (16)
Short-term borrowings HEEE (482)
Long-term borrowings REEE (77)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIERE (185)
Other liabilities Hih B & (4)
Fair value of identifiable net assets B WEBTARFIFEEEZ A FE
acquired 1,310
Non-controlling interests FEVE I 1 fE (236)
Goodwill BES 205
Total consideration BB 1,279
Less: consideration payable B ERRE (576)
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BEWER e KR EEIER
acquired (36)
Net cash outflow FREARE 667
The non-controlling interests recognised at the date of USSR TR B BATERR 2 FEIE Hil M i s T A8 2
acquisition was measured by reference to the proportionate ERUWIESEIER BRG] BNEFEEZ AT
shares of the fair value of the net identifiable assets at the B2 LLBIEETE -

date of acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE —=F

ACQUISITIONS (CONTINUED)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

The goodwill is attributable mainly to the benefits of
expanding into new markets such as Hengyang, Tai'an,
Hengshui and other cities, and synergies expected to be
achieved from integrating the entities into the Group’s
existing businesses. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purpose.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB13 million
have been charged to selling, general and administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Included in the revenue and profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 are RMB415 million and losses of RMB67
million, respectively, contributed from the acquired entities
since the Acquisition date.

Had the Acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
the Group’s revenue and profit for the year would have
been RMB1,121 million and losses of RMB147 million
respectively.

Acquisition of associates

The share of assets and liabilities at the Acquisition date
are as follows:

38

R EMBRRMEE

—NF+ZA=T-HLEHFE

IeHE (48)
W BB B 2 =) (AR

HEIEXREMREGRS - Bk RE
MBI T 2 FTTH 5 P R 2 25 J@ LA&H%%’&E
BEAEAKERBEREMAMSEL 2R
MUE - B HER 2 F B TR A BIEHIRR A
B -

ARBISAET 2 WEREARAEBHES
E-NF+A=+—RHILEFEZEEEH
WaRZHE - —RUEFMEEERANLR -

BWEEEAREAWNBEERER AR
BasEETEARETEETTEDRIFTA
BEZZ—NFTA=1+—HLEFEZK
ABLE FI| J2 B8 o

Ml EEEERN —_E—NF—HA—H=K © &
$%l2$¢ﬁuﬁv\éﬁi/ﬁnﬂ&%¢aﬂ‘m 15
AREA121IBETIARE147TEETT °

WBEEE A F
REBEBEERZEGEEENRAGNT

RMB’million

ARBEETT

Total consideration BB 361
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired & : BWEFEEZ AT E (361)

Goodwill included in investments in
associates

AARBERRIZREZEE

Since Acquisition date, the two associates contributed
profit of RMB11 million, which were included in share
of profits less losses of associates in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2019.

BB =R A HIEE - MR AR E 5 RUE
MARBNBET  HEFABEZ-ZT—H
Ft-A=t—BLFERFREE2ENRGERZ
FEIGE S A BDENIRETIEA -

EmERARLHE
“E-NEFFERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 = —=F

39.

40

41

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
epidemic in early 2020 has led to a series of precautionary
and control measures implemented across the globe
and also casted downward pressure on domestic and
international energy prices. It may have certain impacts
on the Group’s business operations. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the epidemic and
assess its impact on the financial position, cash flows and
operating results. Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the assessment is still in progress and the
related impact could not be reasonably estimated at this
stage.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective method. Under this
approach, comparative information is not restated. Further
details of the changes in accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 3(2).

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2020 and will be
submitted to the shareholders for adoption at the 2020
Annual General Meeting to be held on 27 May 2020
(Wednesday).
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HEMRIFAEEIR

RZZF_ZFNREFLUETENRRE
(COVD-19)RBEEMEHREMEE — &K
SRR AR TR 5 - IRE B RSNEIR B
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BEAETHE AEERENEERIEZ
HRANMHGEESVBRR - ReRERK

A%ZEZE‘@ BEZFMHHRETE 2B
FHEIDEETTH - BARFEERER
%ﬁ%f’ﬁéﬁ%ﬁﬁ >
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42 FEMEBAT
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which RARRZE—NEFEF+ZA=+—HBZXEW
are limited liability companies at 31 December 2019, are as BARI(ARBREFEAR) ZFEAT :
follows:
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRBRRE/ AREEL
WEAREH Hb% Bl WA EEERER RREAM

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in the PRC

ETESR  LERAERM

Beckbury International Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") US$
ABRAHS E3

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Peru

ERBHR LERHERA

SAPET Development Corporation (“SAPET") United States of America 100 ordinary shares
X8 o par value

100 EBREDE

SAPET Development Peru Inc. United States of America 100 ordinary shares
X8 o par value

100 EBRERE

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Thailand

AR LERBERA

Central Place Gompany Limited Hong Kong 160 ordinary shares
&k 160E Bk
Sino-U.S. Petroleum Inc. United States of America US$1,000
=35 1000%TC
CNPCHK (Thailand) Limited Thailand Baht100 milion
R 1005ERHK

Limited liability company
ERERRA

Limited liability company
EREAAT

Limited liability company
EREFAA

Limited liability company
ERELRA

Limited liability company
EREFAA

Limited liability company
ERELRA

100.00% (note {))
(K[

50.00% (note (i)

(Bt )

50.00% (note (i)
(Rzk (i)

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42 EMBAT(EF)
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRARRE/ ALEEL
WEARER R Bl WA EERRER RRAAM
Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Azerbaijan
EMEREYR  LERHERM
Fortunemate Assets Limited BV USS1 Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)

RERTES 1% BREEAT (Hi&E ()

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan

ERERTEER  LEREERH

GNPC International (Caspian) Limited BvI US§100 Limited liabilty company 60.00%
ABRUES 100%7T ERELAR

Natural gas business

NS

Kunlun Gas PRC RMBB,560 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note ()

ERltE el ARESS60EET EREEAR (KzE0)

Xinjiang Xinjie Co., Ltd. PRC RMB4,370 million Limited liability company 98.50% (note (i)

MENERNERAT i ARE4370EET ERELRA (RszE ()

ERRARROERAT PRC RMB2,082 milion Limited iabilty company 77.88% (note ()
el ARE2082 58T EREEAR (KtzE0)

CGNPC Shennan Oil Technology Development PRC RMB,102 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)

Co,, Lid. el AREI02EET BRELAR GiR{))

BT RAR R ARE R AR
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

42 FEMBAE(E)

Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRBRRE/ AREEL
WEAREH Hb% Bl WA EEERER RREAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
Kunlun Energy Investment Shandong PRC RMB,500 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note (i)
Company Limited # AREAS0BET BREALH (B3E()
EmiRRE (LR)ARAT
Huagang Gas Group Company Limited PRC RMB1,500 milion Limited liability company 51.00% (note ()
FEMRERERAT e AREAS00BET EREFRA (K& ()
mI AR ERE AR PRC RMB900 milion Limited liabity company 51.00% (note ()
hEl ARBI0EET EREFAF GiR{))
HEERERERAT PRC RMB500 millon Limited iabilty company 94,00% (note ()
hEl ARES0BET BRRAAR GiEd)
RREEEAERAT PRC RMB195 milion Limited fiabilty company 100.00% (note ()
el ARE195BET BREARA GiED)
KunLun Energy (Liaoning) Company Limited PRC RMB192 million Limited liability company 100.00% (note ()
Embn (B%)BRAA il AEE192BET ERELRTA GiR{))
ERRERARAA PRC RMB48 milion Limited liabity company 100.00% (note (i)
el ARBBEET BREFAF GiEd)
EmiR (HB) BRAA PRC RMB105 millon Limited liabilty company 100.00% note ()
e ARE105B8T EREFAA (Bzx()

EmeeRERAA 239
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 42 EMBAT(EF)
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
e/ BRTRARRE/ ALEEL
WEARER R Bl WA EERRER RRAAM
Natural gas business (Continued)
AREEH ()
CGangzhou Gas Limited Company Petrochina PRC RMB200 million Limited liabiity company 51,00% (note (i)
BN RARAT e ARB2008ET ERERRA (RszE0)
Jiangsu LNG PRC RMB3, 166 million Limited liabilty company 55.00% (note (i)
TEING hEl ARESI66FET BREMRR (Kiz0)
Jingtang Co. PRC RMB3, 150 million Limited liabilty company 51.00%
RERT el ARESI50EET BRRARA
PetroChina Dalian LNG Co., Ltd. PRC RMB2,600 million Limited liability company 75.00% (note ()
HREAERIARRARAR e ARE2600BET EREFAF (&)
Beijing Pipeline PRC RMB21,408 milion Limited liability company 60.00% (note (i)
IREE hE AE®2148EET ERERAT (Rak()
Petrochina Tianjin Gas Pipeline Co., Ltd. PRC RMB255 million Limited liabilty company 100.00% (note (i)
PRBRERAREERRAA e AR 2B5BET EREMFAF (&)
Notes: BfsE
() Shares are held directly by the Company. 0} HAARIEERERD
(i) In accordance with the share purchase agreement dated (i) BIBEHBHA-ZZE—FNANR ZERD

8 September 2001, the Group has the rights to variable
returns from its involvement with SAPET and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over SAPET. As
a result, SAPET is accounted for as a subsidiary of the
Company.

Since SAPET Development Peru Inc. is wholly-owned by
SAPET, it is also accounted for as the subsidiary of the
Company.

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ —Z— NF+-_A=+—ALLFE

PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES 43 IEEEAT
At 31 December 2019, the Group had interest in the RIE—NF+-_A=+—8 KEBERU
following principal associates: = ;zﬂﬁﬁ SN ARER
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of associates establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
AMEL/ BRTRARREK/ AREEL
NGRS R &R #ME EEERER BREAM

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Kazakhstan

ERERTEHE  EEREERA

Aktobe Kazakhstan 8,946,470 Joint-stock company 15.07% (note (i)
iR common shares RAHAT (P )

0f 1,500 tenge each

(note (i)

8,946,470

BREE1 502X

LR ()

Natural gas distribution in the PRC

EHESERRR
China City Natural PRC RMB1,000 million Limited liabilty company 49,00% (note (i)
Gas Investment Group Co,, Ltd. i ARE10008ET BREALF (PR3 i)

PRTRRRESERRAA

Qingdao Port Dongjiakou Liquid Chemical Terminal PRC RMB710 million Limited liabilty company 49,00% (note (i)
Co. Ltd. el ARETI0BER EREARA (K Gi)

EEAERORBIL IBEARAR

Notes: Btk -

0] Issued and paid up share capital of Aktobe consists 0] Aktobe B 17 & &1 B i 7 £ 8,946,470
of 8,946,470 ordinary shares and 943,955 preference % X 38 A% & 943,955 I B X o ﬁf‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
shares. The preference shares give their holders the right TEHEBAEFSERRBFERE (M
to participate in general shareholders’ meetings without BREKRERE) -

voting rights generally.

(i) The effective equity interest of Aktobe attributable to the (i) B 7 Aktobe 2 25.12% IR IE A S EiFH
Group is 15.07% as the 25.12% equity interest in Aktobe 60% HEZ IER BB ARFTA - A%
is held by a non-wholly owned subsidiary in which the B FE 15 Aktobe 2 BB IRE A 15.07% ©

Group holds a 60% equity interest.

(il Shares held directly by the Company. (il BARRIEERERS °

BEntRERAT (YR
—TNEEERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
S EUMBRTME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

44  PRINCIPAL JOINT VENTURES 44 TEEGEDLHE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interest in the RZEBE—NF+-_A=+—8 KEBERU

following principal joint ventures: TEESELERARER -
Particulars Percentage of
Place of of issued and equity interest
incorporation/ paid up capital/ Type of attributable to
Name of joint ventures establishment registered capital legal entity the Group
iR/ BRTRARHRE/ ARERE
RELELR kL &R G#fE EERREH BRAAM

Exploration, production and sales of crude oil in Oman

EMEHR  LEREERA

Mazoon Petrogas (BVI) Limited BvI 50,000 ordinary Limited liabilty company 50.00% (note)
shares of US$1 each EREMAR (Bzk)

EBRAES 50000 BREE

1ET 2 ERR

Production of petro-chemical products in the PRC

REEEERMILIER
BRI EHARAT PRC RMB223 milion Limited fiabilty company 25.00% (note)
e AR%223BET EREMAT (RfzE)

Natural gas business

NS

Qinggang PRC RMB337 milion Limited liability company 50.00%

B HE ARESTEET EREMAR (note)
(RfzE)

Binhai Xinneng PRC RMB229 million Limited liabilty company 50.00%

i HE ARB29BET BRELAR (note)
(&)

Jigang PRC RMBG57 milion Limited liability company 50.00%

i hE NREB57TEET BREARH (note)
(&)

Note: The shares of the above principal joint ventures are held Mzt EEEARECENRDBARRREER

directly by the Company. B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

45 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 45 AEEBEMABIRAER
FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
“E-hE “E-NF —Z-N\F
+=A=1+-H —R—H +ZA=+—H
Note RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
Bzt ARKEER AREEET AREBET
Assets EE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - Wi & 9 12 =
Investments in associates N AN ) 1,306 931 931
Investments in joint ventures REBELEZRE 973 973 973
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIRE 56,114 53,629 53,629
Loans to a subsidiary m—fEHBARIE R 4,211 4211 4,211
62,613 59,756 59,744
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid expenses and BNFREMR
other current assets BE 5,218 4817 4817
Cash and cash equivalents Re kA& SEEE 687 1,995 1,995
5,905 6,812 6,812
Total assets HmEE 68,518 66,568 66,556
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable A2 AR RELRA
to owners of the Company RiEtE
Share capital AR 27 14 65 65
Retained earnings RIFRF 28 17,779 14,340 14,340
Other reserves Hihf#E 28 35,993 32,663 32,663
53,843 47,068 47,068

=
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R EMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HLEZ=ZE—NF+-_A=+—HLFE

45 COMPANY - LEVEL STATEMENT OF 45

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

ATEEMBRR (&)

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—2-hE “ENEF —2-N\F
+=A=t-H —f—H +ZA=1+-H
Note RMB’million RMB’million RMB’million
Bzt AREEHETR AREBET AREBET
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable and PR ER A
accrued liabilities [ExtRE 1,013 1,557 1,557
Short-term borrowings RHEEE 3,486 = =
Convertible bonds AEnEs 31 - 3,306 3,306
Income tax payable FERFTEH 32 21 21
Lease liabilities HEa’E 2 3 =
4,533 4,887 4,884
Non-current liabilities FREAE
Long-term borrowings RHEE 10,135 14,604 14,604
Lease liabilities HEaE 7 9 =
10,142 14,613 14,604
Total liabilities “meE 14,675 19,500 19,488
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAR 68,518 66,568 66,556
Net current assets TBEERE 1,372 1,925 1,928
Total assets less current liabilities A& EHRBHA & 63,985 61,681 61,672

Note: The Company has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, comparative information is not restated.
See Note 3(2).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SZEMBRTM

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BlEZE=Z—NF+-—A=+—HILLFE

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 46 HERRKRIZERAT
PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the Directors consider the RZZE—NEF+ZA=1T—"8 EFRBEA
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of REEEEARIREEZERALT AR RBE
the Group to be PetroChina HK and CNPC which are BERARIRTEAHER - DRIRNABE
incorporated in the BVI and established in the PRC ZEERFPHEFIMKY - B AH - A —FH
respectively. PetroChina, an intermediate holding company, MIFEZERAR  REAJHARALER 2
produces financial statements available for public use. TEwK o

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 47 &Z-T—hA&+-A=+—HI1L%

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EEEMHE LR EKIERT - FHEH
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE RRENTRERE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSVBRREMBEE MR
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new SEMRMLZEET R—BRENETETB
standard, HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts, which are not MEENFE7H [REEL] REBEE=Z
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and —NFEF+ZA=+—BIEFENRER - 71
which have not been adopted in these financial statements. AR LE R - ZFEREENU
These developments include the following which may be TR gE B AR EERE 2 (85T o

relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

RUT B2 ZMBHEHBEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business 1 January 2020
BEAMBHREEANE IR (BFIRN) » [EHEZEZE ] —E-TF—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material 1 January 2020
BALHENE1RREBSFEAUFE S (B5]RX) - [EXZEZ=/ —ZT-TF—H—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REE EEFTHZEETT RFTLENR G XE
what the impact of these developments is expected to be ARTEREK 2 ZE - BRIASERA - &
in the initial application. So far it has concluded that the MZ BB R LR R E M BT EKE
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on AEEBIZHETK o

the consolidated financial statements.

EmERARLHE
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Reserve Quantities Information

INFORMATION ON EXPLORATION AND
PRODUCTION SEGMENT

In accordance with the Listing Rule 18.18, this section provides
supplemental information on oil and gas producing activities of the
Group.

Proved Oil and Gas Reserve Estimates

The following table sets forth the Company’s estimated proved
developed reserves and proved reserves as at December 2017,
2018 and 2019. The tables are formulated on the basis of reports
prepared by DeGolyer and MacNaughton and Ryder Scott
Company, independent engineering consultancy companies.

AR EERR 2 EF

RIEEMARANE 1818 1% -
REERBOMITER

AEne i A A KB

REAh SR BT

TREBHINARANRZE—F  _E—N\RK_ZE
—NF+=A Z1E§H§KEHE FEHE RIFARKE -
ZE R TIBE B T2 F R A 7] DeGolyer and
MacNaughton F1 Ryder Scott Company #& &4 2 &

CRUDE OIL R#
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
REAC BAE % H
& (&5 2 (&5
(million barrels) (million barrels)
(BER) (BER)
Reserve as at RZE—RF
31 December 2016 +-A=+—RHZ2fF= 52.4 68.3
2017 Revision -l S H) 10.3 10.0
2017 Production “E—+FES (13.4) (13.4)
Reserve as at RZZE—+F
31 December 2017 TZA=t—HZ#=E 49.3 64.9
2018 Revision —2—N\FEFT 11.8 8.9
2018 Production T \FE=Z (13.8) (13.8)
Reserve as at RZZE—N\F
31 December 2018 TZA=t—HZ#=E 47.3 60.0
2019 Revision “E-NFEET 6.8 8.8
2019 Production —E-NFE=S (13.7) (13.7)
Reserve as at RZZE—NF
31 December 2019 TZA=t—HZ#=E 40.4 55.1
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Reserve Quantities Information
HEEE

NATURAL GAS RAARR
Proved
developed Proved
reserves reserves
(Estimation) (Estimation)
AR %A
& (&5 2 (&5
(million cu feet) (million cu feet)
(BEBIZFR) (BBYAW)
Reserve as at RZZE—RF
31 December 2016 +TZA=+—HZRE 217,470.2 2421245
2017 Revision ZE—FEF] 18,814.9 (284.2)
2017 Production —ET+FEE (32,307.8) (32,307.8)
Reserve as at RZE—+F
31 December 2017 +-A=+—HZ2fF= 203,997.3 209,532.5
2018 Revision ZE-N\FE:] 4,012.4 11,762.5
2018 Production —N\FE= (33,389.9) (33,389.9)
Reserve as at RZE—N\F
31 December 2018 +-A=+—HZ2fF= 174,599.8 187,905.1
2019 Revision ZE-NFEE] 1,855.5 1,089.8
2019 Production —NFEE (32,926.1) (32,926.1)
Reserve as at RZE—NF
31 December 2019 +TZA=+—HZRE=E 143,529.2 156,068.8
Definition: B
The petroleum reserves are classified as follows: BHREEDHEWT

Proved oil and gas reserves — Proved oil and gas reserves are
those quantities of oil and gas, which by analysis of geoscience
and engineering data, can be estimated with reasonable certainty
to be economically producible — from a given date forward, from
known reservoirs, and under existing economic conditions,
operating methods, and government regulations — prior to the
time at which contracts providing the right to operate expire,
unless evidence indicates that renewal is reasonably certain,
regardless of whether deterministic or probabilistic methods are
used for the estimation. The project to extract the hydrocarbons
must have commenced or the operator must be reasonably
certain that it will commence the project within a reasonable time.

KA hwFEE — RABRBERBRERARE
RIKEHEMBIH A (BRIEFE TF/\EE%MD%E%U
WSRER) - BEMRB BN TRBEBENDN
BRAMEE SR MR G - UIRERE - (ERAEK
& SR F - B AR IR RETE © A SRR A 7 R] 5RO
RHEE - BRACFIREDNEIERE AT
EESNEERREANFRGIER -

EmERARLHE
“E-NEFFERE

247



Reserve Quantities Information
HESE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The areas of the reservoir considered as proved includes:

(A) The area identified by drilling and limited by fluid
contracts, if any, and (B) Adjacent undrilled portions of the
reservoir that can, with reasonable certainty, be judged
to be continuous with it and to contain economically
producible oil or gas on the basis of available geoscience
and engineering data.

In the absence of data on fluid contracts, proved quantities
in a reservoir are limited by the lowest known hydrocarbons
(LKH) as seen in a well penetration unless geoscience,
engineering, or performance data and reliable technology
establishes a lower contact with reasonable certainty.

Where direct observation from well penetrations has
defined a highest known oil (HKO) elevation and the
potential exists for an associated gas cap, proved ail
reserves may be assigned in the structurally higher
portions of the reservoir only if geoscience, engineering,
or performance data and reliable technology establish the
higher contact with reasonable certainty.

Reserves which can be produced economically through
application of improved recovery techniques (including,
but not limited to, fluid injection) are included in the proved
classification when:

(A) Successful testing by a pilot project in an area of the
reservoir with properties no more favorable than in the
reservoir as a whole, the operation of an installed program
in the reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or other evidence
using reliable technology establishes the reasonable
certainty of the engineering analysis on which the project
or program was based; and (B) The project has been
approved for development by all necessary parties and
entities, including governmental entities.

Existing economic conditions include prices and costs
at which economic producibility from a reservoir is to be
determined. The price shall be the average price during
the 12-month period prior to the ending date of the period
covered by the report, determined as an unweighted
arithmetic average of the first-day-of-the-month price for
each month within such period, unless prices are defined
by contractual arrangements, excluding escalations based
upon future conditions.
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Developed oil and gas reserves — Developed oil and gas reserves
are reserves of any category that can be expected to be
recovered:

M

(i)

Through existing wells with existing equipment and
operating methods or in which the cost of the required
equipment is relatively minor compared to the cost of a
new well; and

Through installed extraction equipment and infrastructure
operational at the time of the reserves estimate if the
extraction is by means not involving a well.

Undeveloped oil and gas reserves — Undeveloped oil and gas
reserves are reserves of any category that are expected to be
recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage, or from existing
wells where a relatively major expenditure is required from
recompletion.

M

(i)

(i)

Reserves on undrilled acreage shall be limited to those
directly offsetting development spacing areas that are
reasonably certain of production when drilled, unless
evidence using reliable technology exists that establishes
reasonable certainty of economic producibility at greater
distances.

Undrilled locations can be classified as having undeveloped
reserves only if a development plan has been adopted
indicating that they are scheduled to be drilled within five
years, unless the specific circumstances, justify a longer
time.

Under no circumstances shall estimates for undeveloped
reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an
application of fluid injection or other improved recovery
technique is contemplated, unless such techniques have
been proved effective by actual projects in the same
reservoir or an analogous reservoir, or by other evidence
using reliable technology establishing reasonable certainty.
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Reserve Quantities Information

Results of Operations for Exploration and Production EiRELERBEEEE

Segment
RMB’million
ARBBEER
For the year ended BE-Z-NF
31 December 2019 +=ZA=t—HLEE
Gross revenue BUA 2,004
Less: Inter-company adjustment W A AIE R -
Revenue from external customers REINEBEFE Z A 2,004
Segment results RIBSELR 250
Share of profits less losses of: FE(R = AR e 18
- Associates — B R A] 621
— Joint ventures — 5EDE 219
Profit before income tax expense BRPT1S T & R A& A 1,090
Segment results included: RIRSEEBIE
— Interest income — FBUWA 9
- Depreciation, depletion — e - BREREH
and amortisation (297)

— Interest expenses

— MEXH

KUNLUN ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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Reserve Quantities Information

Results of Operations for Exploration and Production EiREEEFERBLEEE ()

Segment (Continued)

HEEH

RMB’million
AREEET
For the year ended BE-Z-)\f
31 December 2018 +t-HA=t+—HLEFE
Gross revenue A 2068
Less: Inter-company adjustment WA RIE R -
Revenue from external customers REIMNBE S Z WA 2,068
Segment results WRIRELE 466
Share of profits less losses of: FE(R = R e 8
- Associates — Bt AT 581
— Joint ventures - BERE 203
Profit before income tax expense BRAT1S T & R AT A 1,250
Segment results included: RIRFEE B
— Interest income — FEMA 7
— Depreciation, depletion — & - BREREH
and amortisation (295)
— Interest expenses — MEXH -
EmeeRERAA

“E-NEFFERE
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Reserve Quantities Information

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and

Production:

Costs Incurred for Property Acquisitions, Exploration and

Development Activities

VIEWEE  BRELEEE ZHE

MIRWE - BRERBEBEE ZRAE

2019 2018
—E-nE P&
RMB’million RMB’million
ARBEERT AREKBET
The Group rEE
Property acquisition costs SIELE DN - =
Exploration costs BVERAK AR - -
Development cost FEE AR 130 167
Total et 130 167
Equity method investments AR E
Share of costs of property DihEEE AR R
acquisition, exploration and BEENEWE
development of associates and ViR R A AR
joint ventures 652 652
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